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PEOPLE. PLANET. PROFIT.

At the heart of Lemon Tree Hotels' mission lies a steadfast commitment to People,
Planet and Profit. Guided by this mission, we harmonise our endeavours to shape
a brighter, more equitable future.

People: Embedded in our essence is a commitment
to the welfare of our people—our dedicated team
members, valued suppliers and the community we
live in. Woven seamlessly into our daily operations,
this commitment propels growth, fosters inclusion and
uplifts lives.

Planet: Our responsibility to the environment drives us
to adopt sustainable practices that minimise our carbon
footprint. Through green building design, energy and
water efficiency/recycling initiatives, waste reduction
practices and renewable energy adoption, we strive

to safeguard our planet's natural resources for the
generations to come.
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Profit: Our commitment to financial prosperity

is unwavering. By maintaining a robust financial
performance, we create a stable foundation that
empowers us to invest in our people and planet, and
provide value to our shareholders.

This synergy between profitability, social responsibility
and environmental stewardship defines our
business ethos.
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Lemon Tree Hotels

Lemon Tree Hotels (LTH) is one of the key players in the
hospitality industry in India and is a leader in the mid-market
segment. The company focuses on delivering exceptional guest

experiences through its differentiated and compelling value proposition.

With a strong focus on innovation and sustainability, LTH continues to
redefine and elevate the standards of hospitality in India.

FOR WHEREVER YOU WANT TO GO, WE ARE THERE FOR YOU
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Vision
Lemon Tree Hotels shall be India’s largest and finest chain of upscale, mid-scale and
economy hotels and resorts.
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Mission
We shall be committed to:

Ensuring the well-being and self-worth Rewarding our stakeholders, whose
of our colleagues, who are of the utmost trust motivates us to excel further.
importance to us.

Maximising the efficiency of our
Contributing to the community we live processes, to enable us to be the
in and to India in general. most cost-effective brand offering the
greatest value, which our customers
Delighting our guests, whose comfort, have every right to expect.
safety, security and well-being is our
main reason for being.
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. v T i = g o | on ensuring the health, safety, security highest standards of fairness and
Lok . 4 '- and well being of all our stake holders transparency in all our dealings.
Ll — _ ' : 2 including the communities within which we

Z ] operate our business. Spirited Fun: We create an exciting
g8 : ; Ly | and spirited work environment
< = Teamwork: We recognize that encouraging our colleagues to
superlative performance is always the think freely.
. result of teamwork.
' AL Excellence: We always drive excellence
: ~ . Ownership: We always take responsibility in what we do.
5 X : for our actions.

Respect and Empathy: We always
exhibit respect and concern for
colleagues, guests and partners.

& Lazy Lagoon, Baga - A Lemon Tree Resort, Goa

S

02 " "/Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23



FY23 IN REVIEW

Empowering People, Protecting
the Planet, Maximising Profit

MAXIMISING SHAREHOLDER VALUE

111%

Total revenue growth

208%

EBITDA* growth, driving our balance sheet

128%

Substantial YoY RevPAR growth

54%

ARR growth, reflecting our growth momentum

eee Page 86

*EBITDA is before a stamp duty expense of ¥4.8 Crores

o

ROBUST OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

6

New openings with growing portfolio

23

New signings across 12 states

56

Destinations, expanding
geographical presence

eee Page 14

‘ Citrus Cafe, alfresco at Lemon Tree Hotel, Electronics C/'Ey, Bengaluru
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CARING FOR THE PLANET

10%

Reduction in energy consumption
(intensity based) over FY19 baseline

10.97%

Renewable energy usage out of total energy
consumption

19%

Reduction in GHG emissions
(intensity based) over FY19 baseline

15%

Reduction in water consumption
(intensity based) over FY19 baseline

25%

Certified green buildings

eee Page 69

FOCUS ON PEOPLE

13%

Opportunity Deprived Indians (ODIs) in the
workforce

149

Women across the workforce

14.3%

Women on the Board

1:1

Male:Female wage ratio

Certified Great
Place To Work

eee Page 49
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‘VA‘ Lemon Tree Hotel and Red Fox Hotel, %
Wb’ Sector 60, Gurugram -

SUPPORTING THE COMMUNITIES

98%

Sourcing from local suppliers

%7.15 Lakhs

CSR spend

eee Page 63
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About the Report

Our FY23 Integrated Report provides relevant information to our
shareholders and other stakeholders about the performance,
governance, strategy and future prospects of LTH.

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

In this Report, we present an inclusive overview of our
operations, including all 40 hotels owned/leased by LTH,
along with our subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates
and other collaborations. It provides a comprehensive
overview of our progress, accomplishments and future
goals, both tangible and intangible and financial and
non-financial aspects of the business.

REPORTING PERIOD
15t April 2022 — 31t March 2023

FRAMEWORKS, GUIDELINES AND
STANDARDS

This Report follows the Integrated Reporting Framework
<IR> set forth by the Value Reporting Foundation.
It also has been prepared with reference to the GRI

DATA INTEGRITY

To ensure the accuracy, reliability and transparency
of this Integrated Report, we have diligently gathered
and analysed relevant data. Our rigorous internal
controls uphold the principles of unbiased, comparable
and comprehensive information. Also, we have been
conscious in acknowledging any noteworthy limitations
associated with the data, wherever applicable.

MATERIALITY

The Report compiles data on material issues identified
by stakeholders and the company, critical to the value-
creation process. Read more on the Materiality process on

Page 42

Material Topics

EXTERNAL ASSURANCE

This Report has undergone independent assurance by
Felix Advisory Private Limited in accordance with the

GRI Standard 2021 and the International Federation

of Accountants (IFAC) Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. Their statements form a part of the Report.
The information regarding business performance is
derived from our audited financial statements for FY23.
Find the assurance certificate on

4 N

NAVIGATING THE REPORT

Financial Capital Manufactured Capital
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Human Capital Social and
Relationship Capital

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

o)
[

Employees

K

Regulatory Bodies/
Government

PN

L]

Owners and Partners

&

Contractors

<

Local Communities

O

&

Customers

€

Investors
and Shareholders

Gl

Suppliers and Vendors
NGOs

<7

Online Travel Agencies
(OTAs)/Portals

Standards 2021, 4 N .
The report is aligned to: Environment @ @ C‘@) @
Water Management 78 . _ o )
e The Companies Act, 2013 (and the Rules made Waste Management 81 Intellectual Capital Natural Capital Industry Associations Media
thereunder) Energy Management 71
e National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental - : . \_ J @ J
and Economic Responsibilities of B|9d|ver5|ty Protection 8 Page 38
e Business (NVG-SEE) Climate Change 7
° Iﬂdlaﬂ ACCOUﬂtlﬂg Staﬂdards (Ind_AS) ......................................................................................................................
e The Securities and Exchange Board of India Social
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) L
Regulations, 2015 Health.and Well-being | 60
e The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of commitment Fo Human Rights 62
Company Secretaries of India Customer Delight 64
Diversity and Inclusion 52
PRECAUTIONARY APPROACH Talent Management and Retention 58
We embrace a precautionary approach to minimise the Sustainable Supply Chain 66
environmental impact of our operations. Regular reviews Local Community Development 63 FEEDBACK
of our hotels" Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) For any inquiries and feedback regarding this Report,
performance are conducted to effectively IENEIfy AN |« olease feel free to email us at:
mitigate any potential negative impacts. Governance ESG@lemontreehatels.com
Regulatory Compliance 20
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT Ethics and Transparency 19 REGISTERED OFFICE
The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility to Brand and Reputation Management 10 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited, Asset No. 6, Aerocity
ensure the integrity of this Integrated Report. The Board Economic Performance 86 Hospitality District, New Delhi-110037
has accordingly applied its collective mind and believes . T : 491 11 4605 0101
the report addresses all material issues and presents the Data Privacy 21 E - hi@lemontreehotels.com
integrated performance of the company and its impact in N J CIN No. : L74899D1 1992PLC049022
a fair and accurate manner.
06 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 07
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LTH AT A GLANCE

Catering to
Every Guest, Every Need

LTH is the largest mid-market hotel chain in India, with seven
brands, 88 hotels and 8,382 rooms, across 56 destinations. Our
brands offer exceptional service across price points, thereby catering

to the diverse needs of our guests.

The Library at Aurika, Udaipur )

We have successfully established the sixth-largest
hotel chain in India by inventory, encompassing owned,

Hotels by Contract Type

OUR STRENGTHS

Cost and Capital Efficiency

With a skilled project management team, we efficiently
identify strategically located land at reasonable prices,
which results in higher margins with operating costs
significantly lower than competitors.

2455.93 crores

EBITDA*

Affordability and Customer Loyalty

Dominant positioning in the mid-scale segment helps
us to withstand economic slowdowns. The loyalty
programme fosters repeat guests, giving us a network
advantage for expansion.

15.79 Lakhs

Loyalty programme members

/7%

Retail Net Promoter Score (NPS)
*EBITDA is before a stamp duty expense of 4.8 Crores

OUR OPERATING SEGMENTS AND BRANDS

Upscale Segment

aulIka

HOTELS & RESORTS

Mid-scale Segment

klely|s)

SELECT
BY LEMON TREE HOTELS

Page 11

OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Pan-India Scale and Network

Our wide geographic presence in major metros and
tier-1, tier-II and tier-III cities allows us to meet the
needs of corporate and business clients and leisure
travellers alike.

38

Hotels across 56 destinations

Superior Business Model

LTH's 1.7X RoCE compared to five-star hotels,
lower average development cost per room,

and higher average occupancy showcase a superior
business model.

11.20%

Return on Capital Employed (RoCE)

68%

Average occupancy rate

Upper Mid-scale Segment

klelyls

PRIMA
BY LEMON TREE HOTELS

Economy Segment

Todfor klely]s|

BY LEMON TREE HOTELS LITE
BY LEMON TREE HOTELS

o e . . . . .
leased, managed and franchised hotels. Our hotels (%) Asset-Light Growth Digital Transformation Retail Acceleration Loyalty Expansion

cater to the needs of both leisure and business

travellers looking for a hotel in the upscale, mid-scale

or economy segment.

Our domestic hotels, strategically located in metro Cost Structure Capital Recycling Simplifying Group Structure

regions, as well as tier-I, tier-IT and tier-II cities, ® 33 Owned ESG is the foundation on which these priorities are set and implemented.

combined with our international presence, make e Leased

us the preferred choice for our guests. 48 Managed/Franchised

08 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 09
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OUR PORTFOLIO

Unveiling Opportunities,
Connecting Dreams

We have a diverse portfolio, spanning upscale, mid-scale and
economy segments in key metros and tier-I, tier-II and tier-III cities,
i.e. at prominent urban centres and tourist destinations. We offer
comfortable and convenient stays to our guests with our smart in-
room amenities, vibrant dining outlets, rejuvenating recreational
options and more, all at an affordable price.

=

*\ Lemon Tree Hotel, Port Blair )
-

FOCUS ON EXPANSION AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

LTH's growth strategy is focused on an asset-light
expansion. We are rapidly increasing our managed and
franchised hotel inventory, and are planning to add
~2,547, rooms in the near future. Based on the current
pipeline, we aim to have 130 hotels and 11,667 rooms.
With our focus on asset-light expansion, incremental
cash flows will be primarily utilised for debt reduction,
as we aspire to achieve a debt-free status over the next
five years.

We are happy to witness a notable upswing in

interest from standalone hotel owners to partner

with LTH, particularly in tier-IT and tier-III cities.

These owners recognise the value we bring through our

brand portfolio, sales network, distribution platforms
and best-in-class loyalty programme.

Additionally, our foray into the management and
franchise space has significantly boosted our growth
trajectory, allowing us to extend our presence into
new and untapped markets. This single-minded
approach has strengthened our position as a
preferred hotel brand in the industry, especially

in the mid-market segment.

Furthermore, we have recently announced the launch
of our new franchise division—a strategic move aimed
at leveraging our existing brands and expanding

our network through franchised hotels.

UPSCALE SEGMENT

auTKa

HOTELS & RESORTS

Aurika Hotels & Resorts curate extraordinary
experiences in a stunning ambience. These hotels
are stylishly elegant yet comfortably informal. With
an emphasis on design, these hotels are a reflection
of the destination they are located in. They feature
new-age dining and innovative entertainment
options, complemented by invigorating fitness and
wellness facilities. The essence of the brand is
reflected in ‘Beyond the Unusual’.

Hotels

=4 as

Lemon Tree Premier, Mumbai International Airport )

|emor%ee

PREMIER

Lemon Tree Premier elevates the Lemon Tree
experience while retaining the same freshness,
quirkiness and energy that Lemon Tree is well known
for. These hotels offer plush and spacious interiors,
a refreshing swimming pool, a well-equipped
fitness centre and rejuvenating Fresco Spa, flexible
meeting spaces and a business centre. Lemon Tree
Premier pampers the style conscious and upbeat
traveller with its personalised service, premium
in-room amenities, award winning restaurants and
fun experiences.

18 2,514

Hotels
\_

Keys Prima by Lemon Tree Hoe/s, Thekaddy

klelyls

PRIMA
BY LEMON TREE HOTELS

Keys Prima offers stylish features and
excellent service with exclusive hospitality and
innovative services.

2 32

Hotels

\

10 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Integrated Report 2022-23 11
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Our Portfolio

MID-SCALE SEGMENT

|emon ree

HOTELS

Like the fruit they are named after, Lemon Tree
Hotels are fresh, cool and sparkling with zest.
These stylish business hotels offer fresh and bright
interiors, ‘close to home’ comfort with smart
in-room amenities, a vibrant café, a recreation
bar, a swimming pool and fitness centre, all at an
unbeatable value.

41 2,971

Hotels Rooms

Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hote/s,‘ ez
Gandhi Ashram, Ahmedabad

klely|s

SELECT
BY LEMON TREE HOTELS

Keys Select hotels offer comfort and convenience
for business or leisure travellers, with its efficient
service, impeccable hygiene and delectable food.

11 1,223

Hotels Rooms

/4 ;
Swimming Pool at Lazy Lagoon, Baga-A Lemon Tree Resort, Goa
y 4

12 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

ECONOMY SEGMENT

i Red Fox Hotel, Neelkanth

quMW

BY LEMON TREE HOTELS

Red Fox Hotels offer bold interiors, crisp and

clean rooms, unbeatable value and reliable safety
standards. The facilities include WiFi, Clever Fox
Café, efficient meeting spaces, a well-equipped
fitness centre and laundry service. The ‘close to
home’ environment make it the first choice for price
conscious travellers.

11 1,290

Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels, Visakhapatnam

klelyls

LITE
BY LEMON TREE HOTELS

Keys Lite offers affordable, stress-free
accommodation for the price-conscious traveller with
hygienic rooms, essential amenities, delicious food,
and safety and security.

3 108

Hotels Rooms Hotels Rooms
\ 2N %
Total Rooms by Inventory Type
139 669 55242
Aurika Hotels & Resorts | DN
1,603 911 95

Lemon Tree Premier

1,562
Lemon Tree Hotels

69 1,409 2,017

850 440
Red Fox Hotels ]
82
Keys Prima by Lemon Tree Hotels [ ]
936 287 40
Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels I 4
108 153
Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels D

@® Owned/Leased (operational)
® Managed/Franchised (operational)

As on 315t March 2023

©® Owned/Leased (pipeline)
® Managed/Franchised (pipeline)

Integrated Report 2022-23 13
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OUR PRESENCE

Expanding, Connecting, Enriching

Our fast-paced growth allows us to penetrate deeper and wider across India,
and reach tier-II, tier-III and tier-IV cities. We opened five new hotels in
major tourist destinations and signed 10 new hotels in unique destinations.

NEW HOTELS OPENED IN FY23

Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels,

Sreekanya, Visakhapatnam,

Offers 44 smart rooms and suites, Keys Café multi-
cuisine restaurant and a conference room

Lemon Tree Hotel, Kalina, Mumbai
Offers 63 rooms and suites, Citrus Café multi-cuisine
coffee shop, recreation bar Slounge and a fitness centre

Lemon Tree Hotel, Mukteshwar

Offers 41 rooms and suites with breathtaking mountain
views, Citrus Café multi cuisine coffee shop and Slounge,
the recreation bar

Keys Prima by Lemon Tree Hotels,

Thekkady, Kerala

Offers 42 well-appointed rooms, Keys Café multi-cuisine
restaurant and serene nature activities

Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels,

Tapovan, Rishikesh

Offers 39 smart rooms, Keys Café multi-cuisine
restaurant and a rejuvenating spa in a serene setting

Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels, Gandhi
Ashram, Ahmedabad

Offers 52 smart rooms and suites, and Keys Café multi-
cuisine restaurant

Region-wise Inventory

Rooms Locations
® 636 Delhi

® 529 Gurugram
® 663 Hyderabad
® 3874 Bengaluru
® 303 Mumbai

® 426 Pune

1,659 Rest of India

NEW SIGNINGS IN FY23

Lemon Tree Hotel, Anjuna, Goa

Lemon Tree Hotel, Chandausi, Uttar Pradesh
Lemon Tree Hotel, Erode, Tamil Nadu

Lemon Tree Hotel, Haridwar, Uttarakhand

Lemon Tree Hotel, Hubli, Karnataka

Lemon Tree Premier, Kanha, Madhya Pradesh
Lemon Tree Hotel, Rajkot, Gujarat

Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels, Jaipur, Rajasthan
Lemon Tree Hotel, Jamshedpur

50w o N AWM=

©

Lemon Tree Resort, Kumbhalgarh, Rajasthan

=
N =

Lemon Tree Hotel, Sri Ganganagar, Rajasthan
Lemon Tree Hotel, Tezpur, Assam

-
w

Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels,
Banswara, Rajasthan

14. Lemon Tree Hotel, Bharuch, Gujarat

15. Lemon Tree Hotel, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh

16. Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels, Chirang, Assam
17. Lemon Tree Hotel, Jabalpur, Madhya Pradesh

18. Lemon Tree Hotel, Manali, Himachal Pradesh

19. Lemon Tree Hotel, Kharar, Chandigarh

20. Lemon Tree Hotel, Malad, Mumbai

21. Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels,
Dehradun, Uttarakhand

22. Lemon Tree Hotel, Dapoli
23. Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels, Sylvan, Dapoli

56 88 42

Destinations Hotels

Hotels in the pipeline

7 8,382 3,285

Brands Rooms

Rooms in the pipeline

NEW OPENINGS AND NEW SIGNINGS

Lemon Tree Hotel, Mukteshwar

9 9 9

Keys Lite by Lemon Tree Hotels,
Sreekanya, Visakhapatnam,

Keys Prima by Lemon Tree Hotels,
Thekkady, Kerala

Map not to scale

TOTAL PORTFOLIO*

130 11,667 /1

Hotels Rooms

1 This includes our pipeline, which is subject to change over time

Operating destinations

14 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Integrated Report 2022-23
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CHAIRMAN'S NOTE

Breaking Records and Setting Trends

CHASING THE HOSPITALITY HORIZON

The Indian travel and tourism sector is experiencing a notable
resurgence, particularly in domestic tourism, as travellers
prioritise leisure and relaxation. Encouragingly, the Ministry of
Tourism reported a steady post-COVID growth rate of 40% in
FY23, signalling a robust recovery in the industry. According
to research conducted by the World Travel & Tourism Council
(WTTCQ), the travel and tourism sector's contribution to the
Indian economy is projected to surpass pre-pandemic levels
by 2024, with a remarkable YoY growth of 20.7%.

Throughout FY23, the hotel industry has witnessed rapid
recovery, with Average Room Rates (ARRs) and Occupancy
Rates (ORs) exceeding pre-COVID levels. This resurgence
can be attributed to the emergence of new travel trends,
the hosting of significant global events and favourable
demand-supply dynamics. India's G20 presidency has

also played a pivotal role in boosting international arrivals,
positively impacting the hospitality industry across some
locations. Additionally, we have observed a growing trend
of multi-generational and group travel, with guests seeking
exclusive experiences that offer privacy and comfort.

As the hospitality industry began to recover from early FY23,
we also successfully resumed our growth journey and saw an
upward trajectory through the year. We are now strategically
positioned to take advantage of emerging trends, as our
singular focus on catering to the growing needs of India's
middle-class consumer (in the traditionally underserved,
mid-scale market) has set us apart as the leader in this
segment. As we navigate the evolving market dynamics,

we are confident of our ability to continue providing
exceptional service and value to our customers.

*EBITDA is before a stamp duty expense of ¥4.8 Crores

Dear Shareholders,

We are delighted to release our second
Integrated Report, which showcases what
we have accomplished in FY23. It has
been a year of recovery and success.
While we continue to rebuild the business
after the pandemic, we have reached an
important milestone in FY23, with our
revenue surpassing pre-COVID levels.
This achievement is a testament to the
hard work and resilience of our team.

A YEAR OF RECORD-BREAKING SUCCESS

In FY23, Lemon Tree Hotels (LTH) experienced exceptional
growth, as our total revenue more than doubled compared to
FY22, reaching 2879 Crores. We also maintained an EBITDA
margin* of 51.9% for the full year, reflecting the positive
momentum we garnered and our strong performance across
all metrics.

By focusing on building occupancy in FY23, we achieved a
significant increase of 2,197 basis points (bps) compared

to FY22, and an exceptional 2,827 bps compared to FY21.
Additionally, our ARR increased by 54% compared to FY22,
reaching 5,340. This improvement translated into a revenue
per available room (RevPAR) of 23,636, reflecting a 128%
growth compared to FY22.

The EBITDA margin* stood at 51.9% in FY23, which
increased by 1,635 bps over FY22 and 1,574 bps from FY20.
Our Profit After Tax (PAT) for FY23 was at 3140.5 Crores,
which stands in contrast to a negative PAT of 2137.4 Crores
and 13 Crores recorded in FY22 and FY20, respectively. Our
cash profit also demonstrated significant growth, reaching
3237.1 Crores, which stands in contrast to a negative cash
profit of *33.0 Crores in FY22 and a positive 374.1 Crores in
FY20. In FY23, the total management fees received by LTH
was 104 Crores, which was 54% higher than in FY20.

With our prudent financial management, our gross debt, as
of 315t March 2023, stood at 1,746 Crores, while the average
cost of borrowings was 9.08%. However, the weighted
average cost of borrowing for the full year was 8.38%.

During this period, we opened 6 new hotels and signed 23
new management/franchise contracts, adding 1,394 rooms to
our pipeline. As of 315t March 2023, our operational inventory
comprised 88 hotels with 8,382 rooms and our pipeline
included 42 hotels with 3,285 rooms.

BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE LEGACY

At LTH, we embrace sustainability as a key pillar of our
business model and an integral part of our operations.

We are driven by a robust Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) approach that prioritises value creation
for all stakeholders, including shareholders and investors,
employees, customers, suppliers, partners and society at
large. To that end, we have established an ESG governance
structure comprising a Board that sets the vision for
meeting ESG requirements, an ESG task force that
develops the strategy and policies, and a dedicated senior
leadership team that implements and manages ESG related
initiatives and programmes. We have set ambitious targets
to become an ESG exemplar by FY26. We are confident

of making significant incremental progress annually and
creating continuous measurable impact.

PRIORITISING PEOPLE

Social sustainability is at the core of our values,
demonstrated through a diverse and inclusive workforce.

By FY26, we aim to employ 30% Opportunity Deprived
Individuals (ODIs), including those with disabilities and
those from marginalised backgrounds, and to maintain a
gender-balanced workforce with 15% women employees. We
invest significantly in employee training and have dedicated
development programmes to upskill our team members,
ensuring their growth and development.

Beyond our organisational boundaries, we actively engage
with the communities in which we operate, focusing on their
upliftment and well-being. As part of our commitment, we
prioritised collaborating with local suppliers and achieved a YoY
growth of 6% in local sourcing in FY23. We firmly believe that
our success is intertwined with the progress and prosperity

of the communities we live in, and we will continue to drive
meaningful change through our social initiatives.

SAFEGUARDING THE PLANET

We have set ambitious targets for FY26 to significantly
reduce our environmental impact, using FY19 as the
baseline year. Our key targets include achieving a 15%
reduction in energy consumption (intensity-based) and
fulfilling 50% of our energy needs through renewable energy
sources. We also intend to reduce our greenhouse gas
emissions by 40% (intensity-based) and decrease water
consumption by 10% (intensity-based). By achieving Indian
Green Building Council certification for 100% of our owned
properties, we also intend to reduce our carbon footprint.

In FY23, 25% of our portfolio was IGBC/LEED
Gold-certified, which helped us meaningfully achieve
intensity-based reduction of 10%, 19% and 15% for energy
consumption, GHG emissions and water consumption,
respectively (compared to the FY19 baseline). By adopting
innovative practices, we strive to reduce resource
consumption and lower our carbon footprint. Transparent
monitoring of Scope 1 and 2 emissions organisation-wide is
an integral part of our environmental efforts.

ROADMAP 2028

After navigating the challenges of the COVID-19 era, we have
now defined our strategic targets for the coming five years.
This roadmap outlines well-defined and realistic objectives; our
primary focus is on achieving superior financial performance,
streamlining our portfolio, eliminating debt and establishing
ourselves as industry leaders in the areas of digital innovation
and ESG practices.

With a clear vision and target of over 300 hotels and 20,000
rooms by CY28, our strategy is anchored on asset-light growth,
digitisation, increased retail share, customer loyalty, lean
operations, capital optimisation and strategic restructuring. To
achieve this rapid expansion, we intend to extend our network of
managed and franchised rooms to around 15,000, contributing
to approximately 70% of our then room portfolio. In October
2023, we plan to open our largest hotel - Aurika, Mumbai
Skycity, which will add 669 rooms to our total owned inventory.

The pillars of our strategy are:

e Asset Light Growth and Network Effect: spreading
across geographies and deeper within key destinations

e Digital Transformation: we recognise its potential to drive
revenue, operational efficiencies and improved decision-
making across the organisation

e Retail Acceleration: our focus to bring in customers from
across segments through our retail channels

e Loyalty Expansion: relaunching the loyalty programme
and building a bigger, more robust loyal consumer base

e Cost Structure: Maintaining our industry-leading margins
of 50% through a lean operating model

e Capital Recycling: of our owned network by diluting
ownership while retaining majority shareholding and
unlocking capital for future growth

e Simplifying Group Structure: FY23 has laid a robust
foundation for our growth momentum, with a strong
commitment to delivering exceptional guest experiences and
embracing innovation in an evolving hospitality landscape.
The outlook for LTH remains promising, with healthy
occupancy rates and higher ARRs. As the economy revives,
we anticipate a sharp demand rebound and as the largest
branded hotel player in the mid-segment, we are well-
positioned to benefit and gain market share.

IN GRATITUDE

In conclusion, T would like to express my sincere thanks

to all our employees for their determined efforts towards
forging a resilient and agile organisation, and to all our
stakeholders for their unstinting support over the years. 1
hope this support continues to lead us to greater heights.
Together, we will continue to build LTH as a leading brand in
the hospitality industry.

Warm regards,

Patanjali G. Keswani
Chairman and Managing Director
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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% Aurum, the m ot ., m at Aurika, Udaipur

57% 14.3%

Independent Directors Women on the Board

80.8% 19

Average Board Total committee
attendance meetings held

BOARD’S EVALUATION

Our Board annually conducts a comprehensive evaluation
of the performance of the Board of Directors (BoD) and
its committees. This evaluation involves seeking feedback
from the Directors and assessing various criteria such as
strategy, performance management, risk management,
governance and compliance, organisational health and
talent management. Our Independent Directors conduct
a separate evaluation of the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, the Chairman and the Board

as a collective entity. The process follows a predefined
framework and criteria established by the Board to ensure
a thorough and objective assessment of all Directors and
the overall Board performance.

BOARD EXPERTISE

As the ultimate decision-making body, the Board plays a
pivotal role in defining our company's strategic direction
and in managing our affairs. At LTH, we believe that the
diversity and expertise of our Board is essential to our
success. By leveraging this collective wisdom, we can
continue to deliver innovative solutions to our customers
and create long-term value for stakeholders.

Board of Directors Skill Matrix (%)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tenure Member(s)
2-5 years 2
5-10 years 4
10+ years 1

Additionally, for all related-party transactions, we seek
approvals from the Audit Committee and Members of the
Board in cases involving interested Directors or a conflict
of interest. In such instances, the concerned Director
refrains from participating in the Board's discussion on
the item.

POLICIES

We have implemented a robust governance framework
with codes and policies to promote effective stakeholder
management and collaboration.

4 N
Environment

e [ TH Environmental Policy

e | TH Waste Management Corporate Policy

LTH ESG Policy

e | TH Climate Change Policy

Social

e Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
e | TH Human Rights Policy

e | TH Health and Safety Policy

Business 100
Governance
Leadership 100 . ) .
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE e Code of Conduct and Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
Strategy and Planning 82 Blower Policy
Our governance framework is designed to promote we strive to create enduring value for all our _ _
efficient and transparent business practices. Fuelled by ~ stakeholders, i.e. our shareholders, employees, guests, Governance 100 e Risk Management Policy
our unwavering focus on sound governance principles, business partners and society, at large. Financial 82 e Nomination and Remuneration Policy
Sales and Marketing 27 e Dividend Distribution Policy
Ve e Policy on Rotation of Auditors
CODE OF CONDUCT e | TH Supplier Code of Conduct
Aucht Commfitas At LTH, we uphold the principles of fairness, transparency e LTH Stakeholder Relations Policy
and professionalism across all our operations and e L TH Anti-bribery and Anti-corruption Policy
Nomination and < Board of Directors business activities. Our commitment to honesty, e Determination of Material Subsidiary Policy
Remuneration Committee integrity and ethical behaviour is embedded in our . L
~ D : ) ) e Determination of Materiality of Events and
. _ c culture, fostering an environment of trust. To guide our Information Polic
Risk Management Committee < C Board Committees @ > Salanalelar conduct, we have a comprehensive Code of Conduct that Y ‘ o
Stakeholder's E applies to all members of the Board, leadership, senior e Code Of Conduct for Regula.t|on, Monitoring and
EO T S - @) management and employees. It defines the highest Reporting of Trading by Insiders
P < Management standards of business and personal ethics, ensuring e Preservation of Documents and Archival Policy
Corporate Social that eyeryope fL(leﬁI; ;heir duties a”‘j'j reslponsibl’illities (;’Vith e Related Party Transaction Policy
Responsibility Committee integrity. Aligned with our vision and values, the Code . , ,
promotes ethical and transparent processes throughout \. Policy on Board Diversity )
our company, enabling us to manage our affairs in a Access our policies on our website here:
- responsible and accountable manner. https://investors.lemontreehotels.com/#
18 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 19
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Corporate Governance

COMPLIANCE 4 N
In FY23, our BoD and senior Total number of Percentage of persons in
management diligently ensured Segment training and awareness respective category covered by
adherence to regulatory laws, programmes held the awareness programmes
guidelines and specifications

pertaining to our business.

There were zero occurrences of fines BoD 4 100%

or non-monetary sanctions on the

company from Stock EXChanges, | e
SEBI, or any statutory authority in

relation to capital markets violations. KMP

Also, we have had zero proceedings 4 1000/0

filed against us for anti-competitive

acts or antitrust violations.

SUSTAINABILITY TRAINING Employees 0

AND AWARENESS other than BoD 5 100 ) Induction

We prioritise sustainability and KMP 45% Esc

training and awareness to foster a

responsible work culture. We conduct 55% Front Office 101
tailored programmes for the BoD, 8 o o

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 0% sensitisation
and employees, covering areas 800/0 Security

such as business strategy, digital \_

%

transformation, risk management,
ESG principles and safety measures.

As part of our leadership's vision for a
responsible future, we have introduced
the ESG test for all managers and
supervisors, including the corporate
team. This multiple-choice test is based
on our ESG disclosures and serves to
inform and align our leadership with our
environmental, social and governance
principles. Achieving 80% or higher is the
goal for all managers and supervisors,

empowering them to actively contribute to
our mission of creating a positive impact
on our organisation's sustainability journey.
This short 15-minute test equips our leadership
with the knowledge and mindset to drive
positive change throughout the organisation
and beyond.

In FY23, 100% of eligible managers
participated with a

passing rate.

GRIEVANCE MECHANISM

We have established a robust vigil mechanism overseen
by the Chairman of the Audit Committee. In appropriate
and exceptional cases, the Chairman directly addresses
the grievances of victimisation from employees and
directors who utilise the vigil mechanism to report
genuine concerns.

Additionally, we actively monitor and redress all security
holders' grievances, including complaints related to
non-receipt of allotment/refund, transfer/transmission
of shares, share certificates, balance sheets, dividends
and annual reports. Our company is dedicated to
encouraging employees to voice their grievances
through various forums, fostering a mutually beneficial
relationship. In hotels with active trade unions, benefits
are equitably provided to both union and non-union
members as per collective bargaining agreements.
Employees' right to associate with recognised trade
unions is always respected at LTH.

DATA SECURITY GOVERNANCE

We prioritise data security governance with stringent
cyber-security practices, ensuring the protection of
stakeholders' personal information. Our secure database
is designed to safeguard against loss, misuse, wrongful
disclosure, alteration and destruction. Regular reviews
of our security measures enable us to stay current with
business, technology and regulatory changes, ensuring a
robust and reliable data protection framework.

Further, our Data Privacy policy aims to provide
stakeholders with clear information about the personal
data collected by LTH, the purpose of collection and how
it is used, processed, shared and transferred. We ensure
that personal data is retained only for the necessary
duration, aligning with legal, regulatory, contractual, or
statutory obligations. Once the required period elapses,
the data is either deleted or archived in compliance with
applicable obligations.

Employees Part of Associations or Union (%)

4 N
Total permanent employees Male Female
o %
MEMBERSHIPS AND ASSOCIATIONS
cl d.l. y.
Confederation of Indian Industry g .............. .!
Confederation of Indian Industry  Hotel and Restaurant Association Association of Domestic Tour

(CII) of Northern India (HRANTI)

Federation of Hotel & Restaurant Hotel and Restaurant Association
of Western India (HRAWT)

Associations of India (FHRAI)

Esld; 1951

Operators of India (ADTOI)

Indian Association of Tour
Operators (IATO)

| HOTEL ASSOCIATION

OF INDIA

Hotel Association of India (HAI)

South India Hotels and

Restaurants Association (SIHRA)

20 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Integrated Report 2022-23 21

suoday Aloinieis jybisug ajesod.io)

Sjuswialels |epueuly



iy (e L i

RISK MANAGEMENT

Driving Value and Resilience

At LTH, we recognise the importance of balancing risk and
return in the value creation process. Our governance strategy
aims to effectively manage risk exposures in alignment
with our business objectives. To build resilience and foster
strategic growth, we integrate risk management practices mto
our short-term, medium-term and long-term plans.

ggEE=== :

2y

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

4 N
O C A = N N B
Identify Assess Prioritise Mitigate/ Monitor/Review
(By risk category (Measuring within (Based on impact/ Remove/ (Ongoing
along with the defined tolerance likelihood, etc.) Transfer/Accept or periodically)
opportunity. Most levels)
significantly 'The
Risks that Matter")
\_ %

RISK GOVERNANCE AND OVERSIGHT

The BoD at LTH is accountable for overseeing the
effectiveness of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
and Internal Controls (IC).

They are supported by the Audit Committee (AC) and
management team to ensure a robust risk oversight
framework. This helps our company remain protected
and target a healthy growth.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
/ Apex Level \

Foster a risk culture

Annual review of key risks/

Board of Directors L
mitigation plans

Maintain oversight over ERM

Risk Management Committee of the Board

4 N

Chairman: Independent Director

Formulate and review risk Member 1: Chairman, Audit Committee
Member 2: CEO
Member 3: President
Member 4: CFO
Members 5&6: Independent Directors

- /

Executive Risk Committee

Review ERM quarterly

management policy
Delegate oversight to

subcommittees where required

Determine risk appetite

Chairman: CEO
Member 1: CFO
Member 2: President
Upto 3 members: CXOs Monitor/audit

- /

) Present risk mitigation scores
Implement risk

management strategy

Identify new risks

Decide risk rating methodology

KEY RISK
Preventable Risks

Culture/Reputation

e Non-adherence to vision, mission and core values e Not meeting stakeholder expectations
e Unacceptable behaviour e Poor health and safety standards
e FEthical violations e Promoting/accepting discrimination of any kind

People

Poor quality of leadership e Lack of technical skills

Disengagement of employees e Low level of learning and development
Low compensation e Poor/absent performance management
High attrition and incentivisation

Shortage in staffing/absenteeism

Product/Service Quality

e Non adherence to Standard Operating
Procedures/Service Level Agreements
e Low efficiency/effectiveness

e Frequent process changes
e Poor maintenance/repairs

Vendors

e Not meeting contractual obligations
e Uncompetitive pricing
e Non-adherence to quality standards

e Poor delivery
e Misalignment
e Bribing/incentivising the customer

22 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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Risk Management

Preventable Risks

Market

e Inadequate understanding of customer needs e Delay in fulfilment/response
e Unsustainable products/services e Poor customer communication
e Uncompetitive pricing (too high or too low) e Poor/incorrect forecasting

e High carbon emissions e Absence of recycling, reusing, upcycling waste/
e Usage of environmentally unfriendly products/ by products
services like plastic e Inefficient use of natural resources

e Poor/Slow decision making
e Poor leadership

e Overly complex processes
e Absence of succession planning

e (Outdated and obsolescent tech infrastructure e [ 0ss of data
e Lack of cyber security e Breach of data
e Non-digitalised operational practices

e |Low EBITDA/ROCE/ROI

High debt/low debt service coverage e Poor payment process to vendors, i.e. extended
Low liguidity/low solvency buffers outstanding (will impact competitive pricing
Negative/Poor cash flows eventually)

Poor collections/high working capital

High interest rates

e Inadequate controls
e Poor gquality of reviews

e Non-comprehensive internal audits
e Poor follow up/lack of monitoring

e Inappropriate fire safety and
response mechanism

Electrical hazards

Equipment failure

Accident prone areas/behaviour

Unhygienic washing and eating facilities
Inadequate ventilation

Unavailability of first aid

Inadequate maintenance of equipment/buildings,
especially during a temporary shutdown

Blocked emergency evacuation pathways

Strategy Risks

Sustainability

e | oose monitoring of KPIs related to
sustainable practices

e |ack of expertise to evaluate capital
allocation opportunities

e Disintermediation by a 3™ party e Vulnerability to outside ecosystem shock
e Too high a dependence on a vendor
or a customer

External Risks

Natural/Manmade Disaster

e War/Trade war e Lightning events e Injury or death of guest(s)/
e Terror attack e [abour unrest/strikes employee(s)

e Farthquake e Fire

e Epidemic/Pandemic e Theft

e Flood and extreme weather e Civil unrest/riots

e Unreasonable/unanticipated change in
government regulations

e Disintermediation by a 3™ party
e Cyber attack

e [Excess supply of hotel rooms e Reduction in demand e Negative shift in

in the market e Negative shift in market catchment
Loss of revenue consumer preferences e Irrational competition
High inflation e Negative shift in e Disruptive competition

Increase in interest rates
Reduction in liquidity

locational preference

e Change in standards/regulations e Gradual but permanent shift in local weather,
making a destination unattractive

24 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Strategic Vision

LTH prioritises good corporate governance and has implemented
strong control systems towards this. Our leadership values business
integrity and fosters an inclusive environment where everyone
can thrive. This enables us to create sustainable value for all our

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani

Chairman and Managing Director

A

Mr. Willem Albertus
Hazeleger
Director

Mr. Paramartha Saikia
Independent Director

stakeholders.

=

Mr. Niten Malhan
Vice Chairman and Director
Lead Independent Director

Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai
Independent Director

Dr. Arindam Bhattacharya
Independent Director

COMMITTEE DETAILS
(© Chairman (M) Member

® Nomination and Remuneration Committee
® Finance Committee

® Share Allotment Committee

©® Audit Committee

©® Stakeholders Relationship Committee

® Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
® General Management Committee

® Risk Management Committee

Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani
Chairman and Managing Director

GG@@@@

Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical
Engmeermg from Indian Institute
of Technology, New Delhi

e Postgraduate Diploma Degree in
Management from Indian Institute
of Management, Calcutta

e He was a Tata Administrative
Services officer and associated
with the Taj Group of Hotels for
a period of 17 years, including
as Chief Operating Officer,
Business Hotels.

e He worked with A.T. Kearney
Limited, New Delhi as Director.

Mr. Willem Albertus
Hazeleger
Director

M)

e Executive MBA from INSEAD
in France

e Executive MBA from Tsinghua
University School of Economics
and Management in The People’s
Republic of China

e LM from Utrecht University in
the Netherlands

e Served as the Chief Executive
Officer for Asia Pacific of
APG Asset Management, one
of the largest institutional
investors globally.

e Worked as a senior securities and
capital markets lawyer with global
law firms Linklaters and Allen
& Overy

e He has experience in the field of
Investment Management

Mr. Niten Malhan
Vice Chairman and
Independent Director

GG@

Bachelor's Degree in Computer
Science and Engineering from
Indian Institute of Technology,
New Delhi and Post Graduate
Diploma in Management

from Indian Institute of
Management, Ahmedabad

He is the Founder and Managing
Partner of New Mark Advisors LLP,
an investment management firm.

He was the Managing Director
and Co-head of India at Warburg
Pincus India Private Limited,

a global private-equity firm

and he worked as director of
business development at Stratum
8, a Silicon Valley technology
start-up company and an
engagement manager.

He is also a Founder and Trustee
of Plaksha University and has
served as the Vice Chairman of
the Indian Private Equity and
Venture Capital Association.

Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai
Independent Director

G@@@@

Bachelor’s Degree in Law from the
University of Delhi

Master’s Degree in Law from
King’s College, London

Served as the General Counsel of
the Novartis Group of Companies
in India

She served as a Partner in
Amarchand & Mangaldas & Suresh
A. Shroff & Co.

She has over 30 years of
experience across various
legal fields.

Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani
Director

00

e Bachelor's Degree in Arts from
New York University

e He joined as a Non-Executive
Director on our Board on
June 17, 2015.

Dr. Arindam Bhattacharya
Independent Director

QDO

e Alumnus of Indian Institute of
Technology, Kharagpur, Indian
Institute of Management,
Ahmedabad and Warwick
Manufacturing Group, University
of Warwick, UK, where he
completed his Doctorate
of Engineering

e He has served as the Senior
Partner and Director of Boston
Consulting Group (BCG), India and
the co-leader of Bruce Henderson
Institute, BCG's thought
leadership institution.

e He has over 30 years of
experience in the industry and
consulting with a focus on the
industrial sector.

Mr. Paramartha Saikia
Independent Director

GG@@@@

Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
from the University of Delhi

e Master’s Degree in Arts
(Economics) from the University
of Delhi

e He was the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of J. Walter Thompson Sdn.
Bhd., Malaysia.

e He served as the CEO of Iris
Worldwide Integrated Marketing
Private Limited.

e He also served as CEO of
Publicis India.

e He has over 30 years of
experience across the
fields of marketing and
brand development.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Leading with Purpose

Mr. Vikramjit Singh
President

Mr. Jagdish Kumar Chawla
EVP - Projects & Engineering
Services

Mr. Kapil Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Vilas Pawar
CEO - Franchise
Business

Mr. Sumant Jaidka
Senior Vice President -
Operations

Mr. Davander Tomar
EVP - Corporate Affairs

Mr. Mahesh Aiyer

CEO - Carnation Hotels

(the management subsidiary
of LTH)

Mr. Sameer Singh
Senior Vice President -
Operations

Mr. Inder Pal Batra Ms. Harleen Mehta Ms. Aradhana Lal

Senior Vice President - Senior Vice President - Senior Vice President -
Finance Sales Sustainability & ESG

Mrs. Ritu Ranjan Mrs. Sareena Kochar Mr. Rajesh Kumar
Senior Vice President and Senior Vice President - Senior Vice President -
Chief Design Officer Housekeeping Human Resources

Chef Rajeev Janveja Mr. Nikhil Sethi

Senior Vice President and AVP Legal and Group Company
Corporate Chef Secretary and Compliance Officer

\
% .I. .. f v
™ ‘ \ s/
|
~! A
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Management Team

Mr. Vikramjit Singh
President

(M)

e Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce
from Sri Ram College of
Commerce, University of Delhi

e Advance Management Programme
from Harvard

e Postgraduate Diploma Degree
in Hotel Management and
Administration from the Taj Group
of Hotels

e Over 25 years of experience in the
hospitality industry

Mr. Jagdish Kumar Chawla
EVP - Projects & Engineering
Services

e Diploma Degree in Electrical
Engineering from Pusa
Polytechnic, Pusa, New Delhi

e Over 47 years of experience
across engineering, construction
and operations

Mr. Kapil Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

M)

e Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce
from the University of Delhi

e Qualified Chartered Accountant

e Over 25 years of experience
across the fields of accounting,
financing and investing

Mr. Vilas Pawar
CEO - Franchise Business

e Hotel Management Graduate of
IHM, Mumbai

e Over 35 years of experience in the
hospitality industry

Mr. Sumant Jaidka
Senior Vice President - Operations

e Graduate of the Salzburg School
of Hotel Management, Austria

e Over 30 years of experience in the
hospitality industry

Mr. Davander Tomar
EVP - Corporate Affairs

e Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce
and Law from the University
of Delhi

e Master’s Degree in Arts from the
University of Delhi

e He has over 37 years
of experience in the
hospitality industry

Mr. Mahesh Aiyer

CEO - Carnation Hotels

(the management subsidiary
of Lemon Tree Hotels)

e Mechanical Engineer from
Thrissur, Kerala

e Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from
Madras University

e Over two decades of experience in
the hospitality industry

Mr. Sameer Singh
Senior Vice President — Operations

e Oberoi Centre of Learning &
Development (OCLD)

e Bachelor’s Degree in Hotel
Management from Robert
Gordon University

e Over 20 years of experience
in hotel operations and
revenue management

Mr. Inder Pal Batra
Senior Vice President -
Finance

e Chartered Accountant and a
Company Secretary

e Over 25 years of experience
across accounts and finance in the
hospitality and FMCG sectors

Mrs. Ritu Ranjan
Senior Vice President & Chief
Design Officer

e Graduated from Lady Shri Ram
College, New Delhi
e Over 10 years of experience

Chef Rajeev Janveja
Senior Vice President and
Corporate Chef

e Graduate from IHM Lucknow

e Over 40 years of experience in the
hospitality industry

Ms. Harleen Mehta
Senior Vice President -
Sales

e Degree in Hotel Management from
IHM, Gwalior

e MBA from Symbiosis Institute of
Management Studies, Pune

e Over 20 years of experience
in the hospitality industry
across reservations, front office
operations, revenue management,
sales and distribution

Mrs. Sareena Kochar
Senior Vice President -
Housekeeping

e Post Graduate Degree in
Hotel Management from All
India Institute of Management
Studies, Chennai

e Certification as a ‘mentor’ from
XLRI Jamshedpur

e Over 37 years of experience in the
hospitality industry

Mr. Nikhil Sethi
AVP Legal & Group Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer

e Bachelor's degree in Commerce
from University of Delhi

e [aw Graduate from University
of Delhi

e Company Secretary from Institute
of Company Secretaries of India
(ICsI)

e Over 18 years of experience in
legal and secretarial services

Ms. Aradhana Lal

Senior Vice President
- Sustainability & ESG

e B. Com (Hons) from Lady Shri
Ram College, Delhi University

e Masters in Business Administration
from Indian Institute of
Management, Ahmedabad

e TEDX speaker

e Over 30 years of experience
in Sales, Marketing, Corporate
Communications and
Sustainability/ESG across
hospitality and FMCG sectors

Mr. Rajesh Kumar
Senior Vice President -
Human Resources

e Post Graduate Degrees in
Personnel Management and
Industrial Relations, as well
as Public Administration from
Himachal Pradesh University

e Over 22 years of experience in the
hospitality industry

COMMITTEE DETAILS
(M) Member

@ Risk Management Committee
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Seizing Opportunities,
Driving Success

The hospitality industry experienced ups and downs during the
pandemic but showed resilience to make a remarkable comeback
in FY23. Domestic travel played a key role in the sector's recovery.
Aligning with this trend, LTH catered to changing consumer
preferences, ensuring an enjoyable experience for guests.

KEY TRENDS IMPACTING THE INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY PERFORMANCE

The travel and tourism industry experienced significant
fluctuations over two years due to evolving travel
restrictions and the undeniable health risk associated
with a global event of this intensity. This had a far-
reaching impact on hospitality businesses worldwide.
According to the Ministry of Tourism, the share of
India's travel and tourism industry in the country's gross
domestic product (GDP) declined from approximately
5.2% in 2019-20 to a mere 1.1% in 2020-21.

In 2022, the industry made a significant comeback,
driven by the successful vaccination drive within the
country and pent-up demand for leisure travel and
weddings, which contributed to the steady growth in
average room rates (ARRs) and helped recover some
of the losses incurred during the pandemic. Domestic
travel emerged as the dominant force, with Indians
opting for road trips, staycations and workcations.
Lesiure travellers were venturing into lesser-explored
destinations nationwide. Additionally, although slow,
corporate travel also bounced back, further bolstering
the overall recovery of the industry.

Market Positioning by Properties

Key Metrics - India 2022
4 I
59-61%

Occupancy
(15-17 pp) (YoY )

3¥6,000-6,200
(37-39%) (YoY ©)

X3,500-3,700

RevPAR
(89-91%) (YoY %)
\ J

Source: HVS Anarock Report

In 2022, mid-scale hotels continued to dominate the
market, accounting for 48% of all signed properties. The
hotel industry experienced a significant structural shift,
with substantial investments directed towards expanding
the mid-scale segment to cater to the needs of the
growing middle-class.

Year Economy (%) Mid-scale (%) Upscale (%) Luxury (%)
2022 11 48 34 7
2021 11 55 25 8
2020 13 49 31 7
2019 20 51 23 6

Source: HVS Anarock Report

With over 200 G20 meetings scheduled across
55 destinations in India during its G20 presidency till
November 2023, the Indian hotel sector is expected to

experience a substantial increase in demand, particularly
in the cities where the meetings will take place.

\
Key Trend Our Response
Staycations to Remain Attractive
Staycations have seen a rise due to their cost- Staycation packages and competitive rates are
effectiveness and the convenience of taking short offered for short breaks in nearby destinations.
breaks close to home. Hotels are also catering
to Work From Hotel (WFH) guests by launching
attractive offers in a growing hybrid work scenario.
Personalised Guest Experience
The hospitality industry is embracing personalisation Customer preferences are tracked and repeat
to meet the preferences of today’s travellers, visits by a guest are welcomed with recognition,
especially millennials and Gen Zs. Hotels use data and warm, friendly and personalised services.
and technology to offer customised services such
as personalised activity recommendations and room
choices, to cater to discerning travellers.
Rise of 'Bleisure' Travel
Post the pandemic, flexible work arrangements have All LTH's business hotels today cater to leisure
transformed business travel and has seen a rise in and bleisure travellers and guide guests to great
'bleisure’ trips and workcations. Business /hotels now local experiences.
offer tour packages and wellness breaks to cater to
executives blending work and leisure along with their
partners or families.
Shift Towards Sustainable Practices

The hospitality industry embraces sustainability On the sustainability front, LTH currently sources
with eco-friendly practices influenced by eco- 10-15% of its energy from renewable sources.
conscious travellers and India's net zero carbon We have received IGBC certifications for 25% of
goal. Hotels are adopting green energy, energy our owned/leased hotels and have implemented
efficiency and sustainable sourcing to minimise their several initiatives that have resulted in a saving
carbon footprint. of 8-10% of energy and water. These aspects

become a reason for environmentally conscious

guests to choose LTH hotels for their stay.

Advancements in Technology
The hospitality industry adopts technology for During the pandemic, LTH moved over to digital
improved customer experience, where mobile menus, ordering and bill payment, thereby
apps simplify reservations and accessibility to simplifying the process for our guests. We have
experiences. Data intelligence enables personalised uploaded 360-degree virtual tours for our key
marketing and virtual and augmented reality offer hotels, to enable our teams to conduct digital
immersive features such as virtual hotel tours and show-arounds for guests.
destination explorations.
%
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VALUE CREATION MODEL

Sowing Growth, Cultivating Value

Financial Capital

Manufactured Capital

Human Capital

Social and
Relationship Capital

Intellectual Capital

Natural Capital

” Equity: %1,413.42 Crores No. Of Hotels: 881 Employees: 3,2252 _ G Trademarks Energy Consumption:
I5 Gross Debt: ¥1,746 Crores Total Gross Asset Base: Training Man Hours per M 2 SuppI!ers. 6,735 Registered: 160 160457.25 GJ
o 40+23 Employee: 16.28 CSR Expe':;jllture: Emission Intensity:
= Employees Trained: 2,530 et LELUE 0.11191 TCO,e/sq m
Water Consumption:
742309 KL
Business Strategic Action
n nas : Yo il
h 0000 ; il
- eNN? N
S Development of Ownership of Growth Strengthening
[ - - -
E ESG Vision 2026 Hotels Hotels Balance Sheet Risk Management
<
o VEIES D) 2\
> : 23
O .. \B & O\—/O
Operation of Hotels Sales and Future-ready Accelerating ESG
Marketing of Hotels Efforts
e Enhanced e Provided a High- e Highly e Improved Relationships e Enhanced Positive
ﬂ Shareholder Value Qualit_y Product, _ Committed Workforce with Customers, Business Impact on the
— e Delivered Profitable and Sustainable Services and e Improved Retention Partners and Community Natural Environment
o :
|5 Consistent Growth M-em-o-rable Experiences o Femgeed o5 A
o * Significant Value Great Place To Work
to Customers
Total Revenue: Best-in-class Customer Turnover Rate’: 45.20 Retail Net Promoter Score: Bookings through Share of Renewable Energy:
" ¥878.6 Crores Service and a Higher Base of Diversity: 13% 77% Digital Channels: 10.97%
w  EBITDA*: 3455.93 Crores LYl Ui Employee Satisfaction Score : 1,318 Rooms Per Day (RPD) Reduction in Energy Intensity
CZ) PAT: ¥140.54 Crores Loyalty Programme Members: 87% (internal) through Brand Website and over FY19 baseline: 10%
E EPS: ¥1.45 tee el 93% (external) Online Travel Agents Reduction in Water Intensity
8 RoCE: 11.20% 'gz;cal N8umber oif S over FY19 baseline: 15%
e Reduction in GHG Emissions
Intensity over FY19 baseline:
19%
EBITDA i before a stamp dut Retired IT Assets Reused and
1 r u
expense of 4.8 Crores Py Recycled: 3,097 kg/year
1 Owned/leased, managed and franchised hotels 2 Owned/leased hotels only 3 Under development
34 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 35
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STRATEGIC ACTION

Raising the Bar

Our strategic priorities have helped us develop a competitive edge
for LTH within the industry, while consistently delivering superior
returns, and sustainable products and services.

Growth

Launch new hotels in tier-I, tier-II and tier-III cities

Focus on revenue and profitability from operations and on new acquisitions

Progress in FY23

e The managed inventory was ~3,300 rooms, while
the total inventory reached 8,382 rooms.

e Our presence in the Mumbai market is expanding
with the upcoming opening of the 669-room owned
Aurika, Mumbai Skycity in CY23.

e As of 315t March 2023, our operational inventory

comprised 88 hotels with 8,382 rooms and our
pipeline comprised 42 hotels with 3,285 rooms.

e Over the past two years, we have been focused on
cost rationalisation and ARR recovery on a like-to-
like basis. This resulted in an impressive expansion
of EBITDA* margin percentage, increasing to 51.9%
in FY23 compared to 35.5% in FY22.

Priorities for FY24 Strategic Priorities Capitals Impacted

©.@

e Stable 50% EBITDA*

\ _
- F' h o = = L™ rin L fa v
=% S BT . by

Mol Fe L
& =

J

Strengthening Balance Sheet

Strategic capex deployment to increase efficiencies and higher RoE

‘ Our key priority continues to be strengthening our financial position by reducing
debt and increasing cash flows

= Progress in FY23

e A sum of ¥174.55 Crores was invested in Aurika,
Mumbai Skycity and Lemon Tree Mountain Resort,
Shimla as capital expenditure.

e Our cash profit in FY23 stood at *237.1 Crores vs.
a negative cash profit of *33.0 Crores in FY22.

e Furthermore, reductions in our average cost
e The debt-to-equity ratio in FY23 increased to 1.24 of borrowings resulted in a 108 bps increase
from 1.21 in FY22. over FY22.

Priorities for FY24 Strategic Priorities Capitals Impacted

—— | e Debt-free ‘ 40%

— g e Significant cash flow = =z

:(4/ . ;: - : — S — g _ = =

»_J,l"’/ *EBITDA Margin %-for FY23 and FY22 is before a stamp duty expense of ¥4.8 Crores and QS.B Crores, respectively “\,,-‘f | F
36 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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1 Asset Light Growth

<

\For the progress for

Future-ready

Digital transformation for better reach, superior customer experience and loyalty,
higher business efficiency

Create a productive workforce by focusing on talent management

Progress in FY23

Leveraging technology for improved customer
outreach and effectiveness, as well as to boost
business efficiency. LTH currently uses Protel, Touche
and SAP. The aim of the digital transformation
initiative is to align the digital ecosystem and enable
seamless interaction between platforms.

The enhanced data available will help in
decision-making for:

e Talent management and key result area
(KRA) system

e Optimising training programmes
e FElevating the leadership development process

Priorities for FY24 Strategic Priorities Capitals Impacted

00 &6:=286

e Automated processes

e Data driven decisions
e Scalable tech stack

Accelerating ESG Efforts

Thriving communities and sustainable business growth with the least adverse environmental
impact. Driving the ESG Vision and targets for 2026 with a governance structure and annual
implementation plans

Progress in FY23

e Renewable power agreements for more owned/
leased hotels

e Investments made towards technological initiatives
for energy efficiency; bottled water (purified water ¥
e Reduced power and water usage per

unit occupancy plastic water bottles i

Priorities for FY24

e Moving towards 100% certified green buildings
(owned/leased hotels)

Capitals Impacted

o (@

Ecologically sustainable operations
Diversity and inclusion

High-quality governance and Board oversight

Digital Transformation Retail Acceleration Loyalty Expansion Capital Recycling

Cost structure, refer to Expenses in MD&A on page 106

o

\»4\

v—i gratedee
- ,-Q\

t’2022 ‘23 5.

\SX\L e

Vel
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~ "
CUSTOMERS
Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs
Our customers are key stakeholders who choose e Direct feedback from e Upgradation of the
LTH as their preferred hotel brand and experience our customers: Guest data privacy policy

our service through multiple touchpoints.

Our revenues are directly linked with the trust
and relationships that we nurture with them.
Our brand offering evolves based on their
ongoing feedback.

Satisfaction Tracking e 77% - Retail NPS

System (GSTS) at e 87% positive

hi@lemontreehotels.com feedback in customer
e Online Relationship satisfaction surveys

Management (ORM)

on digital platforms,

including Tripadvisor,

Makemytrip.com,

Booking.com, etc.

e E-mailers and newsletters

Frequency of engagement

e Daily
e Need-based

suoday Aloinieis 1ybisuj ajesod.ao)
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REGULATORY BODIES/GOVERNMENT

Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs

e Zero incidents of
non-compliance

We seek the support of regulatory bodies and the e One-on-one meetings
central/state/local governments through ongoing e Government portals
engagement. The goal is to comply with applicable and emails
laws and regulations.

Frequency of engagement

e Quarterly

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS

EMPLOYEES

Why we need to engage How we engage

Our employees create guest experiences that Town hall meetings

e 16.28 training man

Why we need to engage

Qur investors and shareholders are interested in

How we engage KPIs

e Quarterly presentations e 111%b revenue growth

exceed expectations. The service delivery by our
employees drives the LTH brand.

Team-building exercises

Fresh-eyes discussion e 13% ODI employees
Weekly engagement out of total no.

chats of employees

hours per employee

Frequency of engagement

the success and sustainability of our business.
They have established the foundation by providing
capital for our business to grow. The motivation
to meet/exceed the expectations of our investors
inspires us to continuously improve.

e Annual meetings
e Feedback on
annual disclosures

Frequency of engagement

in FY23

e Total shareholder
return of 0.10
(return on equity ratio)

e Quarterly
e Weekly e Need-based
e Monthly
e Quarterly
e Annually
\ J J
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Stakeholder Engagement

4 @ ™ - @ ~

OWNERS AND PARTNERS NGOs
Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs
Owners and partners who own hotels that e Regular engagement e Portfolio expansion: NGOs help us deliver on our commitment to being e Regular meetings e Trained and upskilled
are managed and franchised by LTH are also e Bilateral meetings Added six new an equal opportunity employer by supporting us in e Specific engagement 50 employees
responsible for maintaining our brand standards. hotels in FY23 selecting and training candidates with disabilities events with intellectual/
This asset-light growth model is critical to FREGILEINE) O GTEEERTIE: and those from economically/socially marginalised e Annual reports developmental
our business success as it ensures speedy e Need-based backgrounds. Both segments comprise ODIs. disability or autism
geographic penetration. e Quarterly Moving forward, they will play a pivotal role in Frequency of engagement (in the post-pandemic
e Annually supporting the designing and implementation of our e Annually environment)
CSR initiatives. e Need-based

...................................................................................... SUPPLIERSANDVENDORS

Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs LOCAL COMMUNITIES
Engaging regularly with our suppliers and vendors e Informal interactions 0 16,36 L0tal |l
is critical for our business, to ensure that the e Periodic reviews local suppliers Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs
i h li A | li i : o
E;Zgjcstfaiggrzesmces e}y GIZIVER 10 US MESE e? O il Sipiplier SUEES We engage with local communities to understand e Engagement through e CSR spend of
' Frequency of engagement their needs. This helps us deliver greater impact NGO partners ¥7.15 Lakhs
through curated social welfare programmes.
e Annually Frequency of engagement
o Need-based
e Quarterly
e Annually
CONTRACTORS =3
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (o@o)
Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs e
We are also supported by an outsourced workforce o Informal interactions e Zerocasesof | | A L e e ]
in prowdmg .quall|t.y services to our custqmers. ° Ong-on-ong meetings sexual harassment Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs
This makes it critical for us to engage with e Periodic reviews e Zero cases o _ _
our contractors who ensure the availability of of discrimination Industry associations serve as a platform for us to e Multilateral meetings e N.A.
trained staff. Frequency of engagement understand business trends and opportunities and
e Annually collaborate with our peers in the travel and tourism AREIIEE @ CREREme:
e Need-based industry to provide inputs to relevant government e Annually
bodies regarding policy formulation. e Need-based
ONLINE TRAVEL AGENCIES/PORTALS
Why we need to engage How we engage KPIs e
Online travel agencies support us in customer e Online access to e 72 Tripadvisor MEDIA
acquisition alond with providing us insiahts into feedback from Travellers' |
consumer behaviour and decision-making criteria. travellers/guests Choice Awards Why we need to engage I CREEGE S
Reviewing customer feedback on their platforms is e One-on-one meetings We leverage our relationship with media for e Press releases e 33 press releases
an important aspect of our business. with the management brand building, engagement with marginalised e Press notes and briefings e 49 key media coverage
of OTAs communities on different initiatives as well as
. Frequency of engagement
Frequency of engagement release press notes on hotel launches, special
promotions and offers. * Quarterly
e Daily e Annually
e Need-based
\ % o %
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MATERIALITY MATRIX

® High Importance

®

Medium Importance

Material Topics and Relevance to Stakeholders

Material Topics

Relevance for our stakeholders

Low Importance

Material Topics

OE oS eG

Relevance for our stakeholders
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o Health and Well-Being 2 & @ Diversity and Inclusion 2 2 @& () 177 < @ [=
€@ water Management ARG @[] ® Talent Management NP
and Retention ST
eCommitmenttO ARG OB®R] @S tainable Supply Chai 5O P
i 5 ustainable Su ain (=
Human Rights S0nm pply Yo
As a responsible and sustainable business, it is crucial We conducted the materiality assessment in FY21, based e Regulatory Compliance <X @& & (07 @ [>] 71 @ Waste Management A RE
to analyse and address the significant factors that affect  on GRI and SASB guidelines. We assessed stakeholder
our performance, and |mpac't stakeholders perceonns pr|or|t|§s and |dent.|ﬁed lcr|t|ca| issues for our business. ' NI @ Energy Management 2 RE DG E]
and decisions. Through continuous engagement with Employing a quadripartite approach, we ensured e Ethics and Transparency ]
our stakeholders, we identify material issues that shape = comprehensive coverage of material sustainability = _
our strategy development, corporate governance and issues, enabling us to make informed decisions and drive ® Local Community AEOOE]
reporting procedures. positive impact. @ Customer Delight RGP & X ] Development
Biodiversity Protection Q& 19
MATERIALITY PROCESS @ B e Fenition 2 5 5 ® y A& RM
e . . C . . Management
Identification Categorisation Prioritisation Validation @® Climate Change 28O NOE]
Developed an inclusive Categorised each topic Created a materiality Collaborated with ] o e
topic list by incorporating under E, Sor G to matrix and management and an e Economic Performance 2 & &5 [2]
GRI and SASB guidelines : highlight the material ESG stakeholder priority external validation
and conducting aspect of significance to map on the basis of agency to ensure a e Data Privacy A&A&S 1
peer benchmarking the company stakeholder consultations fair and well-rounded
assessment of o &
i (— Employees Regulatory /?\ Owners and Contractors Local Media
\_ relevantissues ) ﬁ Bodies/ Ra Partners & Q Communities —
Government
O
Customers 7~ Investors and Suppliers and 5 NGOs ‘o Industry == Online Travel
@ @ Shareholders Vendors O Associations Qﬁ Agencies
(OTAs)/Portals
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(%5 Thekkady, Kerala 1B

Reshaping Business through
Sustainability

At the centre of our ESG approach is our commitment to creating
sustained value for all stakeholders. We have a strong commitment to
ethical business practices and strive to positively impact our suppliers,

community workforce and society at large. Our business strategy

incorporates significant ESG aspects, which are actively applied
year-round in our operational and upcoming hotels.

Our ESG Vision FY26 aligns with the United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs) and

we have established specific targets to realise our aspirations.

3 @

ENVIRONMENT SOCIAL

We are focused on becoming Our emphasis is on the
more energy-efficient, adopting development of people, especially
renewable energy, mitigating creating an inclusive and equal
and adapting to climate opportunity workplace and
change, conserving water and empowering local communities.

reducing waste.

( ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE )

ESG Taskforce

Develops the ESG strategy,
policies and practices and makes
suitable recommendations
to senior leadership for
effective implementation

The Board

Sets the vision for meeting the
ESG requirements and oversees
the effectiveness of ESG
strategy implementation

POLICY ARCHITECTURE

e ESG Policy e Diversity and Inclusion Initiative
e Environment Policy e Growth of Employee Strength
e Climate Change Policy e Career Path and

Employee Growth

Waste Management Policy
e Management of Labor Relations

e Policy and Workers’ Rights
e CSR Policy

e Health and Safety Policy
e Human Rights Policy

GOVERNANCE

Our commitment is towards
building an ethical and
transparent organisation.

Management

Implements ESG-related
initiatives and programmes,
and monitors and reports
ESG performance

Nomination and
Remuneration Policy

Code of Conduct

Data Privacy Policy

Risk Management Policy
Whistle-blower Policy

Prevention of Sexual
Harassment Policy

Anti-bribery and
Anti-corruption Policy

Stakeholder Relationship Policy
Supplier Code of Conduct

WS

Lemon Tfeé-HoteIS'Limitéd

Integrated Report 2022-23
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Y
5 Swimming Poo/ at Aurika, Coorg

P
" —

0 i (o) k
15 /0 _:5:_ Target 7.3 10 /0 On trac

Reduction in energy
consumption EEe® Target 12.2
(intensity based) over ©OH Target 12.8

FY19 baseline 13
@ Target 13.2

RENEWABLE ENERGY

Reduction in energy consumption
(intensity based) over FY19 baseline

50% == - 10.97% Delayed
RE usage, out of total energy
consumption. The kWh supplied to
us through Open Access (OA) was
unstable through the year and was
down to zero in some months in Delhi

Renewable energy
pry=—

usage ey
QO Target 12.2

WATER
Target FY26 SDGs Targeted Progress in FY23 Status
15% On track

100/0 Target 6.4

Reduction in water

consumption (intensity LW Target 12.2
based) over ®O8 Target 12.5
FY19 baseline 13 g

@ Target 13.2

Reduction in water consumption
(intensity based) over FY19 baseline

GREEN BUILDINGS

Target FY26 SDGs Targeted Progress in FY23 Status
1000/0 “‘E Target 11.b 250/0 On track
nEEE

Certified green
buildings (hotels)

Certified green buildings

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Target FY26 SDGs Targeted Progress in FY23 Status
300/0 Target 8.5 130/0 On track
Target 8.6

ODIs in the ODIs in the workforce

workforce

Target 8.8

10 Wi

=18 Target 10.4

GENDER DIVERSITY

150/0 Target 8.5 140/0 On track

Target 8.8 .
Women across the Women in the
workforce workforce

30% 14.3%

Women on the Board

Women Directors

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

and Maharashtra ko st S oot oS sats L
N.A. On track
Target 4.7 ?171,763,901
GHG EMISSIONS .
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. Investment for sustainable
Target FY26 SDGs Targeted Progress in FY23 Status Target 16.b development
40% = - 19% On track ~ /
Reduction in GHG Reduction in GHG emissions Footnote
emissions (intensity =8 Target 12.2 (intensity based) over FY19 baseline. + The FY19 data for Red Fox Hotel, Dehradun, is from October  In the GHG calculations of FY23 and FY19, we have
based) over (@0 Target 12.8 Reduced RE usage impacted 2018 to March 2019, i.e., 6 months onIy,_ as the hgtel opened in not incIud_ed emissions from refrigerants as well as the _
. .. October. The data for Lemon Tree Premier, Pune is from January consumption of petrol, HSD and CNG of owned cars, as this
FY19 baseline GHG emissions 2019 to March 2019, i.e., 3 months only, as the hotel opened in data was not available in FY19
J January. This impacts the comparison of FY23 to FY19
46 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 47
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SOCIAL

Employee Breakup by Levels and Gender

Engaging With Care

: — Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
and Responsibility Senior Management w7 s - s s =
Mid-Management 639 64 703 590 51 641 664 69 733

? . _ Executive 457 49 506 367 31 398 384 43 427
At LTH, we are driven by the shared vision of empowering

1ybisuj ajesod.ao)

communities and making a lasting impact, right from our dedicated Associate 1,536 187 1723 1,428 163 1,591 1,690 212 1,902
employees who deliver exceptional services to our valued consumers, Trainees/Apprentices 122 36 158 73 8 81 64 36 100
to our long-term partnerships with suppliers and partners. Total 2,802 343 3145 2,500 261 2761 2,854 - .
New Hires

(%) 4 o

52 EMPLOYEE CARE INITIATIVE: 7

I AM LEMON TREE v

37 L g

<

Employee care is at the heart of our

'T Am Lemon Tree' initiative, through

which we continuously strive to connect
with our people. This programme,

spanning all hotels and work levels, instils
a sense of pride, ownership and customer
centricity. As part of the Champion's

Code of Affirmations, we embrace warm
greetings, maintain attractive spaces and
uphold a cheerful and refined demeanour.
Treating individuals uniquely but with equal
importance, inspiring confidence and taking
ownership as solution providers are integral
to our values. We excel in communication,

FY22 FY23

Bl & /\urika, Coorg g

OUR PEOPLE OUR PEOPLE STRATEGY knowledge, persuasion and in winning back
We prioritise employee well-being and foster an inclusive ~ We follow a flat organisational structure, fostering our guests, all of which contribute to our
and diverse work culture. We promote talent through individual involvement and team spirit by minimising commitment to excellence.

upskilling and cross-training programmes and provide hierarchical gaps between leaders and the team

equal opportunities without discrimination. Our Human members. With a diverse workforce, we prioritise talent Champion's Code of Affirmations
Rights Policy emphasises respecting and protecting irrespective of gender, special needs or background. e I greet promptly and warmly. At the start
the rights of every individual. Our focus on health, Our strategic recruitment approach emphasises and at the end

safety and employee engagement further reinforces hiring young talent at various levels, bringing in fresh .

our commitment to a building an energising workplace. perspectives and contributing to the continuous growth o I keep my space (and myself) pleasing

and development of the organisation. and attractive

Total E | by Cont T e I am cheerful and refined in my conduct
otal Employees by Lontract Type e I treat different people differently, but just

Full-time Employees Contractual Employees Non-employed Workers as importantly

3,225 e I inspire confidence

3,145 496 1,377 e I take ownership. I am a solution provider

1,224
2,761 413

L 153 e [ am just as pleasing over the telephone

e I am knowledgeable and informative
e [ persuade, I suggest, I sell
e I win back irate guests

Fy21 FY22 FY23 Fy21 FY22 FY23 Fy21 FY22 FY23

N J
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Social

Diversity and Inclusion

We have remained dedicated to being an equal
opportunity employer for close to two decades
and actively foster diversity and inclusion.
Our goal is to provide equitable employment
opportunities to ODIs, including Employees with
Disability (EwDs) and those from Economically/
Socially Marginalised backgrounds (EcoSocs).
By integrating ODIs into our workforce, we
empower them to lead fulfilling lives with dignity.
Our diversity and inclusion policy seeks to
cultivate a culture of trust, commitment and
sustainable socio-economic development among
our employees. Further, we continuously maintain
a male:female wage ratio of 1:1.

FY26 TARGET

30%
ODIs
in the workforce

15%

Women across the workforce

FY23 PROGRESS

13%

ODIs in the workforce

14%

Women across the workforce

EMPLOYEE DISTRIBUTION BY AGE AND GENDER

FY21 FY22 FY23
Male Female  Total Male Female  Total Male Female  Total
< 30 years 1,323 209 1,532 1,067 158 1,225 1,340 229 1,569
30-50 years 1,402 127 1,529 1,345 96 1,441 1,392 134 1,526
> 50 years 77 7 84 88 7 95 122 8 130
Total 2,802 343 3,145 2,500 261 2,761 2,854 371 3,225

EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITY COUNT

IN FY23
Autism 4
Down Syndrome (DS) 12
® 38 Hearing Impairment (HI) 2
012
Gender Diversity at Corporate Offices in FY23 Locomotor Handicap (LH) 1
Orthopedically Handicapped (OH) 33
Speech and Hearing Impaired (SHI) 191
Speech and Language Impairment
(L) 6
@74
®26 Visually Impaired (VI) 1

Gender Diversity at Senior Level in FY23

® 383
017

Gender Diversity at Hotels in FY23
(%)

®39
®11

® Male ® Female

Number of ODI Employees

® 250 Total EwDs
® 174 Total EcoSocs

13%

Total ODI Workforce

Eemon Tree Hotels Limited

Integrated Report 2022-23 53
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Social

/
EMPOWERING SPECIAL MINDS, FOSTERING INCLUSIVE LEARNING

Our co-developed inclusive internship model, i.e. the Intellectual and Development Disability (IDD)
internship programme and the Autism internship programme, are in collaboration with specialist
NGOs and benefit young adults with IDD (Muskaan PAEPID in Delhi/NCR; Mann Centre in Mumbai;
Diya Foundation in Bengaluru) and autism (Action for Autism in Delhi/NCR; Heritage Xperiential
School and Evoluer Solutions in Gurugram). The programme follows a 'Train and then Hire' approach,
focusing on pre-employment training, a six-month internship and extended learning when needed.
The job mapping and role definition were carefully crafted for IDD and autism, resulting in 50
successful traineeships over 14-15 batches, across multiple hotels. After witnessing the growth and
success of our IDD internship programme in FY23, we expanded our efforts to enable more special
youth to become a part of the LTH employee base.

e Bridging the Gap: After a two-and-a-half-
year break, we successfully facilitated the
return and re-training of LTH's talented
employees with IDD. This effort was focused
on 25 of them re-entering the workforce with
newfound confidence and consolidation of
their skills.

e Expanding Horizons: The introduction of
the IDD internships in Mumbai and Bengaluru,
in collaboration with new NGO partners -
Mann Centre (Mumbai) and Diya Foundation
(Bengaluru), was a significant step in fostering
inclusivity of the most marginalised group. By
providing them with training opportunities and
mainstream employment, we help create a
balanced workplace, foster diverse talent and
give opportunities to those with limited access.

Through these initiatives, we are not only making strides in creating a more inclusive workplace, but
also inspiring a positive change in society. The IDD and Autism internship programmes demonstrate
the true value and power of bringing in diverse talent. Together, we are fostering an environment of
respect, understanding and progress for all.

SDG Target
Ll 8.5 By 2030, achieve full and productive Ll 10.4: Adopt policies, especially fiscal,
ﬁ/" employment and decent work for all women ALl wage and social protection policies and

and men, including for young people and
persons with disabilities and equal pay for
work of equal value

progressively achieve greater equality

8.6: By 2020, substantially reduce the
proportion of youth not in employment,
education or training

AdNLS 3SVD

-

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES, ENABLING SUCCESS

Through our Career Growth programme,

we strive to empower our specially abled team
members to grow further in their careers.

In FY23, we promoted two IDD team members.
Formerly Guest Service Associates (GSAs) in
Food and Beverage service, their promotion to
Guest Service Supervisors (GSSs) marked a
pivotal moment.

With the support of partner NGO Muskaan
PAEPID, we are crafting a specialised
development programme to enhance their
leadership and professional skills, ensuring
continued success. We are committed to
inclusivity and strive to create a workplace where
all team members can thrive and excel.

SDG Target

Ll 8.5 By 2030, achieve full and productive employment and decent work for all women and men,
ﬁ/‘ including for young people and persons with disabilities and equal pay for work of equal value

AdNLS 3SVD

-
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Social

Learning and
Development (L&D)

Employee training and leadership development
are of utmost importance at LTH. These play
a pivotal role in achieving brand consistency,
elevating customer service and inspiring and
leading the team. Our vision revolves around
nurturing talent at every level, with an emphasis
on leadership development and on building
the pipeline for the hotel level management
team. Through continuous efforts, we aim to
foster unwavering customer focus and service
excellence. Our comprehensive approach includes
new employee training, job-specific coaching and
advanced training for senior staff.

In FY23, L&D's primary focus was on essential
department 101s, customer service and
ESG training, along with a strategic effort to
strengthen and reinforce the understanding of
department SOPs across all hotels. As a result,
the number of non-mandatory sessions offered
during this period were fewer.

X5,555

L&D expenditure per employee

16.28

Training man-hours per employee

Total Training Hours

No. of Employees
Receiving Training

14,508
5,149
3,643
2,090 7,543
2,530
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY21 FY22 FY23
Average Number of
Training Days per Average Cost of
Employee Training per Employee
®)
5,555
2.02
1 1 1,268
542
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY21 FY22 FY23

/
CULTIVATING TOMORROW'’S LEADERS

To nurture aspiring department heads and assistant hotel
managers, we devised an initiative called Potential Leadership
Development Programme. It aims to empower participants with
essential managerial skills, sales expertise and a strong sense
of ownership and responsibility. Through engaging workshops
and intensive training, we foster a culture of continuous growth,
propelling our team members to become confident leaders

and champions of customer service. In FY23, we trained and
empowered 60 department heads and hotel managers to create
a future generation of effective leaders.

4.7: By 2030, ensure that all learners acquire the
knowledge and skills needed to promote sustainable
development, including, among others, through education
for sustainable development and sustainable lifestyles,
human rights, gender equality, promotion of a culture of
peace and non-violence, global citizenship and appreciation
of cultural diversity and of culture’s contribution to
sustainable development

. )

AdNLS 3SVD

No. of Employees
Receiving Training
(excluding Mandatory
Learning)

1,067
790
354
Fy21 FY22 FY23

L&D Playbook:
A Comprehensive Guide

to L&D Efficiency

The L&D Playbook serves as

a complete guide for the L&D
team, ensuring uniformity and
a focus towards common goals.
It covers essential areas, such
as an overview of LTH and its
leadership teams, learning
pedagogy, programmes and
the L&D team structure.
Additionally, it outlines cluster
and hub allocation, roles and
responsibilities, training plans
and processes to be followed
for planning, conducting and
reviewing training sessions,
etc. Other aspects encompass
data management, a training
calendar, travel plans, content

reviews, grooming and behaviour

guidelines when staying at LTH

hotels. The playbook streamlines

operations and cultivates an
efficient culture in L&D practices
within the organisation.

Integrated Report 2022-23
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Social

Talent Management

Our employees play a vital role in driving our
business growth and enhancing our brand
reputation. To ensure their empowerment,

productivity and retention, our talent
management team places great emphasis
on nurturing and supporting our workforce.

Our employee growth programme identifies
exceptional individuals, namely Super High

Achievers (SHAs) and High Potential (HiPot)

Employees, who exhibit the necessary attitude

and competencies to evolve into leaders over

time. The programme serves as a motivating

force, encouraging employees to achieve their
full potential.

Our employee job engagement score stands
at 87%, as assessed by the Employee
Satisfaction Tracking System (ESTS) and
93% as per the Great Place To Work system.
These figures shed light on our work culture
and reflect the positive level of engagement
and satisfaction among our employees. We are
committed to fostering an environment that
encourages our workforce to thrive and feel
fulfilled in their roles, contributing to their overall
productivity and job satisfaction.

EMPLOYEES RECEIVING PERFORMANCE AND
CAREER DEVELOPMENT REVIEWS IN FY23
(%)

& & 88

Male Female Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

We are committed to the well-being and security of our
employees, offering a comprehensive range of benefits

to ensure their needs are met. All permanent employees
receive 100% coverage for health insurance and accident
insurance. We understand the importance of supporting our
employees through their different life stages, e.g. providing

maternity benefits for female employees, daycare facilities,

Celebrating Employee Empowerment:
Great Place To Work achievement

As an organisation, we deeply value the satisfaction
and engagement of our employees, which is why we
actively participate in the Great Place To Work (GPTW)
assessment. It involves an online survey, completed

by 5,000 LTH employees and a culture audit, which
reviews all our HR and people practices. GPTW scores
us on five criteria: Credibility, respect, fairness, pride
and camaraderie. Additionally, they evaluate key people
practice areas like trust, leadership effectiveness,
innovation, gender equality and more. We are delighted
to have achieved a score of 93 and been ranked

within the Top 50 companies in 2022, a testament to
our commitment to creating a workplace where our
employees feel valued and inspired.

(@)
etc. In FY23, five employees availed maternity leave. INNOVATIVE PERFORMANCE §
We have expanded health insurance coverage, offering e 2
double the sum previously insured, at each work level, to =
those not covered under the Employees' State Insurance We have implemented a new Performance
Scheme. To further strengthen our employees' financial Management System (PMS), that has redefined
security, we have introduced a group term life policy for success for our employees in Band 4 and
all, providing an assured sum between %10 and 15 Lakhs in above. The policy's objective is clear: to ensure
the unfortunate event of an employee's death during their effective performance evaluation and growth
tenure with us. Our personal accident policy also provides across all organisational levels. The PMS
support to an employee's family during times of need. includes measurable Key Responsibility Area

(KRA) scores, tasks aligned with our vision, and
insightful manager feedback on behavioural
Benefits in FY23 Employees Covered (%) competencies. The transparency of the process
PE 100 inspires employees to exceed expectations.
Regular reviews and transparent variable pay
Gratuity 75 disbursement create a culture of excellence.
ESI 67
RETAINING OUR TALENT POOL
In FY23, we experienced a total workforce turnover SDG Target
for our owned/leased hotels of 52%. Our retention rate i 10.4: Adopt policies, especially fiscal,
stood at 48% for male and 34% for female full-time I!!Il wage and social protection policies and
employees. Additionally, 66% of the new hires were progressively achieve greater equality
below the age of 30. g J
Turnover Rate! No. of New Hires New Hires in FY23 by Age Group
(%) (%)
31.86 45.80 45.20 246 1,032 1,664
;
L |

D 20.32
I 553

7.07
I :5.08
P 28.00

o <
Q o S o1 Above 50 years
= . o . ®33 Between 50 to 30 years
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY21 FY22 FY23 ® 66 Under 30 years
® SHA @ HiPot ® Total ® Female ® Male ® Total

Owned/Leased Hotels only

Integrated Report 2022-23
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Social

Health, Safety and
Well-being

Health and safety are paramount at LTH.
Our vision is zero incidents and occupational
health hazards for employees, contractors,
guests, communities and the public. We have
implemented a comprehensive Occupational
Health and Safety (OHS) Management System
that covers all our employees and hotels. This
system ensures that potential work-related
hazards are identified and risks are assessed
routinely, as well as on a non-routine basis.

Furthermore, LTH provides access to non-
occupational medical and healthcare services
for employees through health/personal accident
and life insurance coverage. The well-being of
employees is prioritised by conducting health
camps, workshops and awareness programmes.
Our hotel designs incorporate various health and
safety measures, such as fire safety equipment,
evacuation procedures and energy-efficient
features, creating a safe and comfortable
environment. In FY23, we had 15 cases of
recordable work-related injuries and two cases
of high-consequence work-related injury or

ill health.

HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND
MITIGATION

At LTH, hazard identification is a continuous process.
The Incident Tracking System aids us in recognising
potential hazards, allowing us to take proactive
steps to mitigate risks. We engage in regular internal
safety audits and risk assessments to identify areas
for improvement. By involving our employees in the
reporting process, we ensure that potential hazards
are promptly addressed, minimising the likelihood

of incidents.

Our approach to hazard mitigation involves
immediate action in response to reported hazards
and the preventive action to avoid potential
occurrences. We prioritise safety training for
employees and maintain well-documented emergency
response plans.

HEALTH AND SAFETY GOVERNANCE

We have established an OHS Committee at the
corporate level to review our OHS standards, rules
and procedures. We have also set up hotel-level
OHS Committees to promote and monitor compliance
with local OHS regulations. The committee is
responsible for the identification and prioritisation
of appropriate mitigation action based on the
analysis of incident reports. In addition to the OHS
Committee, each hotel also has competent first-aid
personnel trained to attend to the first-aid needs of
our employees, guests and other visitors.

Health and safety- Fatalities in FY23
related incidents

at our under-

construction sites

in FY23

EMPLOYEES RECEIVING TRAINING ON
HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES IN FY23

95

Male Female Total

HOTELS ASSESSED IN FY23

Health and safety Working conditions
practices

Integrated Report 2022-23

OUR KEY FOCUS AREAS
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Fire Safety

All our hotels are equipped with adequate fire
safety equipment including automatic smoke
detectors, audible alarms, fire extinguishers
and hydrants, portable firefighting equipment,
emergency lighting, etc.

Equipment Safety

We have designated trained operators at our hotels
to ensure appropriate handling of all equipment. We
have also established detailed safety procedures
that authorised personnel must follow to ensure
proper use and maintenance of our equipment.

Security

We have employed trained security personnel and
installed search and monitoring equipment at all
our hotels to ensure the security of employees,
guests and other visitors. In addition, we have
established detailed procedures for coordinated and
consistent responses to any security threats and
incidents occurring at our hotels.

Sanitisation

All our surfaces such as doorknobs, counter tables,
counters, room keys, EDC machines and general
surfaces, are wiped and cleaned regularly to
remove dust, and harmful germs.

Food Safety

We endeavour to ensure that the food and
beverages prepared at our hotels are safe and
healthy for the consumption and enjoyment of
our guests. We have a detailed Food Production
Manual which describes training requirements and
procedures applicable to all employees involved

in receiving, handling, storing, freezing, cooking,
thawing, reheating, preserving and serving food.

Promotion of Employee Health

Our focus is on promoting employee wellness
through initiatives such as health camps, smoking
cessation programmes, dietary advice, mental
health workshops and physical fitness programmes.

Community Well-being

Through our local hiring and procurement practices,
we aim to support local economic development
leading to better outcomes for the community.

Risk Management

We conduct regular reviews to identify, assess
and control H&S hazards through proper
design, engineering and administrative controls,
preventative maintenance, comprehensive H&S
procedures and safety training.

61
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Social

Human Rights

LTH upholds human rights as a core value,
aligning our operations with international
standards like the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights (UDHR) and International
Labour Organisation (ILO) Declaration. Our
Human Rights Policy outlines expectations for
employees, business partners and third-party
contractors. We drive community improvement
and raise awareness to combat human rights
abuses. Our zero-tolerance approach includes
sexual harassment, discrimination, child labour
and any form of forced labour or exploitation.
Construction sites are proactively monitored
to prevent violations. We strictly condemn
misconduct, unfair treatment and workplace
harassment, including the 2% of our employees
who are part of associations/unions. Our
Vigilance Officer investigates reported violations,
ensuring the safety and well-being of all
employees. We stand firm in our commitment to
protecting and promoting human rights across all
aspects of our operations.

44%

Employees provided with human rights
policy training

ZERO

Cases of sexual harassment

ZERO

Case of discrimination

ZERO

Cases of child or forced labour

LEMON TREE HOTELS’ HUMAN RIGHTS
POLICY

At LTH, our commitment to respecting, protecting
and promoting human rights is embedded in our
corporate philosophy and values. Our Human
Rights Policy reflects our dedication to creating

a safe, inclusive and ethical work environment.

Policy Features

Employee Rights and Safety

Ensuring a conducive working environment
with comprehensive employee benefits and
occupational health measures.

Discrimination and Harassment
Zero-tolerance for misconduct
and discrimination

OOO Diversity and Inclusion
Emphasising equal opportunity
employment and mainstreaming ODIs

Child and Forced Labour
Prohibiting child labour and ensuring
compliance with age-related regulations

Anti-Corruption
Condemning corrupt practices with a
Whistleblower Policy for reporting concerns

O/C%\o Community Engagement

Qoo Engaging with local communities by
considering their views and promoting
employment opportunities, especially for
marginalised segments

Community
Development

We believe in giving back to society by
addressing the critical development needs of
underprivileged and marginalised communities.
Through strategic Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) interventions, we aim to improve the lives
of those in need, fostering positive change at the
grassroots level.

X/7.15 Lakhs

CSR spend

PARTNERING FOR EMPOWERMENT

Collaborating with select NGOs, we focus on
training and upskilling youth with special needs,
enhancing their employability. Our valued

NGO partners, such as Aasra Trust, Action for
Ability and Inclusion (AADI), Action For Autism,
Muskaan PAEPID, Noida Deaf Society, Sai Swayam
Society and Sarthak Educational Trust bring

over four decades of experience in working with
these communities.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT FOR GOOD

We encourage our employees to participate actively
in community initiatives. Whether collaborating
with old-age homes, orphanages, or Cheshire
homes, their compassion contributes to making

a positive difference.

ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

As an environmentally and socially responsible
organisation, we undertake tree plantation and
cleanliness drives in areas surrounding our hotels.
Often our guests are part of this implementation,
especially long-stay guests. These efforts reinforce
our commitment to creating a sustainable future
for all.

i

Oy Rumpus Garden at Aur/'k, Coorg e



Social

Customers

LTH's diverse client base, comprising business
and leisure travellers, families, tourists, event
attendees, wedding guests, food and beverage
patrons and long-stay guests, enjoys experiences
that are tailored to their specific needs. With
cleanliness, comfort and healthy, home-style
dining options on offer, our strategically located
hotels create a welcoming environment for both
business and leisure. Whether it is providing
seamless business facilities, family-friendly
amenities, or memorable event arrangements,
we go the extra mile to create exceptional
experiences for our guests. We also offer
curated recreational options and sightseeing
opportunities, on demand, allowing our guests to
make the most of their stay.

emon Tree Hotels Limited

No. of Customers

8,07,584
6,13,345
5,45,689

FY21 FY22 FY23

ENSURING CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Customer satisfaction is not just a metric; it is the
essence of our existence. We place great emphasis on
Online Reputation Management (ORM) and maintain an
unwavering commitment to address any service errors
or shortcomings through a well-organised process

involving the Hotel Operations Team and the ORM team.

Guest Stay
9 a
o Q
i 3 g
]
g8 & 0
> N X
N g N /7%
f | Retail NPS
Fy21 FY22 FY23

® Long stay guest @ Repeat guests

LISTENING AND RESPONDING TO
FEEDBACK

Customer satisfaction is at the core of our business
philosophy. We actively encourage our guests to provide
feedback through various channels, viz. our Guest
Satisfaction Tracking System (GSTS), online sources
like Tripadvisor and social media platforms, and OTAs,
including Booking.com, Makemytrip.com and many
more. By valuing and attentively addressing their
comments, we continually enhance our services and
ensure that our guests' are content.

PROMOTING SUSTAINABILITY THROUGH
GUEST ENGAGEMENT PROGRAMMES

We prioritise sustainability and actively involve our guests
in our efforts. Through our communication channels, we
inform them about our waste management practices and

the positive environmental impact. Our guest engagement

programme includes water-saving posters in rooms,

inspiring guests to conserve water by opting not to change

their linen daily, through the third-day linen change
initiative. This empowers guests to contribute to the

preservation of this depleting resource during their travels.

Turning Feedback into Actions

Acting on feedback from guests at LTH is at the core

of our commitment to excellence. Through root cause
analysis, our L&D team delves deep into every negative

and passive comment, scrutinising the GSTS and online
platforms. We concentrate on people and process-related
aspects to identify the root causes of any challenge. By
spotting recurring themes, we make required adjustments
to our brand standards, ensuring that we offer unparalleled
experiences to our customers. Working alongside the hotel
operations teams, the L&D Team swiftly acts to resolve
issues, providing re-briefing and targeted corrective training,
where needed. The customer’s voice shapes our journey,
guiding us towards continual growth and genuine connection,
making the stay at LTH memorable.

Loyalty and Rewards Programme

Our loyalty programme rewards our valued guests with
exclusive benefits and privileges. Members receive special
offers, personalised services and earn reward points for
every stay. With a seamless experience and delightful
perks, the programme is designed to enhance our guests'
loyalty and make their stays even more memorable.
Through our loyalty programme we keep our guests
updated on hotel launches, new services and periodic
offers via e-mailers and newsletters.

15.79 Lakhs
Loyalty programme members

Gold Membership Benefits

e &)

Member Exclusive Offers Flexible Cancellation
Redeem Free Complimentary
Room Nights Room Upgrade

Redeem and Gift 2" Guest Stays Free
= @
Free 24x7 Wi-Fi Early Check-in and Late
Check-out
1000 Bonus Points for 2 Pieces of Laundry
Online Bookings per Stay
©
Earn Points on Every Stay 48-Hour Room Guarantee

()
Extra Bonus on
Points Earned

Integrated Report 2022-23
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Social

Commitment to
Ethical Supply Chain
Management

We are committed to a responsible and
sustainable supply chain that goes beyond
traditional criteria. Our Supplier Code of
Conduct, aligned with corporate values, ensures
that suppliers embrace sustainability. The
Code adheres to international standards like
International Labour Organization (ILO), Universal
Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR) and global
best practices, applying to all suppliers. It now
extends to vendors and service providers,
covering compliance with environmental
regulations, health and safety, labour practices,
human rights, minimum wages, freedom of
association, ethical behaviour and transparent
business processes.

0

Y L
29

lemen e
e

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR SUPPLIERS

Our suppliers are required to adhere to the principles stated in the LTH Code across
their business operations. Moreover, we encourage them to establish their own specific
environmental, social and governance (ESG) objectives that align with our Code.

4 N

5[5 @

Ethics and Governance
Legal Compliance
No Conflict of Interest
Anti-corruption
Record Keeping
Workers’ Grievances

Human Rights
Prohibition of Child Labour
Anti-Human Trafficking and Slavery
Fair Wages
Decent Working Hours
Anti-discrimination

.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Environmental Sustainability

Obtain and maintain all necessary environmental
permits and licenses as per applicable national,
state and local laws

Occupational Health & Safety
Safe Working Conditions
Fire Safety
Worker Trainings
Workers’ Grievances

L y,

SUPPORTING LOCAL SUPPLIERS
Supporting local suppliers is a priority at LTH. By

16,735 sourcing from nearby businesses, we contribute to the

15,666 | growth of our community, bolster the local economy
14,825 I

and reduce our ecological footprint. Embracing local
FY21 FY22 FY23

No. of Active Suppliers

partnerships creates jobs, encourages unique offerings
and strengthens ties within the business ecosystem.

98%

Of sourcing is from local suppliers

No. of National Suppliers No. of Local Suppliers

374 16,361
15,305
361 361 14,464 I
& Lemon Tree Premier, New Town, Kolkata Fy21 Fy21 FY23 FY21 FY21 FY23
T e TR A Hotels Limited — Integrated Report 2022-23 67
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PLANET

At LTH, environmental responsibility is at the core
of our vision for a greener future. We go beyond
compliance with legal requirements, actively seeking
opportunities to minimise our carbon footprint, conserve
water, and promote waste reduction and recycling. Our
focus on innovation drives us to explore cutting-edge
technologies and practices, elevating our environmental
sustainability efforts.

MATERIAL ISSUES IMPACTED

Energy Management
Climate Change and Emissions
Water Management
Waste Management
Biodiversity

STAKEHOLDERS IMPACTED

A 9
Employees Customers

@) Y

& S

Local Communities Regulatory Bodies/Government

FY23 KEY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

10.97%

Energy consumption from
renewable sources

3,907 kg/year

Retired IT assets reused and
recycled

3,319 KL

Combined capacity of sewage
treatment plants installed

31.50%

Of water consumed is
recycled water

64.17 tonnes/year

Plastic waste
safely disposed

- !l Imll

B 1

'_ ‘Red Fox Hotel, Neelkanth

UN SDGs
RESPONSIBLE CLIMATE £ '-."'?;
GI]IIS!IITHIIII ACTION .
R
68 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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Energy Management

We implement initiatives that reduce energy
. consumption and improve energy efficiency
2 - ??-_-\» pr through optimised design and technology.
LTH’s commitment to er 1tal sustainability is firmly grounded = This includes air conditioning, lighting — —
P L N R b and ventilation systems at all our hotels.
in its mission to generate and maximise value for everyone. Furthermore, we are actively switching over
By preserving natural resources and promoting sustainability, to renewable energy in order to reduce our
we strive to provide a safe, hygienic and healthy environment for our guests, reliance on conventional energy.

while also contributing to a healthier planet for future generations.

-

FY26 TARGET

15%

Reduction in energy consumption
—_— (intensity-based) over FY19 baseline —

50% S i

RE usage out of total energy consumption - ,}‘ ‘3"
| o

=)

e ——

FY23 PROGRESS " - I “Lil'llo"m -
—— - o — iR
= 10% — S
Reduction in energy consumption 1[| o=
(intensity-based) over FY19 baseline

10.97%

RE usage out of total energy consumption

OUR GREEN GOALS
We have embraced green goals and are committed to:

e N
Dedicated Governance Transparency in Green Hotels
Structure Communication . Over the last two decades, LTH has
The ESG taskforce oversees LTH's We place the utmost importance built hotels that promote energy
ESG strategy and tracks progress on ESG disclosures and on saving, efficient use of water and
towards the FY26 targets. Planning i communicating about the initiatives : other natural resources and usage
and executing new initiatives to that we implement. We have been of renewable energy thereby,
help achieve these targets is a key active participants in the Global Real creating a lower carbon footprint.
deliverable of this taskforce. Estate Benchmark (GRESB) from All our owned/leased hotels are
© 2015 onwards, and have presented :  designed as per the IGBC/LEED
our ESG/Integrated Report Gold Standard and we are now
from 2021. focussed on getting them all -
: certified by FY26. -
_ J s ,@%
s i ..ﬂ*% \L e i

€5 Tangerine Grand at Lemon Tree Premier, Bhubaneshwar
a . ki i
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Environment

Total Energy Consumption in

Total Energy Consumption the Organisation in FY23

Total Energy Consumption
outside the Organisation in FY23

(GJ) (G)
1,741.09 81,061.75

Fr21 | I
2,882.37 1,04,955.36

Fr22 | D
4,958.30 1,55,498.95

Fy23 I

(GJ)

® 1,817.06 Solar Rooftop
® 3,141.25 DG Set

@® Within the organisation: Solar PV
power, DG power

@ Outside the organisation: Grid,
including Open Access

® 15,779.67  Open Access (OA)
® 1,39,719.28 Grid

ENERGY EFFICIENCY

We have introduced a range of initiatives in our existing
hotels to reduce energy consumption. To align with
Sustainability Development Goal (SDG) 12 and promote
energy efficiency, we have taken an approach of
systematic energy management across the group. These
comprehensive measures encompass not only green
building design and technology advancements but also
prioritise renewable energy integration, energy-efficient
appliances and employee and guest participation in
energy-saving practices. By adopting this multifaceted
approach, our goal is to set the standard for eco-friendly
operations within the hospitality industry and make a
positive impact on the planet.

Energy Intensity

61.39 40.52
FY21

78.74 34.38

FY22

118.95 35.26
FY23

suoday Aloinieis

@ Energy intensity based on total floor space
(KWH per m2)

® Normalised energy intensity based on number of
occupied rooms (KWH per occupied room)

Fuel-wise Energy Consumption within the Organisation (in GJ) e o
TRANSFORMATIVE MEASURES FOR ENERGY OPTIMISATION o
Fuel FY21 FY22 FY23 ("/”)
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. =
Petrol 58 94 251 =
-<
Diesel vehicle 1,839 1,990 2,838 Our hotel operations are aligned with our Variable Frequency Drive with Logic
. sustainability goal of enhancing energy efficiency Control for Kitchen Ventilation
Firewood 208 209 142 and reducing the total energy consumption. At Lemon Tree Premier, City Center, Gurugram
Charcoal 2,650 3,542 5,559 o and Lemon Tree Premier, HITEC City, Hyderabad,
In. F.YZ.B’ we qttempted th opt|m|sedenergy Hsage, we have implemented Variable Frequency Drives
LPG 20,793 25,706 33,543 m|n|?j|sede|nwronmenta f|mpact an E:reate amore (VFDs) in the ventilation system to monitor and
eco-friendly experience for our guests. o
CNG 8,934 19,214 26,844 opt|m|se. th¢ use of energy. The VFDs_enabIe
the ventilation system to operate at different
BLDC Fans Replacement . h : . o th
Total 34,482 50,755 69,177 . o speeds, adjusting to the actual requirement in the
We have incorporated energy-efficient BLDC _ kitchen at a given point in time. As a result, the
(Brushless DC) fans across several of our properties power consumption reduces during low-demand
to enhance energy efficiency and reduce noise periods, leading to significant energy savings at
RENEWABLE ENERGY levels compared to traditional AC fans. These fans these properties.
Over the last seven years, we have taken steps to source renewable 10 .970/0 are in use at various locations, including Lemon
energy for our owned/leased hotels, to help reduce our carbon Of energy consumed sourced Tree Premier, HITEC City, Hyderabad; Lemon Tree Energy-efficient Heat Pump Installations
footprint. Our efforts include investing in implementing on-site from renewable energy in FY23 Premier, Delfi Airport; Red Fox Hotel, Delhi Airport; .\ ' sajact by Lemon Tree Hotels, Whitefield,
generation methods i.e. solar rooftop, utilising open access Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels, Pimpri, Pune Bengaluru and Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels,
arrangements for clean energy and prioritising dedicated renewable and Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels, Whitefield, Thiruvananthapuram, energy-efficient heat
energy projects. The implementation level differs from state to state, 250/0 Bengaluru. Additionally, our upcoming property pumps have been installed to provide heating
based on the state rules around accessing renewable energy. Of hotels generate energy from Aurika, Mumbai Skycity s also implementing this and cooling functionalities. These pumps offer
on-site renewable sources feature, which will lead to substantial energy saving. considerable cost savings on the total energy bill
) by efficiently regulating the indoor temperature.
Total Renewable Energy Renewable Energy Mix The implementation of heat pumps eliminates the
Consumption in FY23 439 KW necessity for separate furnaces and air conditioners,
(GT) (GI) Installed solar rooftop capacity streamlining the heating and cooling process for
17,596.73 in FY23 enhanced energy efficiency at these properties.
16’442'83 ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8 269,11 300/0 TEe 12.2: By 2030, achieve the sustainable management and efficient use of natural resources
?(:nh:vtzlslgoennseurme QO 12.8: By 2030, ensure that people everywhere have the relevant information and awareness
gy for sustainable development and lifestyles in harmony with nature
® 1,817.06 Solar Rooftop
@ 15,779.67 Open Access (OA)
FY21 FY22 FY23
\_ J
72 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 73
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Environment

Climate Change and
Emissions

Recognising the critical risks posed by climate
change to our industry and the economy as a
whole, we actively engage in initiatives that
reduce emissions.

FY26 TARGET

40%

Reduction in GHG emissions (intensity-based)
over FY19 baseline

FY23 PROGRESS

19%

Reduction in GHG emissions (intensity-based)
over FY19 baseline

€y Lemon Tree Hotel, Mukteshwar

74 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

\
CLIMATE CHANGE APPROACH

Our commitment towards tackling climate change
consists of four elements:

Activities

Climate Change Mitigation

Reducing emissions from fossil fuel use, improving
energy efficiency and adopting renewable energy.

Climate Change Adoption

Harvesting rainwater, using water-efficient faucets
and shower heads, utilising recycled water in
gardens, installing flushing and cooling systems,
reducing wastage of food, etc.

Targets

Our commitment to climate change mitigation and
adaptation is underpinned by clear and objective
goals to reduce GHG emissions.

Partnerships

We have been actively collaborating with key
stakeholders to help us out with the ongoing
climate crisis. We also take the help of our
hospitality partners to help us improve the
performance of the sector and to influence
policy-making.

Disclosures

We have set metrics in place to measure and
report progress against our long-term goals
through annual disclosures.

Minimising our Carbon Footprint

We actively measure and monitor carbon emissions
(Scope 1 and Scope 2) arising from energy
consumption at our hotels to reduce our carbon
footprint. To reduce our Greenhouse Gases (GHG)
impact, we have implemented various measures:

e Progressively increasing the proportion of
renewable energy in our operations

e Implementing energy-efficient equipment to
optimise our energy usage

e Having a concrete action plan to introduce
EV vehicles in our hotels

e Adopting cleaner fuels like LPG and CNG

e Gradually eliminating equipment using
Chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs)

e Engaging in tree-planting initiatives in local
communities and on our premises throughout India

e Exploring the feasibility of carbon offsets to further
mitigate the adverse effects of our emissions

Direct GHG Emissions-Scope 1

(MTCO,e)
10,114.92
6,160
4,976 I
Fy21 FY22 FY23

Indirect GHG Emissions-Scope 2

(MTCO,e)
31,850.41
20,547
16,395 I
FY21 Fy22 FY23
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Environment

GHG Emissions Intensity-
For Owned/Leased Hotels

(MTCO,e/m?)
0.11191
0.07010
0.05610
Fy21 FY22 FY23

The increase in GHG emissions in FY23 is primarily attributed to the unstable supply of RE through Open Access
(OA) arrangements, with periods of zero supply in certain months in Delhi and Maharashtra. This disruption in RE

HFCs/Refrigerant Emissions-
R12, R22, 134A, etc.

(Kg)
1,606.14
sl 832
FY21 FY22 FY23

usage negatively impacted the overall reduction in GHG emissions.

-

ECO-FORWARD TRANSFORMATION

Piped Natural Gas (PNG) Conversion

We have successfully transitioned from LPG cooking
gas to PNG at Key Select by Lemon Tree Hotels,
Whitefield, Bengaluru. This strategic move aligns
with our vision of adopting cleaner fuel alternatives.
PNG's numerous benefits, such as easy maintenance,
enhanced safety and uninterrupted supply, have not
only led to a reduction of 7.50% in carbon emissions
but also generated significant cost savings.

SDG Target

7.3: By 2030, double the global rate of
improvement in energy efficiency

Anti-smog Guns for Cleaner Air

To combat air pollution, we have introduced
anti-smog guns at Red Fox Hotel, East Delhi, Red
Fox Hotel, Delhi Airport and Lemon Tree Premier,
Delhi Airport. These portable devices spray fine
water particles, effectively capturing and suppressing
harmful pollutants like dust, smoke and particulate
matter. With the flexibility of targeting specific
locations, this initiative has significantly improved air
quality, creating a cleaner and healthier environment
for guests and staff alike.

rdon 12.2: By 2030, achieve the sustainable

(@@) management and efficient use of
natural resources

12.8: By 2030, ensure that people
everywhere have the relevant information
and awareness for sustainable development
and lifestyles in harmony with nature

-

By aligning with the Indian Green Building Council
(IGBC) Gold Standard, we ensure optimal utilisation
of natural resources, leading to significant savings
in the long run. Our commitment to sustainability
includes adhering to recommended practices, strict
pollution control and maintaining superior indoor
environmental quality.

In FY23, we successfully implemented several
recommended measures from the green building
audit at Aurika, Udaipur; Lemon Tree Premier,

SUSTAINABILITY AT THE CORE: GREEN BUILDING CERTIFICATIONS AT LTH

Mumbai International Airport; Lemon Tree Premier,
Ulsoor Lake, Bengaluru and Lemon Tree Hotel,
Gachibowli, Hyderabad. These measures included
managing light pollution, using thermally insulated
paint on terraces and installing sub-meters for
better analysis of water consumption. As a result,
we received IGBC Gold certifications for these
properties, driving our total count of IGBC Gold-
certified hotels to 10, comprising 25% of our
owned hotels.

FY26 Target

Certified green buildings (hotels)
FY23 Progress

Certified green buildings (hotels)

SDG Target

all levels.

FY23 vs FY19 Reduction in Consumption
- Intensity-based (%)

Energy GHG Water

11.b: By 2020, substantially increase the number of cities and human settlements adopting and
implementing integrated policies and plans towards inclusion, resource efficiency, mitigation and
adaptation to climate change, resilience to disasters and develop and implement, in line with the
Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction 2015-2030, holistic disaster risk management at

AdNLS 3SVD

\ 7 7 i i
Vi B
V" /
'
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Environment

Water Management

Amidst a growing water scarcity across the
country, we recognise the potential business risks
and have prioritised effective water management

at our hotels. Our initiatives encompass water
conservation, water recycling, wastewater
treatment and rainwater harvesting.

FY26 TARGET

10%

Reduction in water consumption
(intensity-based) over FY19 baseline

FY23 PROGRESS

15%

Reduction in water consumption
(intensity-based) over FY19 baseline

@ Alleppey, Kerala )

OUR WATER FOOTPRINT

We are aware of our dependence on freshwater and are
working to limit its consumption by introducing efficient
water outflow measures in our hotels. We have been
proactive in better managing the consumption within
our premises. We use aerators/flow restrictors and dual

Water Withdrawal from Sources (KL)
Municipal Water Source

Other Sources

Procured Water (Tanker)

Bottled Water

Total Water Consumption?

Total Water Consumption including Bottled Water

flush systems to the maximum extent. We also engage
with our guests to contribute towards our water-saving
initiatives, through the third-day linen change
programme and the half glass water initiative.

FY21 FY22 FY23
1,99,276 2,52,805
1,66,634 2,28,563
35,019 58,937
1,646.56 2,184
4,00,929 5,40,305
4,02,575 5,42,489

*Municipal, tanker and other sources account for total water consumption

WASTEWATER RECYCLING

We have efficiently led the management of water
discharge and have a combined capacity of installed
Sewage Treatment Plants (STP) of 3,319 KL per day to
prevent wastewater from contaminating natural water
sources. In FY23, we recycled 28.16% more water than
in FY22.

Water Recycled

(%)
31.49
2421 24.57
FY21 FY22 FY23

78 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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Environment

s

SMART WATER USE AT LTH

Water Bottling Plant

To combat single-use plastic packaged water,

LTH installed a water bottling plant at Lemon Tree
Premier, Delhi Airport and Red Fox Hotel, Delhi
Airport. This initiative resulted in a healthy 10-11%
reduction in expenditure on packaged water and a
significant decrease in the hotel's plastic footprint.
The process adheres to strict standard operating
procedures, providing guests with eco-friendly
drinking water. Following a successful pilot at these
properties, LTH plans to expand this initiative to
10-12 more hotels in FY24.

Installation of Piezometer

At Red Fox Hotel, Jaipur and Lemon Tree Premier,
Mumbai International Airport, piezometers have
been implemented to monitor groundwater

levels as mandated by the Central Ground Water
Authority. These devices provide crucial data about
groundwater availability, aiding in monitoring water
levels over time.

SDG Target

FTTW 6.4: By 2030, substantially increase water-
E use efficiency across all sectors and ensure
sustainable withdrawals and supply of
freshwater to address water scarcity and
substantially reduce the number of people
suffering from water scarcity

Drip Irrigation

At Lemon Tree Premier, Delhi Airport and Red Fox
Hotel, Delhi Airport, a pilot project utilising STP
treated water for gardens along the boundary
wall has proven successful. Discussions with local
authorities are on to extend this initiative up

to the Aerocity metro station, conserving fresh
water usage effectively. Drip irrigation ensures
precise water delivery to plant roots, reducing
evaporation and runoff, resulting in more efficient
water distribution.

Metering for Recycled Water

Promoting water conservation, we have introduced
metering systems to measure recycled water usage
at Lemon Tree Premier, Mumbai International
Airport, and in Bengaluru at Lemon Tree Hotel,
Electronic City; Lemon Tree Hotel, Whitefield; Key
Select by Lemon Tree Hotels, Hosur Road and Keys
Select by Lemon Tree Hotels, Whitefield. Accurate
data on recycled water usage enables us to take
informed decisions regarding water management
and regulatory compliances.

T 12.2: By 2030, achieve the sustainable

@) management and efficient use of
natural resources

12.5: By 2030, substantially reduce waste
generation through prevention, reduction,
recycling and reuse

AdNLS 3SVO
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Waste Management

Waste management is a pivotal aspect of our
daily operations and a key focus area for the
company. Our commitment lies in reducing
waste through appropriate and sustainable waste
minimisation techniques. We have deployed
best-in-class practices to reduce, segregate and
manage waste effectively. By quantifying waste
generation across our portfolio of hotels, we
gain insights to implement targeted strategies.
Throughout our hotel premises, from guest
rooms to restaurants, public areas and back-
of-the-house operations, we emphasise waste
reduction, reuse and recycling.

Compliance with environmental laws outlined by
the Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate
Change (MOEF&CC) is a top priority for both
existing and upcoming hotels. Our employees
are empowered through training and support
to build their awareness and to implement our
ESG and Waste Management Policy. Our aim
is to achieve an optimal waste reduction and
diversion rate, further enhancing our waste
management performance and contributing to a
sustainable future.

3,097 kg/year

Retired IT assets reused and recycled

ybisug aje.todio)
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Environment

WASTE GENERATION BY SOURCE

Source FY21
Wet Waste 3,07,000
Dry Waste 2,10,633

WASTE GENERATION BY CATEGORY

Category FY21
Hazardous Waste 95
Non-hazardous Waste 631

WASTE DISPOSAL IN FY23

Re-used
Plastics (including packaging) 0
E-waste 0
Hazardous Waste 0
Other Waste 43.63

OUR WASTE-MANAGEMENT APPROACH

(kg)
FY22 FY23
4,84,709 4,97,101
3,32,416 3,13,257
(Metric Tonnes)
FY22 FY23 N
9.46 4.68
817.13 810.33
(Metric Tonnes)
Recycled Safely Disposed
24.43 64.17
1.09 7.25
0.47 5.60
18.96 66.54

Waste Segregation, General Waste E-waste Management
Classification and Disposal Management and Disposal
. ) Recycle outdated IT and
Segregate waste on-site Waste categories are i )
. electronic equipment
o treated accordingly
Ensure proper categorisation Ensure proper management
Deliver waste to of toxic chemicals
authorised partners Procure IT assets from
certified partners
82 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Environment

Biodiversity

Embracing our role as responsible stewards
of the environment, LTH acknowledges the
impact that our development and operations
can have on the surrounding ecosystems and
natural resources. We accept our responsibility
towards preserving the biodiversity and
unique habitats of the locations where our
properties thrive. To safeguard these areas,
we are dedicated to ensuring that none of our
operations encroach designated protected zones,
such as national parks and wildlife reserves.
Moreover, we are integrating our commitment
to conserving biodiversity and habitat into every
aspect of our development, acquisitions and
operations strategies.

e
montree

PREMIER
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PROFIT

LTH prioritises sustainable profits while maintaining
a balanced approach to margins. Our commitment to
responsible financial management and growth enables
us to deliver consistent profitability. We remain focused
on leveraging opportunities in the travel and tourism
industry, ensuring a positive impact on our stakeholders
and reinforcing our position as an industry leader.

MATERIAL ISSUES IMPACTED

Ethics and Transparency
Economic Performance

STAKEHOLDERS IMPACTED
=0
Y

Investors and Shareholders

PN
Y]

Owners and Partners

UN SDGs

1 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

84 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

111% 2140.54 Crores

Total revenue YoY growth Profit After Tax (PAT)

208% 31.45

EBITDA* YoY growth Earnings Per Share (EPS)

*EBITDA for FY23 is before a stamp duty expense of ¥4.8 Crores

A
&

11.20%

Return on Capital Employed
(RoCE)

Ariva at Aurika, Udaipur )




total rev
full confidence

. |

EBITDA MARGIN EXPANSION DRIVEN BY PERMANENT COST RATIONALISATION
(By year)*!

4 51.90% N\
36.2% 35.50% 874.9
32% °
& 29% o 28.1%
° 669 o
550
484
412 402
252
FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23
\
(By Quarter)*2
s 8.2% 47.80 St )
48.2% .8%
ae% o 44.9% = s
. . 0,
32.4% 32.1% o 31.6% 31.4% P Ry,
° v 26.7%  ® °

254.7

17.1% 234
203 - 4,59 192 197
142 154 146
127
97 99
71
|||‘. 44I||||

Q1F20 Q2F20 Q3F20 Q4F20 Q1F21 Q2F21 Q3F21 Q4F21 QI1F22 Q2F22 Q3F22 Q4F22 QI1F23 Q2F23 Q3F23 Q4F23

KEY FINANCIAL METRICS

EBITDA* EBITDA Margin* Cash Profit
(% Crores) (%) (% Crores)
455.9 51.90 237.1
35.50
110.5
244.1 77.6
178.7
147.9
| l (79)  (33)
74.5 | l '
FY19 FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

YoY Growth ) 208% YoY Growth € 1,635 bps up

Gross Debt Net Worth

Debt to Equity Ratio

) Revenue From Operations (% Crores) ® Total Revenue (% Crores) ©® EBITDA Margins (%)*

*1 EBITDA Margin % for FY23 and FY22 is before a stamp duty expense of 34.8 Crores and ¥15.3 Crores, respectively
*2 EBITDA Margin % for Q1 FY23 and Q4 FY22 is before a stamp duty expense of 4.8 Crores and %15.3 Crores, respectively

(% Crores) (% Crores)
1,685.3 1,698.6 1,746 1,544.8 1,534.9

1,577.5 1,307.2 1,3098.8 1,413.4
1,204.2 I | I I I

FY19  FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY19  FY20  FY21 FY22 FY23

(Ratio)

L1 121
1.02 :
0.92 I I

FY19  FY20 Fy21 FY22 FY23

1.24

YoY Growth €% 1.04%

YoY Growth ¥ 2.48%

Tax Paid Details RoCE
(% Crores) (%)
102.36 108.92 11.20
53.26 5.3
35 43
(1) 0.09
a
|
FY22 FY23 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Economic Value Distributed
(% Crores)

257.89
210.73 206.80
9.73
70.39
0 93 | 0 71
FY21 FY22 FY23

(RoCE %) = EBIT/Capital Employed

PAT AND EPS
140.54
56.4 1.45
! (13.1)
0.67 .
. [ ]
0.12 (1.11)
(0.12) (1.61)
(137.4)
(186.5)
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

© Profit After Tax (% Crores) ® Earnings Per Share (%)

® Suppliers ® Employees ® Community

*The percentage for FY23 and FY22 is before a stamp duty expense ¥4.8 Crores and %15.3 Crores, respectively
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Scaling New Heights

This year, we expanded our portfolio to encompass 88 hotels
across 56 destinations by launching 6 new managed and franchised
properties, 2 of which were in new destinations. Additionally, we
signed agreements for 23 new managed and franchised hotels. The
owned portfolio is gearing up for a large inventory addition with the
launch of Aurika, Mumbai Skycity in CY23.

In FY23, the Indian travel and tourism _i”dUSt"V . travel, weddings, social events, conferences and the
experienced a robust recovery. Travel into and within resumption of business travel within India. Notably,
India saw significant growth with the exit of the foreign tourist arrivals surged to 6.19 million in the

pandemic. This led to a considerable increase in demand  calendar year 2022, a significant rise from 1.52 million
for accommodation, primarily driven by domestic leisure i 2021,

Brand-wise RevPAR

T L

i ipcampiolby g W AP

KEY OPERATIONAL METRICS

4 7,223 Owned/Leased Rooms Managed/Franchised Rooms Total Rooms
4,913 3297
® 3 558 5,192 5,192 5,192 5,090 3,117 29 3,292 8,006 8,309 8,489 8,382
"® 2,834 2,814
°
2,867 1,787 3570
2,514 ° 841 5,411
1,401 1,275
194
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23
Aurika Hotels Lemon Tree Lemon Tree Red Fox by Lemon Keys by Lemon
& Resorts Premier Hotels Tree Hotels Tree Hotels
\ No. of Rooms ® ReVvPAR (R)
Month-wise ARR and Occupancy
4 . 80% Occupancy Rate* Average Room Rate* RevPAR*
729 et 73% ‘ (%) ® ®
680/ 0, 0 ®
650/0 62% .0 67./0 65.0/0 67./0 68.0/0 76 20 5,340 3,636
® 68 4,347 3,190 3058
54% 4,180 '
°
6,258 3,459
922 939 46.1 ’
5,218 ” 9 >25 2,607 40
4728 4998 4776 4837 4933 4,984 ' 2,615 1,595
1,041
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23
*Owned hotels only
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
\ Gross ARR (%) ® Occupancy in Operational Hotels (%)
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Recognition for Excellence

Travelers’
Choice’

\ /,

2023

In FY23, 72 out of 84 eligible hotels were awarded the Travelers’ Choice Award by Tripadvisor:
Aurika Hotels & Resorts (2); Lemon Tree Premier (14); Lemon Tree Hotels (36); Red Fox Hotels (10);
Keys Prima by Lemon Tree Hotels (1); Key Select by Lemon Tree Hotels (8). This award is presented to
recognise hotels and hotel groups that earn consistently great traveller reviews. Approximately 10%
\_ of businesses listed on Tripadvisor receive a Travelers’ Choice Award. /

Best Employer — National Award, 2016 and 2011;
Outstanding Work in the Creation of a Barrier-free
Environment for Persons with Disabilities, 2012,
Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment,
Government of India

Investing in People Award, Tourism for Tomorrow
Awards 2019, World Travel & Tourism Council

wtm
responsible
tourism

Gold Award Winner, World Responsible g{;‘:’e‘
Tourism Awards 2022 To
Work.

In the Top 50 in 2022
#12 Best Large Workplaces in Asia

2018, #4 Best Company in India 2017,
Great Places To Work Institute

Green Champion Award 2018,
Indian Green Building Council (IGBC)
#19 Best Company in Asia 2017,
Great Places To Work Institute

Among the best in the Special Category -
Employer Branding 2017; Utilizing Analytics to
Drive Great Place To Work Initiative 2017,

Great Places To Work Institute

2022 Meaningful Business 100 (MB100) winner

Among the best in the industry -
Hotels & Resorts 2017,
Great Places To Work Institute

Gold Certification (10 hotels),
Indian Green Building Council (IGBC)

Asian Human Capital Award 2015: Innovative and
Impactful People Practices,
Ministry of Manpower
(Singapore) and Human Capital
Leadership Institute

OTHER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

@ca

Best Differently Abled Friendly
Hotel, FICCI Travel & Tourism
Excellence Awards 2019

Model Employer for Persons with Disabilities 2017,
Dr. Anji Reddy Memorial Award

Purpose-Led Brand Award 2019,
BW Pure Award

Equal Opportunity Employer 2015,
BW Hotelier HR Excellence Award

Equal Opportunity Employer 2016,
BW Hotelier Editor’s Choice Award

Excellence in Diversity and Inclusion 2016,
HR Innovation Award

Best Responsive Company Award 2019:
Schneider Electric

Corporate Excellence Awards
for Best CSR Practices 2019,
Amity School of Science and Technology

Boldness in Business Award for Corporate
Responsibility/Environment 2018,
Financial Times ArcelorMittal

HIC\P

 SUSTAINABLE
HOTEL AWARD

Sustainable Communities 2015,
HICAP Sustainable Hotel Award

Corporate (responsible business) for creating
visual aids with sign language for differently
abled employees 2015, NASSCOM Award

Equal Opportunity Award 2014,
Nipman Foundation

Empowerment/CSR (Corporate
Social Responsibility) 2013, AajTak Care Awards

90 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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Statement of Use Lemon Tree Hotels Ltd. has reported with reference to the . LOCATION
GRI Standards for the period between 1st April 2022 to 31st GRI Standard No.  Disclosure Section Page No.
March 2023. v Pp—
GRI 1 used GRI 1: Foundation 2021 ceel L : : o
Applicable GRI Sector Standard(s) None GRI_3: Material 3—1_ Process to determine material Materiality Assessment 42-43
Topics 2021 topics
3-2 List of material topics Materiality Assessment 42-43
LOCATION :
GRI Standard No. Disclosure Secti o N Economic Performance
ection age No.
: 9 GRI 201: 3-3 Management of material topics Strategic Actions 36-37
GRI 2: General Disclosures 2021 Economic 201-1 Direct economic value generated FY23 in Review, Profit, Board Report 4, 84-89, 108
The organisation 2-1 Organisational details About the Report, LTH at a Glance, 1-3, 6-9, ;g;fgrmance and distributed
and its reporting BRSR 164 201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations ~ BRSR 177
practices and other retirement plans
2-2 Entities included in the ) About the Report 6-7 GRI 204: 3-3 Management of material topics Commitment to Ethical Supply Chain 66-67
organisation’s sustainability reporting Procurement Management
2-3 Reporting period, frequency and About the Report 6-7 Practices 2016  >04-1 proportion of spending on local ~ Commitment to Ethical Supply Chain 67
contact point suppliers Management
2-4 Restatements of information About the Report 6-7 GRI 205: Anti- 3-3 Management of material topics Corporate Governance, BRSR 19, 174
2-5 External assurance About the Report 6-7 corruption 2016 (5.1 Operations assessed for risks BRSR 174
Activities and 2-6 Activities, value chain and other Our Portfolio, Our Presence, BRSR 10-15, 164-166 related to corruption
workers business relationships 205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption BRSR 174
2-7 Employees Our People, BRSR 50-53, and actions taken
Governance 2-9 Governance structure and Corporate Governance, Board of 18-19, 26-29, GRI 206: Anti- 3-3 Management of material topics BRSR 197
composition Directors, Management Team, Corporate 130-140 compe_titive 206-1 Legal actions for anti-competitive BRSR 197
Governance Report Behaviour 2016 behaviour, anti-trust, and monopoly
2-10 Nomination and selection of the Corporate Governance Report, 136, 120 practices corruption
highest governance body Annexure 2 GRI 205: Tax 3-3 Management of material topics Consolidated Financial Statements, 210-214, 306-310
2-11 Chair of the highest governance Board of Directors, Corporate 26, 130 2019 Standalone Financial Statements
body Governance Report 207-1 Approach to tax Consolidated Financial Statements, 87, 210-214
2-12 Role of the highest governance Corporate Governance Report 134-140 Standalone Financial Statements,
body in overseeing the management of Financial Performance
impacts 207-2 Tax governance, control, and risk Consolidated Financial Statements, 210-214, 306-310
2-13 Delegation of responsibility for Corporate Governance Report 134-140 management Standalone Financial Statements
managing impacts Environmental Performance
2-14 Role of the highest governance About the Report 6-7 . .
body in sustainability reporting 23:6302: Energy 3-3 Management of material topics Energy 71-73
2-15 Conflicts of interest Corporate Governance, BRSR 19, 174 g?gza-r::ifarﬁgrgwy consumption within the  Energy, BRSR 72,189, 192
2-16 Communication of critical concerns Corporate Governance, Corporate 21, 140, 167, . ide of
Governance Report, BRSR 178, 186 E’l'?ezjgi':qei;%;r?nsumpt'on outside o Energy 72
2-17 Collective knowledge of the highest Corporate Governance, BRSR 20, 169 . .
governance body 302-3 Energy intensity Energy, BRSR 73,192, 194
2-18 Evaluation of the performance of  Corporate Governance Report 19, 137 302-4 Reduction of energy ESGhTargets FY26 and Performance 46, 72
the highest governance body consumption Dashboard, Energy
2-19 Remuneration policies Board Report, Annexure 2 111, 119-122 fngdi?‘eﬁgrfsstlgpE:gdir;i;ggnd cervices Energy 73
2-20 Process to determine remuneration Board Report, Annexure 2 111, 119-122 - -
Strat lici >-22 S; ; " r tl - rbl unerat ch r F? Not xur 16-17 GRI 303: Water 3-3 Management of material topics Water Management 78-80
rategy, policies 2- atement on sustainable airman's Note - and Effluents ) ] )
and practices development strategy 2018 sggtgdh/:fnn[)aagcet?ent of water discharge- Water Management 79
2-23 Policy commitments Corporate Governance, Board Report, 19, 110, 169 .
'y ! BRI‘SPRF Ver : por 303-3 Water withdrawal Water Management, BRSR 79, 189, 193
2-24 Embedding policy commitments ESG Vision 2026 45 303-4 Water discharge Water Management, BRSR 79, 193-194
2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and Corporate Governance, Corporate 21, 140, 169, 178, 303-5 Water consumption ESGh'tF)arg%ts FY26 and Performance 47,78-79, 189,
raising concerns Governance Report, BRSR 186 Dashboard, Water Management, BRSR 193
2-27 Compliance with laws and Stakeholder Enagagement, BRSR 39, 192 GRI 304: 3-3 Management of material topics Biodiversity 83
regulations Biodiversity 2016 304-1 Operational sites owned, leased, Biodiversity, BRSR 83, 192, 194
2-28 Membership associations Corporate Governance 21 gfzgzgaenddl2;eoarsangi(i:SEtbtig:jR/lz):;g;ed
Stakeholder 2-29 Approach to stakeholder Stakeholder Engagement 38-41 value outside protected areas
engagement engagement
929 929 _ . _ 304-2 Significant impacts of activities,  Biodiversity, BRSR 83, 192, 194
2-30 Collective bargaining agreements  Social, BRSR 62, 178 products and services on biodiversity
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GRI Content Index

GRI Standard No.

Disclosure

LOCATION

Section

Page No.

GRI 405:
Diversity and

3-3 Management of material topics
405-1 Diversity of governance bodies

Equal Opportunity .4 employees

Diversity and Inclusion

Corporate Governance, ESG Targets
FY26 and Performance Dashboard,

52-55
19, 47, 52-55

2016 Diversity and Inclusion
405-2 Ratio of basic salary and ESG Targets FY26 and Performance 47,49
remuneration of men to women Dashboard, People
Additional-Percentage of Opportunity ESG Targets FY26 and Performance 47,53
Deprived Individuals Dashboard, Diversity and Inclusion
GRI 406: Non- 3-3 Management of material topics Human Rights 62-63
discrimination 406-1 Incidents of discrimination and Human Rights, BRSR 62, 187
2016 corrective actions taken
GRI 407: 3-3 Management of material topics Human Rights 62-63
Freedom of 407-1 Operations and suppliers in which Human Rights, BRSR 62,178
Association the right to freedom of association and
and Collective collective bargaining may be at risk
Bargaining 2016
GRI 408: Child 3-3 Management of material topics Human Rights 62-63
Labour 2016 408-1 Operations and suppliers at Human Rights, BRSR 62, 187
significant risk for incidents of child
labour
GRI 409: Forced 3-3 Management of material topics Human Rights 62-63
or Compulsory  409.1 Operations and suppliers at Human Rights, BRSR 62, 187
Labour 2016 significant risk for incidents of forced or
compulsory labour
GRI 413: Local 3-3 Management of material topics Community Development 63
Communities 413-1 Operations with local community BRSR 199
2016 engagement, impact assessments, and
development programmes
GRI 414: 3-3 Management of material topics Commitment to Ethical Supply Chain 66-67
Supplier Social Management
Assessment 2016 414.7 Negative social impacts in the Commitment to Ethical Supply Chain 66-67
supply chain and actions taken Management
GRI 418: 3-3 Management of material topics Corporate Governance 21
Customer Privacy 41g.1 sypstantiated complaints BRSR 201

2016

concerning breaches of customer privacy

and losses of customer data

LOCATION
GRI Standard No. Disclosure -
Section Page No.
GRI 305: 3-3 Management of material topics Climate Change and Emissions 74-77
Emissions 2016 3051 pirect (Scope 1) GHG emissions  Climate Change and Emissions, BRSR 75, 190
305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Climate Change and Emissions, BRSR 75, 190
emissions
305-4 GHG emissions intensity Climate Change and Emissions, BRSR 76, 190
305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions ESG Targets FY26 and Performance 46, 75
Dashboard, Climate Change and
Emissions
305-7 Nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur Climate Change and Emissions, BRSR 75, 190
oxides (SOx), and other significant air
emissions
GRI 306: Waste 3-3 Management of material topics Waste Management 81-82
2020 306-3 Waste generated Waste Management, BRSR 82, 191
306-4 Waste diverted from disposal Waste Management, BRSR 81, 191
306-5 Waste directed to disposal Waste Management 82
GRI 308: Supplier 3-3 Management of material topics Commitment to Ethical Supply Chain 66-67
Environmental Management
Assessment 2016 30g5.7 Negative environmental impacts  BRSR 196
in the supply chain and actions taken
Social Performance
GRI 401: 3-3 Management of material topics Our People 50-62
Employment 2016 441-1 New employee hires and Our People, Talent Management 51, 59
employee turnover
401-2 Benefits provided to full-time Talent Management 59
employees that are not provided to
temporary or part-time employees
401-3 Parental leave Talent Management, BRSR 59, 176
GRI 403: 3-3 Management of material topics Health, Safety and Well-being 60-61
Occupational 403-1 Occupational health and safety ~ Health, Safety and Well-being, BRSR 60-61, 179
;'gi"sth and Safety \3nagement system
403-2 Hazard identification, risk Health, Safety and Well-being, BRSR 61, 179
assessment, and incident investigation
403-3 Occupational health services Health, Safety and Well-being, BRSR 61, 179
403-4 Worker participation, consultation, Health, Safety and Well-being, BRSR 61, 179
and communication on occupational
health and safety
403-7 Prevention and mitigation of Health, Safety and Well-being, BRSR 61, 179
occupational health and safety impacts
directly linked by business relationships
403-9 Work-related injuries Health, Safety and Well-being, BRSR 61, 180
403-10 Work-related ill health BRSR 180
GRI 404: Training 3-3 Management of material topics Learning and Development (L&D) 56-57
and Education 404-1 Average hours of training per year Learning and Development (L&D) 57
2016 per employee
404-2 Programmes for upgrading Learning and Development (L&D) 57
employee skills and transition assistance
programmes
404-3 Percentage of employees receiving Talent Management, BRSR 59, 179

regular performance and career
development reviews
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45, Arjun Marg, DLF Phase-1
Gurugram-122002 Haryana

Felix Advisory Board: +91 124 4252720
- : ] Web: www.felixadvisory.com
ooty Anmclel st Email: info@felixadvisory.com

Strictly Private & Confidential

To the Board of Directors,

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited,

Asset No.6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi,
Delhi-110037

Subject: - Independent Assurance Statement on sustainability disclosures in the Integrated Report

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (hereafter 'LTH') has developed its Integrated Report 2022-23 (hereinafter 'the
Report") for the period April 1, 2022, to March 31, 2023, based on the applicable accounting standards and has
incorporated the principles of the Integrated Reporting (<IR>) Framework published by the International
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) and Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards. This assurance
engagement was conducted in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised) - "Reasonable Level".

Felix Advisory Private Limited (hereafter “Assurance Company”) was engaged by LTH to provide independent
assurance on its sustainability disclosures in the Report that includes the Company’s sustainability
performance for the period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023.

Management's Responsibility

LTH has developed the Report’s content. LTH management is responsible for identifying material topics and
carrying out the collection, analysis, and disclosure of the information presented in the Report (web- based and
print), including website maintenance, integrity, and for ensuring its quality and accuracy in accordance with
the applied criteria stated in the <IR> framework and GRI standards, such that it's free of intended or
unintended material misstatements.

Assurance Standard

This assurance statement has been prepared in accordance with the terms of our engagement and ISAE 3000
(revised) requirements. We applied a moderate level of assurance while performing the verification.

Scope and Boundary

The scope of work includes the assurance of following non-financial performance / KPI disclosed in the
Report with respect of Owned/Leased Hotels. In particular, the engagement included the following:

*  Review of the disclosures submitted by LTH;

*  Review of the quality of information;

* Review of evidence (on a sample basis) for identified non-financial indicators

CIN: -U74140DL2013PTC248762

45, Arjun Marg, DLF Phase-1
Gurugram-122002 Haryana

Felix Advisory Board: +91 124 4252720
- . ] Web: www.felixadvisory.com
oot Someclel xobon Email: info@felixadvisory.com

Assurance Company has verified the following KPI's disclosed in the Report: -

GRI302: Energy 302-1 to 302-5
GRI303: Water and effluents 303-1 to 303-5
GRI304: Biodiversity 304-1 to 304-4
GRI305:  Emissions 305-1 to 305-7
GRI306:  Waste (2016) 306-2 to 306-4
GRI307:  Environmental Compliance 307-1

GRI401: Employment 401-1 to 401-3
GRI403:  Occupational Health and Safety 403-1 to 403-10
GRI404: Training & Education 404-3

GRI405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity 405-1

Additionally, we have assured the financial values being represented in the report with respect to Total
Income by business, Operating profit, Profit before tax, Profit after tax, EBITDA, Earning per share, cost of
borrowing, Debt Ratios and Profit ratios; quantity of retired IT assets; Guest aspects related to repetition, long
stay and satisfaction; compliance of SEBI & Stock exchange with respect to no fine & penalties; data points
related to Board Members, Board Meetings, gender diversity and work tenure. This data is in addition to
above listed GRI standards.

Limitations

Assurance Company did not perform any assurance procedures on the prospective information, such as
targets, expectations, and ambitions, disclosed in the Report, and any data or information pertaining outside
the defined reporting period (ie., 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023). Consequently, there is no
assurance/ conclusion being provided on the same.

During the assurance process, assurance company did not come across any limitation to the agreed scope of
the assurance engagement. Assurance company expressly disclaims any liability or co-responsibility for any
decision a person or entity would make based on this Assurance Statement.

Our Responsibility

Responsibility in relation to this engagement was to perform agreed level of assurance based on the work
performed. This engagement did not include an assessment of the adequacy or the effectiveness of LTH's
strategy, management of sustainability-related issues or the sufficiency of the Report against principles of IIRC
Integrated Reporting (<IR>), GRI Standards, and ISAE 3000, other than those mentioned in the scope of
assurance.

Responsibility regarding this verification is in accordance with the agreed scope of work which includes
financial /non-financial quantitative information disclosed by LTH. This assurance engagement assumes that the
data and information provided to us by LTH are complete and true.

CIN: -U74140DL2013PTC248762
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Felix Advisory

' Innovating financial solutions

Verification Methodology

During the assurance engagement, assurance company adopted a risk-based approach, focusing on verification
efforts with respect to disclosures and verified the same. We assessed the robustness of the underlying data
management system, information flows, and controls. While performing the assurance, we

» Examined and reviewed the documents, data, and other information made available by LTH for non-
financial KPI's (non-financial disclosures);

» Conducted interviews with key representatives, including data owners and decision- makers from
different functions of LTH;

» Performed sample-based reviews of the mechanisms for implementing the sustainability- related policies
and data management (qualitative).

» Reviewed the level of adherence to principles of "The <IR> Framework", GRI standards

Our assurance team and independence

Assurance company is a professional services firm providing services in Advisory, Assurance, Tax and Business
Services, to both domestic and international organisations across industry sectors. This team comprises of
multidisciplinary professionals and has extensive experience in conducting independent assurance of processes
across sectors and geographies. As an assurance provider, we are required to comply with the independence
requirements set out in International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. Our independence policies and procedures ensure compliance with the Code.

Our Conclusion

In our opinion, based on the scope of this assurance engagement, the disclosures on sustainability performance
reported in the Report along with the referenced information provides a fair representation of the material topics,
related strategies, and meets the general content and quality requirements of the GRI Standards. The
sustainability disclosures of Company as defined under the scope of assurance are reliable. The Company has
applied considerable efforts to ensure consistency of data for this Report; however, the Company may continue
to improve robustness of its data collection and collation process

Based on the scope of our review, our conclusions are outlined below:

> Inclusiveness: We are not aware of any matter that would lead us to conclude that the Company has not
applied the principle of inclusivity in engaging with key stakeholder groups. The Company transparently
disclosed its stakeholder engagement approach and activities in the Report.

> Materiality: We noted that the Company has listed the material topics in the Report. Nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that any material topic has been excluded from the Report of the Company.

> Responsiveness: We are not aware of any matter that would lead us to believe that the Company has not

applied the responsiveness principle for dealing with stakeholders (such as customers, suppliers, and local
communities) on material topics covering its sustainability performance, including climate related risks and

opportunities.
CIN: -U74140DL2013PTC248762

45, Arjun Marg, DLF Phase-1
Gurugram-122002 Haryana
Board: +91 124 4252720
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Email: info@felixadvisory.com

Felix Advisory

' Innovating financial solutions

> Impact: We are not aware of any matter that would lead us to believe that the Company does not monitor
and measure and is not accountable for how their actions affect their stakeholder universe.
> Reliability of sustainability performance information: We have reviewed the sustainability information in

the Report based on the outlined scope wherein nothing has come to our attention that causes us not to believe
that the data has been presented fairly, in material respects, in keeping with the <IR> Framework and the
Company’s reporting principles and criteria.

For Felix Advisory Private Limited

Prashant Sharma
Authorized Signatory
Date: - 16 -August -2023
Place: - Delhi

CIN: -U74140DL2013PTC248762
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Introduction and Macroeconomic view of
India

In FY23, the global hospitality sector witnessed a huge
rebound in performance. Because of the huge pent-
up demand, hotel companies were no longer hesitant
of increasing average room rates (‘ARRs’) without
occupancies recovering to pre-covid levels. Ancillary
revenue streams gained traction as well, with hotel
operators being more creative in their pursuit of new
revenue streams. Bleisure, wellness, medical tourism
and ESG are the notable emerging trends in the sector
that will drive further growth. Although strong demand
boosted the sector, increased raw material costs, high
labour expenses, and higher borrowing costs due to
rising interest rates affected hotel operations and
gross operating margins, nonetheless branded hotel
occupancy in India recovered to almost pre-pandemic
levels in FY23 and the industry has not looked back
since. However, challenges like inflation, the Russia-
Ukraine conflict and global recession fears pull back
the industry to reach its full potential.

The long-term future of the industry looks bright with
increasing disposable incomes and rise in spend on
discretionary goods and services. India's long-term
outlook looks stable and conducive to growth with
India's exports touching an all-time high of $ 770
Billion in FY23. The Indian economy will record growth
of 7% for the FY23 which follows an 8.7% growth in the
previous financial year. Similarly, the services sector

will record growth of 9.1% for the FY23 which follows
an 8.4% growth in the previous financial year (Source:
Economic survey of India). The normalisation of the
contact-based service sector and revival of capital
expenditures on the back of the production incentive
scheme will keep the growth engines running and this
bodes extremely well for the hospitality sector as well.

The contribution of the tourism and travel industry to
GDP for India is expected to be $512 Billion by 2028
with 53 million new jobs by 2029 (Source: Invest India
Sector Snapshot). Historically, there has been high
correlation between increase in foreign tourist arrivals
and hotel occupancies. According to the Ministry of
Tourism, Foreign Tourist Arrivals (‘FTAs’) in India in
2022 were 61.2 Lakhs with a positive growth rate
of 303% as compared to 15.2 Lakhs in 2021 and a
negative growth rate of -44% as compared to 109.3
Lakhs in 2019. With FTA’s increasing every month and
nearing pre-COVID levels, there is further room for
occupancies to rise in the hospitality industry and
surpass pre-covid levels.

Before the pandemic, the Travel and Tourism industry
accounted for 1 in 4 of all net new jobs created
across the world (direct and indirect) (Source: WTTC
Research, Economic Impact) reduced drastically during
the COVID-19 lockdown. The industry is now moving
towards hiring of diverse talent and upskilling existing
employees to overcome the manpower crunch amid a
post-covid boom in hotel demand.

[ 4

Travel & Tourism remains an important driver for job creation across the world and a dynamic engine of

employment opportunities:

3 0 0 million jobs*

ILILILIL

1/ 10 of all jobs

(Source: WTTC Research, Economic Impact)

In the current economic scenario, with inflation and
rising costs of construction there is a big opportunity in
the near term for the hospitality industry with demand
outpacing supply for the next few years. Being a high
fixed cost business, the focus is to variabalise the
fixed costs and transform the operating model into a
leaner and more flexible model with multiple sources
of revenue to diversify risk by exploring new business
segments beyond the traditional segments.

Industry Outlook

The FY23 has been highly encouraging, and the Indian
hospitality industry's prognosis remains strong. The

Performance Outlook

e
1 / 4 i net new jobs

over the last 5 years

key tailwinds for domestic demand to remain strong
are mainly resurgence in foreign travel, India's G20
presidency and the fact that India will host a number
of international events, including the ICC Men's
World Cup.

After peeking average daily rates (ADRs’) and
occupancy in the FY19, the FY20 saw a dip due to
the initial impact of COVID-19 in the month of March.
However, the FY23 witnessed a huge jump in ARRs
and occupancy due to pent up demand. According to
HVS Anarock, occupancy is expected to surpass pre-
COVID levels by the end of calendar year 2024 due to
low supply in the upcoming years.

70%

66% GV/.
@

ARR
ARR ARR 7.983
Revpar Revpar Revpar
4,690 5,194 5,588
2023F 2024F 2025F
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Further, HVS anticipates the following trends in the
years ahead (key takeaways from HVS Anarock, India
Hospitality Industry Overview 2022):

e India's G20 presidency until November 2023 will
host over 200 meetings in 55 destinations, creating
significant demand for hotels and boosting the
hospitality sector. Inbound tourism is expected
to rebound as the Ministry of Tourism capitalises
on the opportunity to promote India as a major
tourism destination, supported by visa reforms
and traveller-friendly facilities. The successful
organisation of these high-profile meetings will
further solidify India's position as a global
MICE destination, driving growth in the tourism
and hospitality industry.

e Shift towards holistic wellness offerings, experiential
and immersive travel experiences will attract tourists
seeking a more enriching and transformative travel
experience, fostering growth and diversification
in India's tourism and hospitality industry with
emergence of unique new age wellness resorts.

e Bleisure travel is gaining popularity in India, with a
significant number of Indian business travellers
extending their trips for leisure purposes.
As international business travel and MICE events
return, there is a growing opportunity for the hotel
sector to cater to this trend by offering special
packages and incorporating leisure elements into
the guest experience and foster guest loyalty among
corporate travellers.

e To meet changing guest expectations, hotels in the
upscale, upper upscale and luxury segments will
move towards more personalised offerings and utilise
smart technology to enhance guest experiences. This
shift towards personalisation and advanced
technology will not only differentiate hotels from
competitors but also provide guests with memorable
experiences, ultimately shaping the future of the
tourism and hospitality industry.

e The relaxation of travel restrictions and the
devaluation of the rupee are expected to drive
growth in medical tourism in India, with the
country aiming to triple its revenue to $13 billion
within four years. Collaboration between hotels and
healthcare facilities during the pandemic can be
leveraged to create a seamless medical tourism
experience, leading to increased revenue and the
realisation of India's true potential in the tourism
and hospitality industry.

e In India, hotel development traditionally focused
on business destinations due to the dominance of

corporate travellers. However, there is now a shift
towards leisure hotel development to cater to
the growing demand, as leisure travellers tend to
stay longer, utilise more services, and contribute to
higher average rates, making it a more attractive
investment for hoteliers and positively impacting the
tourism and hospitality industry.

e As travellers opt for smaller and intimate places
for their getaways, unorthodox accommodation
options such as villas and home rentals are
upcoming segments for the tourism industry of India
in the future.

e The Indian hotel industry is urged to expand
sustainability initiatives beyond operational
practices to address environmental concerns and
change public perception. Incorporating green
technologies and resources in hotel construction
for net-zero consumption and employing gig
workers while promoting multi-skilling among
employees can optimise costs, enhance efficiency,
and improve the overall competitiveness of the
tourism and hospitality industry.

Key Demand Drivers

Business Travel

Business travel comprises inbound and domestic visits
for business-related purposes. This includes travel
on corporate accounts, micro, small and medium
enterprises (‘MSME’), and individual business travelers.
This segment is a predominant source of demand for
hotels located in business-oriented locations such as
Gurugram, Bengaluru, Hyderabad, and Pune. Even
though corporate demand remains subdued relative to
pre-COVID due to demand from large tech companies
not fully coming back, the FY23 saw good MSME
travel rebound and extensive corporate travel from
other industries.

Leisure Travel

Leisure travel comprises vacation travel, including
short-duration vacations. Greater affordability,
changing attitudes towards lifestyle, and improved road
and air connectivity have materially encouraged short-
stay vacations, including those taken on weekends
and extended weekends. Leisure travel demand will
primarily be in leisure destinations like Goa, Udaipur,
Jaipur, Dehradun, etc. Business-oriented locations also
attract staycation business over the weekend or even
leisure business if the city is also a tourist destination,
like New Delhi. The FY23 continued demand from
leisure travel and travel to drive-by destinations In
the long-term as people’s income rise the demand

for leisure travel will grow exponentially as people
increase their discretionary spends.

MICE Demand

The MICE segment is mainly corporate-driven i.e.
conferences, training programmes, and other events
that are customer-facing and interactive. The demand
tends to arise during the working week and occurs
across all months of the year, barring the main holiday
periods and the months from March through June. MICE
demand tends to come with price sensitivity. Hotels in
predominantly business locations will generate MICE
demand for training and corporate seminars which
could be a day or residential events. Conferences
that include recreational elements choose city-center
locations and resort destinations. The FY23 has seen
continued demand in the MICE business with future
demand looking extremely promising due to global
events like G20 and ICC men'’s cricket world cup being
held in India.

Weddings and Social Travel

Weddings and social travel mainly involve domestic
travel for family weddings, destination weddings,
and other family celebrations like anniversaries or
birthdays. Such demand will likely gravitate to hotels
that have the required function areas, guest room
capacity, and also the quality to host such events at a
level consistent with the status of the host. In FY23,
pent-up demand for weddings due to the lockdown
in the previous year helped the industry post record
growth in the number of wedding events.

Airlines and Airline Crew

This demand set helps create the core of demand for
hotels, albeit at significantly discounted pricing. Crew
demand could arise from international and domestic
carriers, while the major international airlines will use
upper-tier hotels, more price-sensitive airlines are
open to using upper-midscale hotels. This demand is
relatively nominal and mainly occurs at hotels that
are closer to the airports. The segment witnessed
sustained demand and is set for further growth as new
airline companies launch operations in India.

Transit Demand

Persons at overnight transits between cities also need
to use hotel accommodation, which is typically located
close to the point of the onward journey. Transit
demand could occur on the inward and outward leg of
international travel between cities connected through
a regional hub.

Growth in Supply by City

According to Hotelivate Trend & Opportunities report
2022; Tier 1 cities (~40% of the proposed future supply)
remain favoured destinations for hotel development,
an increasing number of the hotel developers and
operators are exploring opportunities in the Tier
3 markets (~35% of the proposed future supply),
identifying the unaccommodated demand in these
cities. Additionally, North and West India continue to
be the preferred locations for hotel development with
about 70% of the proposed supply.

Ekaara, the ballroom, Aurika, Udaipur
p—
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The following table sets forth the growth of supply (no. of rooms) across major cities:

Market o 2022 - 2027

(Existing Rooms) (Projected Rooms)
Agra 2,209 2,704
Ahmedabad 3,586 4,966
Amritsar 1,736 2,901
Bengaluru 14,022 20,824
Chandigarh 2,676 2,992
Chennai 9,763 10,604
Dehradun 624 1,640
Goa 8,244 11,054
Gurugram 6,151 8,474
Hyderabad 7,450 10,429
Jaipur 5,478 8,746
Kochi 2,585 2,887
Kolkata 4,878 5,731
Lucknow 1,884 3,184
Mumbai 13,217 18,626
Navi Mumbai 1,395 2,037
New Delhi 15,082 16,934
Noida 1,569 2,837
Pune 6,689 7,195
Udaipur 1,953 3,018

Source: Hotelivate, Trends & Opportunities 2022 Indian Hospitality report

Barriers to Entry

The development of hotels in India faces several
roadblocks, the most challenging among those are:

Land: Availability of land at an appropriate location
and the high cost of available land create limitations on
hotel development and viability. Limited development
rights and end-use restrictions on available sites create
further challenges.

Regulatory approvals: Hotels require several
approvals and licenses starting from land approval
for end-use to the opening of the hotels. The
process of obtaining approvals is time-consuming
and uncertainties associated with it lead to delays
in the opening of hotels. Project delays lead to cost

escalation, difficulty in servicing the debt obligations,
and sometimes impact the project quality.

Financing and capital requirement: In the
backdrop of several hotel projects which are in debt
default, bankers are extremely selective in providing
development finance for hotel projects. Further,
interest rates tend to be high. In addition, hotel projects
require sizeable equity capital for project development
to meet cash shortfalls during operations. Shortage
of suitable equity capital is a significant constraint
towards the development of hotels, particularly a
portfolio of assets or hotels with a large inventory
of rooms and other facilities. Further, an increase in
interest rates poses a threat to the expansion plans of
the company as the cost to fund new projects goes up.

Key Risks to the Business

Economic and Industry Risk

A slowdown in India's economic growth could hurt the
hospitality business affecting both operational and
financial performance. India's GDP has grown at a
good pace in the past quarters and may find it difficult
to sustain the same growth owing to international
slowdown and geopolitical risks. An increase in power
and fuel costs poses a huge threat to the hospitality
industry as prices for airline tickets rise which directly
affects Lemon Tree Hotels which targets price-
sensitive customers. A rise in procurement costs
due to an increase in the price of commodities has
pressured the expenses of the company and might
take a further hit in this inflationary environment. As
people start traveling more due to pent-up demand,
high competition among hotel chains will further put
pressure on the company as people chase value for
money and better deals driving prices down in the
short run.

e Mitigation — Lemon Tree Hotels receives about
~85% of its business from domestic Indian travelers.
The company has been able to build a strong brand
name, which is synonymous with quality and trust.
The expanded brand portfolio with 7 brands now
addresses a wider spectrum of hotel consumers.
As the leader of the mid-priced hotel segment, the
company's goals are aligned with the aspirations of
the expanding middle class. In FY23, the company
has been focused on repricing its rooms in line
with increasing demand to maximise profitability.
With such flexible business strategies and an agile
sales network, Lemon Tree Hotels has been able to
sustain the fast recovery of occupancy and ARRs
it was able to achieve in FY22. Along with this, the
team focused on bringing in operational efficiencies
by rationalising all cost and operating metrics, to
achieve the EBITDA expansion strategy. We have
made material effort to bring down our raw material
cost by negotiating with our suppliers. All efforts
combined; we have been able to record positive
hotel-level operating profits at the group level.
With our leaner structure and improved operating
metrics, we are well-positioned to register better-
operating margins on a stable basis.

Financial Risk

Being a capital-intensive industry, players in the industry
who are leveraged may find a challenge servicing their
interest and principal repayment obligations if interest
rates keep rising. Inflation is another key risk as high
costs of procuring raw materials will put pressure on
the P&L and might force companies to further borrow
to meet working capital needs.

e Mitigation— Lemon Tree Hotels plans to optimise
costs and grow in an asset-light way with an
emphasis on managing and franchising third party
owned hotels. Lemon Tree Hotels has adopted a two-
pronged approach to tackle the challenges in the
near term around the liquidity position. Throughout
FY23, our sequential focus was on cost optimisation-
ARR increases-EBITDA expansion. Our operations
team worked diligently to find multiple ways to
reduce our operating costs along with ARR growth,
this enabled us to register a healthy operating
EBITDA margin to enable us to meet our cash needs
and service debt obligations. Additionally, we have
timely arrangements of credit lines that provide us
with the necessary support and cushion to be able
to keep operations running in case the need arises.

Geographical Risk

Hospitality being an unorganised and highly fragmented
industry has intense competition within geographic
regions. This competition may impact the company’s
market share. A significant portion of our revenues
comes from hotels in a few geographical regions and
any adverse development affecting these regions
could hurt our business.

Mitigation - As of March 31, 2023, Lemon Tree
Hotels has a presence across 54 destinations within
the country and in 2 overseas cities. To diversify our
regional presence, Lemon Tree Hotels opened 6 new
properties in Rishikesh, Ahmedabad, Vishakhapatnam,
Mumbai, Uttarakhand and Kerala in FY23. This enabled
the company to capture a larger share of the outbound
traffic from these cities to other cities where we
are already operational and further consolidate the
inventory in the mid-market sector in these markets.
Lemon Tree Hotels has further diversified into
international locations with hotels in Dubai and Bhutan
catering to outbound Indian traffic to these cities.

Health and Safety

To ensure the complete safety of our employees and our
guests, we launched an innovative health and hygiene
program, Rest Assured, showcasing the company’s
commitment to creating an environment focused on
health, hygiene, safety, and wellbeing. This initiative
is in collaboration with Diversey, a global leader in
smart, sustainable cleaning and hygiene solutions. As
part of this initiative, Diversey is providing us with US
EPA-approved safe chemicals, operating checklists,
training and support materials to add to our repertoire
of processes and procedures.

104 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Integrated Report 2022-23 105

syoday Aloiniels 1ybisut a1esodio)

Sjuswialels |epueuly



(% in Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 % change
(Audited) (Audited)
Revenue from operations 87,499 40,224 118%
Other income 358 1,403 -75%
Total income 87,857 41,627 111%
Cost of food and beverages consumed 4,990 2,785 79%
Employee benefit expenses 14,973 9,732 54%
Other expenses:
- Power and fuel 6,871 4,375 57%
- Stamp duty expense 478 1,525 -69%
- Others 15,429 9,940 55%
Total expenses 42,742 28,358 51%
Profit before depreciation and amortisation, finance cost, 45,114 13,269 240%
finance income
Finance cost 18,235 18,094 1%
Finance income -517 -696 -26%
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,660 10,435 -7%
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax and share of associates 17,737 -14,563
Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) of associates 87 104
Profit/(Loss) before tax 17,824 -14,459
Tax expense:
- Current tax (including MAT) 2693 25
- Deferred tax (including of MAT credit) 1077 -748
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax 14,054 -13,736
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 23 45
Income tax effect -7 -2
Total Comprehensive Profit/(Loss) 14,071 -13,693
Cash Profit/(Loss) 23,714 -3,301

Income

The company’s total income has increased by 111%
from % 41,627 Lakhs during FY22 to ¥ 87,857 Lakhs
during FY23.

e Revenue from operations increased by 118% from
¥ 40,224 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 87,499 Lakhs for FY23.
This was driven by the recovery in the hospitality
industry and by:

— ARR led revenue growth. ARR of the company saw
an increase of 54% in FY23 as compared to FY22

— The revenue from food and beverages increased
by 97% from % 5,808 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 11,440
Lakhs for FY23

— Occupancy increased by 2,197 bps from 46.1% in
FY22 to 68.1% in FY23

e The company’s fees from managed hotels also
increased by 104% from % 1,758 Lakhs for FY22 to
¥ 3581 Lakhs for FY23.

e Lastly, Other Income decreased by 75% from
% 1,403 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 358 Lakhs for FY23.

Expenses

As operations stabilised during the year, total expenses
increased by 51% from % 28,358 Lakhs for FY22 to
¥ 42,742 Lakhs for FY23

e The cost of food and beverages consumed increased
in line with the increase in Food and Beverages
revenue from ¥ 2,785 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 4,990
Lakhs for FY23. Moreover, the cost of food and
beverages consumed as a percentage of Food and
Beverages revenue has improved from 48% for
FY22 to 44% for FY23.

e Employee benefit expenses increased by 54% from
¥ 9,732 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 14,973 Lakhs for FY3
owing to redeployment of manpower in line with
increase in demand and normal yearly increment
in salaries.

e Power and Fuel expenses increased by 57%
from ¥ 4,375 Lakhs for FY22 to % 6,871 Lakhs for
FY23; which is due to an increase in occupancy and
change in business mix.

e Other expenses increased by 55% from % 9,940
Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 15,429 for FY23; which is due
to an increase in overall business activities.

e The company incurred a one-off Stamp Duty
expense in FY23 (pertaining to the merger of the
subsidiary companies) of ¥ 478 Lakhs. This is a non-
recurring expense and is in line with the company’s
business strategy.

EBITDA

The company’s EBITDA increased by 240% from
% 13,269 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 45,114 Lakhs for FY23.
EBITDA margins increased by 1947 bps from 32% for
FY22 to 51% for FY23. This was majorly due to cost
rationalisation measures, focus on retail segment,
churning of low paying corporates and focused strategy
to reprice our hotels.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation expenses decreased by
7% from ¥ 10,435 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 9,660 Lakhs for

FY23 primarily due to completion of the useful life of
certain assets.

Finance Costs

Total debt marginally increased by 2.76%
from < 1,69,865 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 1,74,573 Lakhs for
FY23. The finance cost increased by 1% from ¥ 18,094
Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 18,235 Lakhs for FY23. The finance
cost increased due increase of the company's weighted
average cost of debt by 29 bps from 8.09% for FY22
to 8.38% for FY23.

Profit for the year (PAT)

The company’s PAT for the year FY23 is ¥ 14,054
Lakhs up from a loss of ¥ 13,736 Lakhs for FY22. The
improvement was majorly due uptick in the operational
performance of the company and the lean cost control
measures deployed by the company.

Cash Profit (PAT + Depreciation)

The company’s cash profit for the year FY23 is¥ 23,714
Lakhs up from cash loss of ¥ 3,301 Lakhs in FY22.

Performance of Owned/Leased hotels by brand - FY23 vs. FY22

Hotel Level EBITDAR/ Hotel Level EBITDAR

Parameters Occupancy Rate (%) Average Daily Rate (%) Room (X in Lakhs) Margin %
Change Change Change Change
By Brand FY23 FY22 —— FY23 FY22——— FY23 FY22——— FY23 FY22——
(bps) (%) (%) (bps)
AHR 49% 36% 1,294 14,639 13,574 8% 23.6 15.2 55% 64% 62% 145
LTP 76% 59% 1,669 6,464 3,658 77% 13.4 4.1  228% 60% 41% 1,891
LTH 69% 46% 2,277 5,154 3,418 51% 8.5 2.6 233% 51% 34% 1,663
RFH 70% 41% 2,925 4,025 2,657 51% 5.8 1.4 305% 55% 31% 2,340
Keys 54% 30% 2,385 3,332 2,177 53% 2.8 0.6 396% 37% 18% 1,921
Aurika by 233% from ¥ 2.6 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 8.5 Lakhs for

ADR increased by 8% from % 13,574 for FY22 to
% 14,639 for FY23. Occupancy increased by 1,294 bps
from 36% for FY22 to 49% for FY23. EBITDAR/room
increased by 55% from % 15.2 Lakhs for FY22 to % 23.6
Lakhs for FY23. EBITDAR margin increased by 145 bps
from 62% for FY22 to 64% for FY23.

Lemon Tree Premier

ADR increased by 77% from % 3,658 for FY22 to
% 6,464 for FY23. Occupancy increased by 1,669 bps
from 59% for FY22 to 76% for FY23. EBITDAR/room
increased by 228% from T 4.1 Lakhs for FY22to313.4
Lakhs for FY23. EBITDAR margin increased by 1,891
bps from 41% for FY22 to 60% for FY23.

Lemon Tree Hotels

ADR increased by 51% from ¥ 3,418 for FY22 to % 5,154
for FY23. Occupancy increased by 2,277 bps from 46%
for FY22 to 69% for FY23. EBITDAR/room increased

FY23. EBITDAR margin increased by 1,663 bps from
34% for FY22 to 51% for FY23.

Red Fox Hotels

ADR increased by 51% from ¥ 2,657 for FY22 to ¥ 4,025
for FY23. Occupancy increased by 2,925 bps from 41%
for FY22 to 70% for FY23. EBITDAR/room increased
by 305% from % 1.4 Lakhs for FY22 to % 5.8 Lakhs for
FY23. EBITDAR margin increased by 2,340 bps from
31% for FY22 to 55% for FY23.

Keys Hotels

ADR increased by 53% from % 2,177 for FY22 to % 3,332
for FY23. Occupancy increased by 2,385 bps from 30%
for FY22 to 54% for FY23. EBITDAR/room increased
by 396% from % 0.6 Lakhs for FY22 to ¥ 2.8 Lakhs for
FY23. EBITDAR margin increased by 1,921 bps from
18% for FY22 to 37% for FY23.
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Board's Report

TO,
THE MEMBERS
OF LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

The Board of Directors of the Company has the pleasure in presenting the Thirty First (31%t) Board Report of
the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

Financial Results and Operations

The financial performance on the basis of the Standalone & Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial

Year ended March 31, 2023, is summarised below:

% in Lakhs
Standalone Consolidated

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations 31,026.09 12,918.90 87,498.95 40,224.01
Other Income 63.79 298.51 357.65 1,402.99
Total Income 31,089.88 13,217.41 87,856.60 41,627.00
Total Expense 13,649.36 8,920.25 42,742.26 28,357.76
Profit before finance Cost, finance Income, 17,440.52 4,297.16 45,114.34 13,269.24
depreciation and amortisation and tax
Less: Finance Costs 4,482.83 4,794.36 18,234.65 18,093.70
Less Finance Income (369.92) (339.73) (517.41) (695.92)
Less: Depreciation and amortisation 1,995.23 2,103.29 9,660.16 10,434.75
Profit / (Loss) before tax expense & Share of Profit 11,332.38 (2,260.76) 17,736.94 (14,563.29)
of associates
Share of Profit of associate - - 86.88 104.06
Profit / (Loss) before tax 11,332.28 (2,260.76) 17,823.82 (14,459.23)
Tax Expense:
- Current Tax (including MAT) 1,992.24 - 2,692.87 25.24
- Deferred Tax (including of MAT credit) 1,303.09 (654.98) 1,076.95 (748.30)
Profit / (Loss) for the Year 8,037.05 (1,605.78) 14,054.00 (13,736.17)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income / Expense for 13.38 4.60 16.83 42.97
the year
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 8,050.43 (1,601.18) 14,070.83 (13,693.20)
Less: Non - controlling Interest - - 2,600.37 (4,975.98)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 8,050.43 (1,601.18) 11,470.46 (8,717.22)
attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Earning / (Loss) per Equity Share (Face value of
¥ 10 each)
Basic 1.02 (0.20) 1.45 (1.11)
Diluted 1.02 (0.20) 1.45 (1.11)

Further, key financial and operational highlights of the Company are also provided in the Management Discussion

and Analysis forming part of this Board Report.

Capital Structure

Authorised Share Capital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is ¥ 10,02,89,00,000 divided into 1,00,14,40,000 Equity Shares
of ¥ 10 each and 1,45,000 5% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each.

Paid-up Share Capital

During the Financial Year under review, the Issued and
Paid-up Share Capital of the Company remained at
% 7,92,24,64,640/- divided into 79,22,46,464 equity
shares with a face value of ¥ 10/- each.

Operational Hotels and Upcoming Projects

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited is a Company engaged in
the hotel business and there has been no change in
the nature of its business during the Financial Year
under review.

The details of operational hotels and upcoming projects
are given in the “Corporate Insight" section of the
Integrated Report 2022-23.

Awards and Recognition

During the Financial Year under review, the Company
has received the following key awards and recognition:

e Gold Certification by the Indian Green Building
Council (I.G.B.C.) for 5 hotels
— Lemon Tree Premier, Ulsoor Lake, Bengaluru
— Lemon Tree Hotel, Electronics City, Bengaluru
— Lemon Tree Hotel, Gachibowli, Hyderabad
— Lemon Tree Premier, Mumbai International Airport
— Aurika, Udaipur

e Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels,
Thiruvananthapuram - Chief Minister’s Excellence
Award for Labour Welfare

e Lemon Tree Premier, Dwarka - Asia’s Biggest
Tourism Awards, organised by the Ministry of
Tourism Gujarat:

— Best 4 Star Hotel in Dwarka
— Best Restaurant in Dwarka
— Best MICE Venue in Dwarka

e TripAdvisor Traveller’s Choice Award 2022 - 61 out
of 80 eligible hotels:

— Aurika Hotels & Resorts - 1

— Lemon Tree Premier -14

— Lemon Tree Hotels -31

— Red Fox by Lemon Tree Hotels -8

— Keys Select by Lemon Tree Hotels -7

¢ HRANI Award of Excellence

HRANI Conclave:

during 7t

— Lemon Tree, East Delhi Mall, Kaushambi awarded
as “Best MICE Hotel - Ghaziabad”

— General Manager of the Hotel awarded as the "Best
General Manager —Midscale”

Board of Directors & Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP)

The details of the Directors and KMP [as per Companies
Act, 2013 ('Act')] of the Company as on March 31,
2023, are given herein below:

S. Name of Directors/ Designation

No. KMP’s
1 Mr. Patanjali Govind Chairman & Managing Director
Keswani

Vice Chairman and Lead
Independent Non-Executive
Director

2 Mr. Niten Malhan*

3 Mr. Willem Albertus Non-Executive Director

Hazeleger

4  Mr. Aditya Madhav Non-Executive Director
Keswani

5 Mr. Paramartha Saikia Independent Non-Executive

Director

6 Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Independent Non-Executive
Desai Director

7 Dr. Arindam Kumar Independent Non-Executive

Director
Chief Financial Officer

AVP Legal & Group Company
Secretary

Bhattacharya
8 Mr. Kapil Sharma
9  Mr. Nikhil Sethi

* Mr. Niten Malhan was re-designated as Vice Chairman and Lead
Independent Non-Executive Director by resolution of the Board
of Directors w.e.f February 10, 2023

Changes in Board of Directors/KMPs

Appointments

During the Financial Year under review, Mrs. Freyan
Jamshed Desai and Mr. Paramartha Saikia, Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company have been
re-appointed in the Annual General Meeting held on
September 14, 2022, for a further term of 5 years
effective June 15, 2022.

Further, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors has
approved the re-appointment of Mr. Patanjali Govind
Keswani, Chairman and Managing Director for a further
period of 3 years w.e.f April 1, 2023, subject to the
approval of shareholders by way of special resolution.
The Company has circulated the postal ballot notice to
the shareholders of the Company for approval of his
re-appointment.

Further, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May
30, 2023, have recommended the re-appointment
of Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya w.e.f April 11,
2024, for a further period of 5 years subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
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In accordance with the Act and the Articles of
Association of the Company, 1 (one) of the Directors,
viz. Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger will retire by rotation,
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Shareholder approval for the aforesaid re-appointment
of Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya, Independent Non-
Executive Director and Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger,
Non-Executive Director shall be sought in the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Resignations/Retirement/Cessation

During the Financial Year under review, Mr. Ashish
Kumar Guha and Mr. Arvind Singhania ceased to be
Independent Non-Executive Directors w.e.f. September
14, 2022 and Mr. Pradeep Mathur ceased to be an
Independent Non-Executive Director w.e.f December
4, 2022 since the resolutions with respect to their re-
appointment were not passed by the shareholders by
requisite majority in the Annual General meeting held
on September 14, 2022.

The Board appreciated the valuable services rendered
by them during their tenure with the Company.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors have
given the necessary declarations in terms of Section
149 (7) of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred to as "SEBI (LODR) Regulations"),
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149 (6) of the Act along with a
declaration of compliance of sub-rule (1) and sub-
rule (2) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

As on March 31, 2023, the Board has the following
mandatory Committees:

e Audit Committee;

e Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;

e Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee; and

e Risk Management Committee.

The details of the compositions, meetings held during
the Financial Year under review, attendance of the
Committee members and the terms of reference of
the above Committees are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report attached as ‘Annexure-5’ to this
Board Report.

Apart from the above-mentioned Committees, the
details of the compositions, meetings held during the

Financial Year under review and attendance of the
members of the following non-mandatory Committees
are given in ‘Annexure-1’ to this Board Report:

(@) Finance Committee;
(b) Share Allotment Committee;

(c) General Management Committee.

During the Financial Year under review, the Board met
four (4) times and the details of the Board Meetings
held indicating the number of meetings attended by
each Director is provided in the Corporate Governance
Report attached as ‘Annexure-5’ to this Board Report.

To comply with the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of
the Act and rules made thereunder and Regulation
17(10) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Board
of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation
of its own performance including its Committees
(wherein the concerned Director being evaluated did
not participate). The performance of the Board was
evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Directors on the basis of the criteria such as strategy,
performance management, risk management, core
governance & compliance, organisation’s health and
talent management.

Further, to comply with the Regulation 25(4) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors also evaluated the performance of the
Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors, Chairman
and Board as a body at a separate meeting of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors held on May
29, 2023.

The evaluation of all the Directors and the Board as
a whole was conducted based on the criteria and
framework adopted by the Board. On the basis of
the ranking filled in the evaluation questionnaire and
discussion by the Board, the performance of the Board,
its committees and individual Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) has been
assessed as satisfactory.

Code of Conduct and Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has in place a mechanism for employees
for reporting genuine concerns from reprisal and
victimisation. The policy is available in the ‘Investor
Relations’ section at the Company’s website
https://investors.lemontreehotels.com/corporate-

governance-coc-and-vigil-mechanism.html. During the

Financial Year under review, no concerns have been
received by the Company from any of the Directors,
Officers, employees and associates pertaining to
the Code of Conduct and Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
Blower Policy.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy
formulated in accordance with the provisions of Section
134(3)(n) of the Act, which is available in the ‘Investor
Relations’ section at the Company’s website https://
www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/Risk
Management_Policy.pdf. There has been no change
in the policy during the Financial Year under review.
The Company has a system in place for identification
of risks associated with the Company’s objectives,
operations, development, revenue and regulations and
appropriate measures are taken, wherever required,
to mitigate such risks beforehand.

The Risk Management Committee has a Risk
Management Framework in place with a standardised
methodology, tools, and procedures for identifying and
monitoring the Company’s material business risks.

The Company has in place a Compliance Framework
to cover compliances applicable across the Company’s
corporate office and hotels. This framework assigns
the responsibility of compliance execution and review
to the respective compliance owners and allows all
key stakeholders to monitor compliance execution and
associated risks at any given point of time.

The Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors report
to the Audit Committee during their audit and highlight
risk(s), if any, associated with the organisation and,
in consultation with the management and the Audit
Committee, also suggest the appropriate measures
which can be taken by the Company in this regard.

The Statutory Auditors also report to the Audit
Committee any instance of non-adherence to the
procedures and manuals which may increase the risk
of frauds in the organisation.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has in place a Nomination and
Remuneration Policy which lays down the criteria
for appointment, evaluation of performance of
Directors and remuneration of Directors, KMP, Senior
Management Personnel and other employees. There
has been no change in the policy since the last Financial
Year. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
attached as ‘Annexure-2’ to this Board Report.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company
has taken necessary approval/recommendation with
respect to appointment/re-appointment of Directors/

KMP, wherever required, from Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
terms of the policy.

Corporate Social Responsibility (“"CSR")
Policy

The Company has in place a CSR Policy, formulated
in terms of provisions of Section 135(4) of the Act
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules,2014. The policy is available
in the ‘Investor Relations’ section at the Company’s
website https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/
Policies/Corporate_Social_Responsibility_Policy.pdf.

The report on CSR Activities for the Financial Year
under review as required under Section 134 and 135 of
the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 read with Rule
9 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached
as ‘Annexure-3’ to this Board Report.

Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has in place a Policy on Distribution of
Dividend to comply with Regulation 43A of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations. The policy is available in the
‘Investor Relations’ section at the Company’s website
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies

Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf.

Policy on Appointment and Rotation of
Auditors

The Policy on Appointment and Rotation of Auditors in
compliance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Act
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is available in the ‘Investor Relations’ section at
the Company’s website https://www.lemontreehotels.
com/factsheet/Policies/Rotation_of_ Auditors_Policy.
pdf.

Policy on Board Diversity

During the Financial Year under review, in compliance
with the requirements of the terms of reference of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, a Policy on
Board Diversity to enhance the quality of performance
of the Board has been approved by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in their meeting held
on February 10, 2023. The policy is available in the
‘Investor Relations’ section at the Company’s website
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies

Policy on_Board_Diversity.pdf.

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has fifteen
(15) Direct Subsidiary Companies and nine (9)
Indirect Subsidiary Companies and three (3)
Associate Companies:
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Direct Subsidiary Companies

Fleur Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Carnation Hotels Pvt. Ltd.,
Canary Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Sukhsagar Complexes Pvt.
Ltd, Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Lemon Tree
Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd., Red Fox Hotel Company
Pvt. Ltd., Hamstede Living Private Limited, Grey Fox
Project Management Company Pvt. Ltd., PSK Resorts
& Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Dandelion Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Madder
Stays Private Limited, Arum Hotels Private Limited
(formerly known as Jessamine Stays Private Limited)
and Nettle Hotels Private Limited (formerly known as
Poplar Homestead Holdings Private Limited).

During the Financial Year under review, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company viz: Totally Foxed
Solutions Private Limited has been incorporated with
the objective of carrying out the digital transformation
of Lemon Tree Group and the creation of hospitality
digital platform.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company
has acquired a 25.10% shareholding of Carnation Hotels
Private Limited from Mr. Rattan Keswani and thereafter
Carnation Hotels Private Limited has become a Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of the Company.

Merger/Amalgamation of Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries of the Company

The shareholders are apprised that the Company
has received the first motion order from the National
Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi ("NCLT”) w.r.t
the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) of Wholly
Owned Subsidiary(ies) of the Company viz. Valerian
Management Services Private Limited (“Transferor
Company No. 1”), Grey Fox Project Management
Company Private Limited (“Transferor Company No.
2"), PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limited (“Transferor
Company No. 3”) and Dandelion Hotels Private Limited
(“Transferor Company No. 4”, (Transferor Company
No. 1, Transferor Company No. 2, Transferor Company
No. 3 and Transferor Company No. 4 together referred
as "Transferor Companies") with Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited (“Transferee Company”) for dispensation
of convening a meeting of equity shareholders and
creditors of the Transferor Companies and dispensation
of convening a meeting of secured creditors and
convening a meeting of shareholders and unsecured
creditors of the Transferee Company.

The NCLT court convened meeting of equity
shareholders and unsecured creditors was held on
January 19, 2023 for approval of the Scheme and the
Scheme has been duly passed by the shareholders
and creditors. Further, the Company has also filed the
Second Motion Application with the NCLT on January
31, 2023, and the final date of hearing is fixed for June

9, 2023. On the approval of the Scheme by the NCLT,
the Transferor Company (ies) shall be amalgamated
with the Company w.e.f April 1, 2022 (Appointed Date
of Scheme).

Indirect Subsidiary Companies

Berggruen Hotels Private Limited, Bandhav Resorts
Pvt. Ltd., Celsia Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Inovoa Hotels and
Resorts Ltd., Iora Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Ophrys Hotels Pvt.
Ltd., Hyacinth Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Manakin Resorts Pvt.
Ltd. and Valerian Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

Our Associate Companies

Further, as on March 31, 2023, the Company has three
(3) Associate Companies viz. Mind Leaders Learning
India Pvt. Ltd, Pelican Facilities Management Pvt. Ltd.
and Glendale Marketing Services Private Limited.

Further, the Subsidiary Companies viz. Fleur Hotels
Pvt. Ltd and Celsia Hotels Pvt. Ltd. are partners of
a limited liability partnership, Mezereon Hotels LLP
(“Mezereon”).

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act read with
Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and all its Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies
and joint venture companies have been prepared by
the Company and a report on the performance and
financial position of each of the Subsidiary Companies,
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures included in
the consolidated financial statement is attached as
‘Annexure-4’ to this Report.

In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Act, separate
audited accounts of the subsidiary companies shall
be available in the ‘Investor Relations’ section at the
Company’s website https://investors.lemontreehotels.
com/financials-subsidiaries.html. The Company will
make available physical copies of these documents
upon request by any shareholder of the Company
interested in obtaining the same.

Management Discussion and Analysis
Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis on the
Company’s performance, industry trends and other
material changes with respect to the Company, its
Subsidiary Companies and Associate Companies,
wherever applicable, has been given separately and
forms part of this Board Report.

Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(2)(f) of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Business Responsibility
and Sustainability Report is attached as ‘Annexure-10’
to this Board Report.

Integrated Report

The Company has voluntary adopted an Integrated
Report during the previous financial year. The
Integrated Report for the Financial Year under review
is prepared in alignment with the Integrated Reporting
Framework laid down by the International Integrated
Reporting Council and aims at presenting the value
creation approach for our stakeholders.

The Company has adopted good governance practices
and is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate ethics, professionalism and transparency.
The Company has adopted polices in line with good
corporate governance requirements including a Policy
on Related Party Transactions, Policy on Material
Subsidiary, Policy for Material Information and Events,
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, Dividend
Distribution Policy, Whistle Blower Policy and a Policy
on Board Diversity. These policies are available in the
‘Investor Relations’ section at the Company’s website

https://investors.lemontreehotels.com/#.

In compliance with the provisions of Regulations 34(3)
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, a separate report on
Corporate Governance together with a certificate from
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations is
attached as ‘Annexure-5’ to this Board Report.

The Company has not accepted any public deposits and
as such, no amount on account of principal or interest
on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of
the Balance Sheet.

The Company’s total long-term borrowings from
banks/ financial institutions increased from ¥ 34,172.83
Lakhs in the previous year to ¥ 35,260.87 Lakhs in the
current year.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company
has an Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2006 (‘ESOP
Scheme’).

A certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the
Company that the scheme has been implemented in
accordance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 will
be placed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for
inspection by shareholders of the Company.

Further, during the Financial Year under review,
684,850 shares have been exercised by the employees
of the Company through Krizm Hotels Private Limited
Employee Welfare Trust.

The applicable disclosures as stipulated under Rule
12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014 with regard to Employee’s Stock Option
Plan of the Company are given herein below and the
information required under the SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021 is available at the Company’s website
https://investors.lemontreehotels.com/corporate-

governance-esop-scheme.html.

Sr. . ESOP
No. Description Scheme
a) Options Granted -
b) Options Vested -
c) Options Exercised* -
d) Total number of shares arising as a result -
of exercise of option
e) Options lapsed* N.A.
f) The exercise price (On weighted average -
basis)**
g) Variation of terms of options N.A.
h) Money realised by exercise of options (if N.A.
scheme is implemented directly by the
Company)
i) Total number of options in force -
j) Employee wise details for options granted
to:-
(i) Key Managerial Personnel:
a) Mr. Kapil Sharma (Chief Financial N.A.
Officer)
b) Mr. Nikhil Sethi (AVP Legal & Group N.A.
Company Secretary)
(ii) any other employee who received N.A.
a grant of options in any one year of
option amounting to five percent of
more of options granted during that
year
(iii)identified employees who were granted N.A.

option, during any one year, equal to
or exceeding one percent of the issued
capital(excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the Company at
the time of grant

* All the options have been exercised by Krizm Hotels Private
Limited Employee Welfare Trust.

** Options granted prior to the listing of the Company’s shares
were based on the valuation done by an Independent Chartered
Accountant from time to time.
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The statement including the details of employees
as required to be furnished in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014
are set out in YAnnexure-6’ to this Board Report.

Disclosures pertaining to the remuneration and other
details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are provided in *Annexure-7’ to this Board Report.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(C) read with Section 134(5)
of the Act, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, hereby confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors and
applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2023 and of the profit and
loss of the Company for the Financial Year ended
on that date;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care, to
the best of their knowledge and ability, for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities;

(iv) the annual accounts of the Company have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

Statutory Auditors

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP
(FRN:117366W/W-100018), Chartered Accountants
have been re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on
September 14, 2022 for a further period of 5 years
upto conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in Calendar Year 2027.

The reports given by the Statutory Auditors on the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
and the Subsidiary and Associate Companies for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, forms part of
this Board Report. There have been no qualifications,
reservation or adverse remarks made by the Statutory
Auditors in their reports. The Statutory Auditors have
not reported any frauds under Section 143(12) of
the Act.

Secretarial Audit Report of the Company
and its material Subsidiary Companies

The Board of Directors of the Company, have appointed
M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the
Financial Year under review in accordance with Section
204 of the Act. The Secretarial Auditors have submitted
their report, which is annexed as ‘Annexure-8’ to
this Board Report. The Secretarial Audit Report
does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

As per Regulation 24A of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
the Secretarial Audit Report of the unlisted material
Subsidiary Companies conducted for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2023, by the Practicing Company
Secretaries are annexed as 'Annexure-9' to this
Board Report. None of the said Secretarial Audit Report
contains any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer.

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company,
has appointed M/s DPV & Associates LLP, Practicing
Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial Audit
for the FY24 in accordance with Section 204 of the Act.

There are no significant or material orders passed by
the regulators, courts or tribunals having an impact
on the future operations of the Company or its going
concern status.

The Company, being engaged in the hotel business, is
classified as providing infrastructure facilities in terms
of the Schedule VI to the Act and is exempted from
the compliance for loans made, guarantees given, and
security provided in terms of Section 186 (11) of the
Act. However, the details of loans, guarantees, and
investments made by the Company forms part of the
notes to the Financial Statements.

Further, the details required in terms of Regulation
34(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations with respect
to loans given by the Company to its subsidiaries is
given hereunder. For details regarding investments
and guarantees please refer to the notes to the
Financial Statements. The Company has not provided
any security covered under Section 186 of the Act &
accordingly the disclosure requirement does not apply.

% in Lakhs

Maximum loans
outstanding As at
during the year March 31, 2023 during the year March 31, 2022

Name of the Subsidiaries

Maximum loans
outstanding As at

2023 2022

Carnation Hotels Private Limited - - 2.72 -
Canary Hotels Private Limited 166.91 46.91 1493.98 91.91
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited 290.56 102.77 169.00 169.00
Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited 1,020.00 415.00 210.00 210.00
Red Fox Hotel Company Private Limited 2.11 2.11 2.11 2.11
Grey Fox Project Management Company Private 122.07 122.07 12.00 0.07
Limited

Dandelion Hotels Private Limited 11.00 11.00 11.00 11.00
PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limited 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Lemon Tree Hotel Company Private Limited 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Totally Foxed Solutions Private Limited 435.00 435.00 - -

In line with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, the Company has formulated
a Policy on Dealing with Related Party Transactions
which has been amended during the Financial Year
under review. The Policy can be accessed in the
‘Investor Relations’ section at the Company’s website
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies
Related Party_ Transaction_Policy.pdf. The Policy
intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval
and disclosure processes are in place for all material
transactions between the Company and related parties.

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by
the Company with related parties during the Financial
Year under review were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company
had not entered into any contract / arrangement
/ transaction with related parties which could be
considered material. In view of the above, the
requirement of giving particulars of contracts /
arrangements / transactions made with related parties
in Form AOC-2 are not applicable for the Financial Year
under review. Further, you may refer to other Related
Party Transactions in Note No. 33 and Note No. 38 of
the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements.

In accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act
read with rules made thereunder, the Annual
Return of the Company in Form MGT-7 has been
placed on the website of the company, https://
www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/LTHL
Annual_Return_2023.pdf.

There have been no material changes and commitments,
if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the Financial
Year to which the Financial Statements relate and the
date of this Board Report.

As per the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2013, the
measures taken during the Financial Year under review
for conservation of energy and technology absorption
by the Company in the operation of its hotels are
as follows:
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A. Conservation of Energy:

Lemon Tree Hotels is committed to maintaining
eco-friendly and energy conservation practices
across all of its hotel properties. The Company
strongly believes in conservation and accordingly
has implemented many eco-friendly processes
for energy and water preservation, waste
management disposal, measures to control water,
noise and environmental pollution. Our existing
and upcoming hotels are designed and constructed
to qualify for the L.E.E.D Gold Standard.

Further, the details of steps taken for conservation
of energy are provided in Business Responsibility
and Sustainability Report which forms part of this
Board Report.

The Company has utilised an alternative source of
energy viz. renewable energy in the form of Solar
Photo voltaic systems which are being utilised by
its hotels. The Company is also using solar hot
water systems in its hotels to reduce heating load
for hot water systems.

The Company has made capital investments in
the installation and commissioning of solar photo
voltaic systems at its hotels to capture free solar
energy for reducing the energy requirement and
in the installation of heat recovery ventilation and
heat recovery wheel systems.

B. Technology Absorption, Research &
Development (R & D):

The Company is in the service industry and
operates and manages its hotels across India,
UAE and Bhutan. However, no know how and
technology has been imported during the financial
year under review. However, efforts have been
made to imbibe various new technologies like
green building, rainwater harvesting, use of
plumbing faucets, and sewage treatment plants.

The Company during the Financial Year under
review has not carried out any activity which can be
construed as Research & Development. Therefore,
there is nothing to report under this section.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The information regarding foreign exchange
earnings and outgo for the Financial Year under
review is mentioned hereunder:

% in Lakhs

S. Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1. Earningin 1,722.59 585.11

Foreign Currency
2. Outgo in Foreign

Currency

-Value of Capital - -

Goods Imported

on CIF basis

-Commission/ 138.72 92.09

Advertisement
and business
promotion

The Company does not propose any dividend on the
shares of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023.

No transfers to reserves were made, as no
appropriations were required to be made during the
Financial Year under review.

The Company’s internal control systems are
commensurate with the nature of its business and the
size and complexity of its operations. The Statutory
Auditors and the Internal Auditors routinely conduct
system checks and give their report after evaluation
of the efficacy and adequacy of the Company’s internal
control systems including controls with respect to
the financial statements, compliance with operating
systems, accounting procedures and policies. Based
on the report of the Internal Auditors, the departments
undertake corrective action in their respective areas
and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant
audit observations and follow up actions thereon are
reported to the Audit Committee as well and further
corrective action taken as per the inputs received
from the Audit Committee, Statutory Auditors and
Internal Auditors.

Maintenance of cost records and the requirement
of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of
Section 148(1) of the Act are not applicable for the
business activities carried out by the Company.

During the Financial Year under review the Company
has complied with the Secretarial Standards on Board
and General meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

The Company has not made any application under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the
Financial Year under review.

The Company has not done any one-time settlement
with banks during the Financial Year under review.

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment
Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the
Financial Year under review, no complaint was
received by the Corporate Ethics Committee formed
in this regard.

Further, an Internal Complaints Committee is also in
place at all hotel locations and no complaint has been
received during the Financial Year under review.

Pursuant to Section 101 and 136 of the Act read with the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 and the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the

Company can send Notice of Annual General Meeting,
financial statements and other communications in
electronic form.

The Company shall be sending this Board Report
including the Notice of Annual General Meeting, Audited
Financial Statements, along with annexures etc. for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, in the electronic
mode to the shareholders who have registered their
email ids with the Company and/or their respective
Depository Participants (‘DPs’). Shareholders who
have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are
requested to register their e-mail addresses.

Those shareholders holding shares in dematerialised
form can register their e-mail addresses with their
concerned DPs. Shareholders who hold shares in
physical form are requested to register their e-mail
addresses with the Company, by sending a letter, duly
signed by the first/sole holder quoting details of their
Folio No.

The Board of Directors place on record their
appreciation for the valuable support and cooperation
of the Company’s bankers, government agencies,
customers, suppliers, shareholders, employees and
other statutory authorities, who have reposed their
continued trust and confidence in the Company.

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

DATE: May 30, 2023 Chairman & Managing Director
PLACE: New Delhi DIN:00002974
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ANNEXURE-1

Annexure(s) to the Board’s Report

During the Financial Year under review, two (2) Finance Committee meetings were held on April 27, 2022,

and July 12, 2022.

Attendance of Committee Members for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023:

Name of the Member

Designation No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani Chairman & Member 1
Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger Member 1
Mr. Pradeep Mathur* Member 1
Mr. Paramartha Saikia Member 2

* Mr. Pradeep Mathur ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and member of the Finance

Committee w.e.f December 4, 2022.

During the Financial Year under review, no Share Allotment Committee meeting was held.

Name of the Member

Designation

Mr. Paramartha Saikia

Chairman & Member

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani

Member

Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha*

Member

* Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and member of the Share

Allotment Committee w.e.f September 14, 2022.

During the Financial Year under review, six (6) General Management Committee meetings were held on
April 27, 2022, May 30, 2022, July 20, 2022, August 29, 2022, November 25, 2022, and February 13, 2023

Attendance of Committee Members for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023:

Name of the Member

Designation No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani Chairman & Member 6
Mr. Paramartha Saikia Member 1
Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani Member 6

DATE: May 30, 2023
PLACE: New Delhi

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:00002974

ANNEXURE-2

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with applicable rules and regulations
and in pursuance of the policy of Lemon Tree
Hotels Limited (‘Company’) to consider its
human resources as its invaluable assets, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company re-constituted on September 18,
2014 has formulated this policy on nomination
and remuneration of Directors, Key managerial
personnel, senior management personnel and
other employees of the Company (hereinafter
referred as ‘Policy’) and which has been adopted
by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting on 19.02.2015.

The objective of this Policy is to determine the
criteria for appointment, removal, evaluation
of performance of Directors and remuneration
of Directors, key managerial personnel, senior
management personnel and other employees.

In this Policy unless the context otherwise requires:

(@) “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 including
the applicable Rules & regulations;

(b) “Board of Directors” or “Board”, in relation
to the Company, means the collective body
of the directors of the Company and includes
the committees of the Board;

(c) “Directors” means Directors of the Company
appointed in terms of provisions of the Act;

(d) “Independent Director” means a director
referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Act;

(e) “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” in
relation to a company, means:

(i) Chief Executive Officer (*CEQ’) or the
Managing Director (*MD’) or the Manager;

(ii) Company Secretary;

(iii) Whole-time Director (‘"WTD’);

(iv) Chief Financial Officer; and

(v) such other officer as may be prescribed;

(f) “NRC” means Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company as constituted or
reconstituted by the Board;

(g) “Rules & regulations” refers to and comprise
of Companies Act, 2013, The Companies

(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014, The Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, and
such other rules and provisions as applicable
to the matters dealt in by this Policy;

(h) “Senior Management Personnel” for this
purpose shall mean employees of the company
who are members of its core management
team excluding Board of Directors. It would
comprise all members of management one
level below the executive director(s), including
the functional /vertical heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and
expressions used in this policy and not defined
herein but defined in the Act as may be amended
from time to time shall have the meaning
respectively assigned to them therein.

This Policy is applicable to:

(i) Directors viz. Executive, Non-executive
and Independent

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel
(iii) Senior Management Personnel

(iv) Other Employees of the Company

This Policy is divided in three parts:

Part-A covers the matters to be dealt with and
recommended by the NRC to the Board within
Scope of Policy;

Part-B covers the appointment and nomination of
Directors; and

Part-C covers remuneration etc for the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

PART-A

The matters to be dealt by NRC in terms of this
Policy are as follows:

a. Formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and identify
persons who are qualified to become
Directors and persons who may be appointed
in Key Managerial and Senior Management
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Personnel, recommend to Board their
appointment and removal;

Carry out evaluation of the performance of
Directors, as well as Key Managerial and
Senior Management Personnel and to provide
for reward(s) linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement
relating to the Company’s operations;

Determine remuneration based on the
Company’s size and financial position and
trends and practices for remuneration
prevailing in similar companies in the industry;

PART-B

The NRC shall identify and ascertain the
positive attributes, integrity, independence,
qualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as Directors, or Senior
Management Personnel and recommend to
the Board his / her appointment.

A person should possess adequate
qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he/ she is considered for appointment.
The NRC has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience
possessed by a person are sufficient for the
concerned position.

A person shall be appointed as Independent
Director subject to the compliance of
provisions of section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with schedule IV and rules
there under.

The Company shall not appoint or continue
the employment of any person as MD/WTD/
Manager who is below the age of twenty-
one years or has attained the age of seventy
years. Provided that the appointment of a
person who has attained the age of seventy
years may be appointed with the approval of
shareholders by passing a special resolution
based on the explanatory statement annexed
to the notice for such motion indicating the
justification for appointment of such person.

MD/ WTD/ Manager

Subject to the applicable provisions of the
Act and the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, the Company
shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its
MD/WTD/Manager for a term of maximum

five (5) consecutive years at a time. No
reappointment shall be made earlier than one
(1) year before the expiry of term.
Independent Director

(i) Subject to the applicable provisions of

provisions of the Act and the prevailing HR policy
of the Company. The Board will have the discretion
to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management
Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or
otherwise even after attaining the retirement age,
subject to compliance of applicable laws, for the
benefit of the Company.

the Act, an Independent Director shall
hold office for a maximum term of five
(5) consecutive years on the Board of
the Company with the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting and
will be eligible for re-appointment on
passing of a special resolution by the
shareholders of the Company for another
term of maximum five (5) years and
disclosure of such appointment be made
in the Board’s Report.

(i) Any Independent Director, who has
completed his two consecutive terms,
shall be eligible for appointment after
expiry of three (3) years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director
shall not, during the said period of three
years, be appointed in or be associated
with the Company in any other capacity,
either directly or indirectly.

(iii) The Independent Director shall not be
liable to retire by rotation.

Any person who is disqualified for appointment/
reappointment as a director in terms of Section
164 of the Act shall not be eligible for appointment/
re-appointment, as the case may be, as a Director
of a company.

The NRC shall carry out evaluation of performance
of every Director and a statement indicating the
manner in which formal annual evaluation has
been made by the Board of its own performance
and that of its committees and individual directors
shall be disclosed in the Board Report.

The NRC may recommend, to the Board with
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director,
KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to
the provisions of the Act.

The Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel shall retire/resign as per the applicable

PART - C

The NRC, while deciding the remuneration/
compensation/profit-linked commission for
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees, to ensure:

(i) That the level and composition of
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors
of the quality required to run the
company successfully;

(ii) That the relationship of remuneration
to performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks;

(iii) That the remuneration to directors,
key managerial personnel and other
employees including senior management
officials involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals;

The remuneration/ compensation/ profit-
linked commission, etc. to the MD/WTD/
Manager, Directors and Independent Directors
and increments thereto will be determined
by the NRC subject to the approval of the
Board, shareholders of the Company and
Central Government, wherever required, in
accordance with the percentage / slabs /
conditions in terms of the applicable provisions
of the Act.

Where any insurance is taken by the Company
on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the
Company Secretary and any other employees
for indemnifying them against any liability,
the premium paid on such insurance shall
not be treated as part of the remuneration
payable to any such personnel.

Provided that if such person is proved to be
guilty, the premium paid on such insurance
shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

Determination of remuneration and increments
of KMP, Senior Management officials and other
employees shall be effected in terms of the
HR policies of the Company.

Remuneration

Subject to Section 197 and Schedule V of the
Act, the MD/WTD/Manager will be eligible
for remuneration either by way of a monthly
payment or at a specified percentage of the
net profits of the company or partly by one
way and partly by the other with the approval
of the Shareholders of the Company on the
recommendation of the NRC and the Board.
The break-up of the pay scale, performance
bonus and quantum of perquisites including,
employer’s contribution to P.F., pension
scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc.
shall be decided and approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the NRC and shall
be within the overall remuneration approved
by the shareholders and Central Government,
wherever required in terms of the provisions
of the Act.

Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its MD/
WTD/Manager in accordance with the Act
and if it is not able to comply with such
provisions, then with the previous approval
of the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration

If any MD/WTD/Manager draws or receives,
directly or indirectly by way of remuneration
any such sums in excess of the limits
prescribed under the Act or without the
prior sanction of the Central Government,
where required, he / she shall refund such
sums to the Company and until such sum is
refunded, hold it in trust for the Company.
The Company shall not waive recovery of such
sum refundable to it unless permitted by the
Central Government.

Sitting Fees

The Non-executive Directors of the Company,
whether Independent or not, may be paid
sitting fees within maximum limit prescribed
by the Act from time to time for attending
meetings of the Board or Committees
thereof. The quantum of sitting fees will be
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determined as per the recommendation of
NRC and approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company. The Company may make
arrangement or reimburse the expenses
incurred by the Non-Executive/ Independent
Director(s) for travelling, boarding and
lodging for participation in the Board or
Committee meetings.

b. Commission

The Board, on recommendation of NRC,
may consider the payment of profit
based commission to the Non-Executive/
Independent Directors and such commission
may be paid within the prescribed limits and
subject to the Board approvals in terms of
the provisions of Act from time to time. The
net profits for the purposes of calculation of
commission shall be computed in the manner
referred to in section 198 of Act.

c. Stock Options

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an
Independent Director shall not be entitled to
any stock option of the Company. The officers
or other employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries will be granted stock options
in terms of the Company Employees Stock
Option policy subject to special resolution
passed by company and such other conditions
as may be prescribed by the Act.

a. The KMP, Senior Management Personnel and
other employees of the Company shall be
paid monthly remuneration, salary advance
and loans etc. as per the Company’s HR
policies and / or as approved by the NRC.
The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of
perquisites including employer’s contribution
to P.F., pension scheme, medical expenses,
club fees, etc. shall be as per the Company’s
HR policies.

b. As and when required by the NRC, a
presentation shall be given by the HR Head
detailing the performance bonus payouts
as well as the proposed increments in any
financial year. The NRC shall peruse and give
its suggestions, if any, on the process for
giving increments and performance bonus
payouts for implementation by the Company.

c. This Policy shall apply to all future/continuing
employment/engagement(s) with the

Company. In other respects, the Policy shall
be of guidance for the Board. Any departure
from the Policy shall be recorded and reasoned
in the NRC and Board meeting minutes.

d. The remuneration for KMP and Senior
Managerial Personnel of the Company
shall be approved by the NRC based on
the recommendation of the Chairman &
Managing Director and for other employees
based on the recommendation of the HR Head
in consultation with the Heads of various
Department/ Hotels of the Company. In case
any of the relevant regulations require that
remuneration of KMPs or any other officer is
to be specifically approved by the NRC and/
or the Board of Directors/Shareholders, then
such approval will be accordingly obtained.

The key features of the Policy shall be published
on Company’s website and accordingly will also
be disclosed in this Report as part of Board’s
report therein.

a. The NRC or the Board may review the Policy
as and when it deems necessary.

b. The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures,
formats, reporting mechanism for better
implementation of this Policy, wherever it
thinks necessary.

c. This Policy may be amended or substituted,
in whole or in part, by the NRC or Board.

d. In case of any statutory change not being
consistent with the provisions laid down under
this Policy, then such change shall prevail upon
the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall
stand amended accordingly from the effective
date as laid down under such statutory change
to the Act and the Compliance Officer of the
Company shall ensure that such amendment is
disseminated on the website of the Company,
wherever required.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors of

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

DATE: May 30, 2023 Chairman & Managing Director
PLACE: New Delhi DIN:00002974

ANNEXURE-3

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

The CSR Policy was formulated in terms of provision
of Section 135(4) of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014. As per the CSR Policy the Company shall undertake any CSR activities/projects/programmes
in the areas as specified in Schedule VII of the Act as amended from time to time.

Number of

Sl Designation / Nature of me:tL:nmbse;fOCf:SR meetings of

" Name of Member esig , 'g CSR committee

No. Directorship Committee held ttended duri
during the year attenced during

the year
1 Mr. Paramartha Saikia (Chairman & Independent Non-Executive Director 1 1
Member)

2 Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Member) Chairman and Managing Director 1 1

3 Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani (Member) Non-Executive Director 1 1

4  Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai (Member) Independent Non-Executive Director 1 0

The composition of the CSR Committee and the CSR Policy approved by the Board are available in the

‘Investors Relation’ section at the Company’s website https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/
Corporate_Social_Responsibility_Policy.pdf. There are no CSR projects approved by the Board till date.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off for
preceding financial years (in %) the financial year, if any (in %)

Nil

SIl. _. .
No. Financial Year

% (332.88) Lakhs
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Nil

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Nil
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(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not Applicable

Total Amount Spent for the

Financial Year. (in %)

Amount Unspent (in %)

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding

financial year(s): Not Applicable

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
section 135(6) 135(5)

Amount Date of Transfer

Name of the

Fund Amount Date of Transfer

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
, . Amount Cumulative
$|enaarnif1lal Total amount spent on the amount spent Status of
Sl. Project Name of the - Project allocated for project in at the end the project -
. which the - - . N
No. ID Project roiect was duration the project the reporting of reporting Completed /
zonimenced (in%) Financial Year Financial Year Ongoing

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

1) (2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 9) (10) (11)
Amount Mode of
Item from Local Location of Amount Amount transferred to Implementation
1. Name the list of aren the project Project allocated spent in Unspent CSR Mode of - Th"f’“Qh
. of the activities in (Yes/ duration for the the current Account for the Implementation - Implementing Agency
Project Schedule VII No) project financial project as per Direct (Yes/No) CSR
to the Act StateDistrict (in3) Year (in%) Section 135(6) Name Registration
(inx) number

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
Not Applicable

@ @ (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Mode of implementation

Location of the - Through implementing

Item from the Local project. Amount

Sl. :fa:;: list of activities area spent for :::dI:r:fentation . agency
* Project in schedule VII (Yes/ the project Diri:act (Yes/No) CSR
to the Act No) State District (in3) Name  registration

number

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil

(g9) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in %)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Nil

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year -

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial -
years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] -

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
transferred to Amount spent under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), remaining to
Sl. Preceding Unspent CSR in the reporting if any be spentin
No. Financial Year Account under Financial Year succeeding
section 135 (6) (inX) Name of the Amount Date of financial years
(in ?) Fund (inX) transfer (in %)

(in3) (in3)

Not Applicable
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of
the capital asset).

Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Date: May 30, 2023
Place: New Delhi

Chairman-CSR Committee
DIN: 07145770

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00002974
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ANNEXURE-4
Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement
of Subsidiary Companies/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

[Form AOC-1: Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Part "A": Subsidiaries

(% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
1 Sl. No. 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 SI. No. 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
. . Lemon . . Nettle Hotels A Hotel
Fleur Hotels Canary Carnation Dandelion Tree Hotel Manakin Oriole Dr. Sukhsagar i Pvt. rum Hotels
idi PSK Grey Fox Valerian Pvt. Ltd*
2 Name of the Subsidiary Hotels Pvt. Hotels Pvt. Hotels Pvt. Resorts Pvt. Fresh Hotels Complexes Red Fox Y Ltd*(Formerly
Pvt. Ltd. Ltd. Ltd. Ltd, * Company Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Resorts Project Management Hamstede (formerly Madder
Ltd. * 2 Name of the Subsidiary & Hotel Hotel t Services Pvt. Living Pvt known k Stays Pvt
Y otels company anagemen ervices . 1ving . as Poplar nown.as ays Pvt.
3 Date since when 25.09.2009 18.05.2012 18.01.2007 19.07.2007  24.01.2007 13.02.2009 10.01.2013 10.01.2013 pvt. Pvt. Ltd. *  Company Ltd. Ltd. Homestead  J&Ssamine Ltd.*
subsidiary was acquired Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Holdings Pvt. Stal_ﬁ F;"t'
4  Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. Ltd.)
subsidiary concerned, if 3 Date since when 13.02.2009 10.01.2013 28.09.2012 16.09.2013 31.03.2021 29.11.2018 28.11.2018 28.11.2018
different from the holding subsidiary was acquired
;Z??ggnys reporting 4  Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
subsidiary concerned, if
5 Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. different from the holding
Exchange rate as on the company'’s reporting
last date of the relevant period
Financial year in the case .
of foreign subsidiaries. 5 Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Exchange rate as on the
6  Share Capital# 9,783.15 5,009.45 9.35 1.15 3.50 571.43 370.00 1,019.50 last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case
7 Reserves & surplus 1,50,236.08 (1,910.39) 1,779.48 248.59 (4.27) 808.85 1,179.25 100.98 of foreign subsidiaries.
8  Total Assets 2,82,418.99 4,561.32 2,767.40 260.82 1.34 1,452.11 4,518.60 4,695.75 6 Share Capital# 118.69 3.00 455.01 1.00 2950.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
9  Total Liabilities 1,22,399.76 1,462.26 978.57 11.08 2.10 71.83 2,969.35 3,575.27 7 Reserves & surplus 2,218.86 (3.93) (382.03) (368.62) (2,665.21) (1.03) (1.04) (0.99)
10 Investments** - - - - - - - - 8  Total Assets 2,340.66 1.27 439.56 723  285.38 0.09 0.05 0.09
11 Turnover 37,424.72 1,152.77 2,632.67 - - 198.54 750.98 1,169.79 9 Total Liabilities 3.11 2.20 366.58 374.85 0.59 0.12 0.09 0.08
12 Profit /(Loss) before 3,575.05 21.94  1,192.03 (0.49) (0.41) (8.01) (60.73) 178.81 10 Investments** ) B i} i} i} ) i i}
taxation
13 Provision for taxation - - 312.95 - - 40.69 - - 11 Turnover - . >.00 19.29 - . . .
14 Profit /(Loss) after 3,575.05 21.94 879.08 (0.49) (0.41) (48.70) (60.73) 178.81 12 f;g::iéﬁmss) before (0:55) (0.38) (115.82) (47.03) 0.38 (0.23) (0.24) (0.19)
taxation
15 Proposed Dividend B B B B B N B B 13 Provision for taxation - - - - (1.09) - - -
16 % of shareholding*** 58.91% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 14 gﬂ:&éﬁmss) after (0:5%) (0-38) (115.82) (47.03) 1.47 (0.23) (0.24) (0.19)
15 Proposed Dividend - - - - - - - -
16 % of shareholding*** 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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(% in Lakhs) Part “"B": Associate Companies and Joint Ventures
1 Sl No. 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
1:::2’ Celsia Inovoa Iora Hotels Ophrys Hyacinth Bandhav Berggruen Joint Ventures
2  Name of the Subsidiary Solutions Hotels Hotels And Pvt. Ltd. *  Hotels Pvt.  Hotels Pvt. Resorts Pvt. Hotels Pvt.
P Pvt. Ltd. Resorts Ltd. ) . Ltd.* Ltd. Ltd Ltd (Z in Lakhs)
vt. Ltd.
3 Date since when 11.08.2022 29.03.2012 16.08.2013 14.11.2013 10.01.2014  19.07.2007 13.05.2016 01.11.2019 Sl. No. 1 2 3
subsidiary was acquired Name of the Associate Companies/Joint Ventures Mind Leaders Learning Pelican Facilities GE::,?Lzr::ititti:g
4  Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. India Private Limited = Management Pvt. Ltd Limited
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding Last audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2023
ompanys reporting Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated 06.06.2017 20.06.2017 10.12.2019
P or acquired
5 Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. . K
Exchange rate as on the (Sl\rllarfts) c;; Associate held by the Company at year end:
last date of the relevant umbe
Financial year in the case Amount of investment in Associate % 3.40 Lakhs - -
of foreign subsidiaries.
E Total number of shares 3,40,000 Equity Shares - -
6  Share Capital# 801.00 3.53 3,828.00 1,955.80 2.50 82.10 131.11 5,455.16 -
| Extent of holding % 36.56% -
7 Reserves & surplus 9.14 7,627.71 1,622.88 36,447.53 3.96 1,668.27 1,276.18 26,397.27
P ( ) ( ) ( ) Description of how there is significant influence Due to percentage of Being 100% subsidiary Being 100% subsidiary
8 Total Assets 1,248.15 11,962.58 6,680.54 65,951.74 0.64 24,721.43 1,469.80 47,307.29 Shareho|ding of our associate Mind of our associate Pelican
9  Total Liabilities 456.29  4,331.34 4,475.42  27,548.41 2.10 22,971.06 62.51  7,332.95 Lea(ljr?gisaLs\?{nL:g Facilities Ma”agsrﬁ?g
Xk - - - - - - - -
10 Investments Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated N.A. N.A.
11 Turnover - 3,212.41 2,139.19 - - 7,249.89 242.61 7,080.39 - - -
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited 1,242.52 - -
12 Profit /(Loss) before (0.50) 1,166.52 500.90 (122.06) (0.42) 1,272.77 (8.66) (382.78) balance sheet
taxation
Profit for the year(Consolidated)
13 Provision for taxation - 366.95 293.87 2.71 - - - - : : T
Considered in consolidation 86.88 N.A. N.A.
14 Profit /(Loss) after (0.50) 799.57 794.77 (124.77) (0.42) 1,272.77 (8.66) (382.78) - : S
taxation Not considered in consolidation N.A. N.A. N.A.
15 Proposed Dividend - - - - - - - -
16 % of shareholding*** 100% 58.91% 58.91% 58.91% 58.91% 58.91% 58.91% 58.91% For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Notes: Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

* Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations.
** Investments except investments in subsidiaries.

*** % of shareholding covers both direct and indirect shareholding in the subsidiaries.

# Includes only equity share capital.
#4# includes other equity.
###excludes other comprehensive income.

Date: May 30, 2023
Place: New Delhi

Patanjali Govind Keswani
Chairman & Managing Director

Kapil Sharma

Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00002974

Nikhil Sethi

AVP Legal & Group Company Secretary

Mem No.: A18883
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company believes in good corporate governance
practices. In compliance with Regulation 34 read
with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
report containing the details of Corporate Governance
of the Company is as follows:

The Company’s corporate governance philosophy
revolved around fair and transparent governance and
disclosure practices in line with the Principles of Good
Corporate Governance. This philosophy is backed by
principles of concerns, commitment, ethics, excellence
and learning in all its acts and relationships with
stakeholders, clients, associates and the community
at Large. The Company believes that good Corporate
Governance is a continuous process and strives to
improve its Corporate Governance practices to meet

ANNEXURE-5

shareholder’s expectations. The business is governed
and supervised by a strong Board of Directors and
together with the management they are committed to
uphold the principles of excellence across all activities.

The Company is compliant with the latest provisions
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR)
Regulations”) as amended from time to time.

The Company is managed and controlled through the
Board which comprises a combination of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors (including Independent
Non-Executive Directors) headed by the Executive
Chairman. As on March 31, 2023, the Board consists
of 7 Directors, 4 of which were Independent Non-
Executive Directors including one Woman Director.

The composition of the Board satisfies the conditions
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

Details of Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings held during the financial year under review and at
Company's last Annual General Meeting along with number of other Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership
of Committees of each Director:

No. of Board
Level Committee
Memberships /
Chairmanships in
other Indian Public
Companies (5)

Attendance Particulars
Name of other
No. of Listed

Name of the Directorships Entities in which

Designation /
Director Category

No. Name of the Director Category

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani

Chairman & Managing Director (Promoter Director)

Mr. Niten Malhan*

Vice Chairman and Lead Non-Executive Independent Director

Non-Executive Director (Promoter Director)

Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya

Independent Non-Executive Director

S.
1
2
3 Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani
4
5
6

Mr. Paramartha Saikia

Independent Non-Executive Director

7 Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai

Independent Non-Executive Director

* Mr. Niten Malhan was re-designated as Vice Chairman and Lead Independent Non-Executive Director by the Board of Directors

w.e.f February 10, 2023.

Notes:

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani is the father of Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani. There are no other inter-se relationships amongst the

Board members.

During the Financial Year under review, the Board
met four (4) times on May 27, 2022, August 2, 2022,
November 11, 2022, and February 10, 2023. The
maximum gap between any two Board meetings
was less than one hundred and twenty (120) days.
All Board meetings during the Financial Year under
review were held either in person or through Video
Conferencing (VC) and deemed venue of the meetings
held through VC is Registered & Corporate Office of the
Company at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District,
New Delhi-110037, India.

The agenda papers and detailed notes are circulated
to the Board well in advance of every meeting. Where
it is not practicable to attach any document to the
agenda, then the same is placed before the Board at
the meeting and in special circumstances additional
items on the agenda are taken up at the meeting. The
conduct of the Board meetings is in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Act and the Secretarial
Standards on meetings of the Board of Directors issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. In
case of business exigencies or urgency of matters,
resolutions are passed by circulation and same is
placed before the Board in the next meeting.

No. of Board Attendence (1) they are director
Meetings at last AGM and Category
Member Chairman Held/
entitled Attended Attended
to attend
Mr. Patanjali Govind Promoter/Executive 1 0 4 4 Yes 10 -
Keswani Chairman &
Managing Director
Mr. Niten Malhan*  Vice Chairman and 3 1 4 2 Yes 4 1) Max Ventures
Lead Independent and Industries
Non-Executive Limited
Director (Independent
Director) and
2) Max India
Limited
(Independent
Director)
Mr. Aditya Madhav ~ Promoter/ Non- 0 0 4 4 Yes 6 -
Keswani Executive Director
Mr. Willem Albertus Non-Executive 0 0 4 3 Yes 1 -
Hazeleger Director
Mr. Ashish Kumar Independent Non- 1 1 2 2 Yes 2 -
Guha** Executive Director
Mr. Arvind Independent Non- 0 0 2 1 Yes 2 1) Ester Industries
Singhania** Executive Director Ltd (Chairman
& Managing
Director)
Mr. Pradeep Independent Non- 1 1 3 2 Yes 3 -
Mathur** Executive Director
Dr. Arindam Kumar Independent Non- 4 0 4 3 No 5 1) Bajaj Holdings
Bhattacharya Executive Director and Investment
Limited
(Independent
Director)
2) Info Edge
India Limited
(Independent
Director)
Mr. Paramartha Independent Non- 2 0 4 4 Yes 7 1) Salora
Saikia Executive Director International
Limited
(Independent
Director)
Mrs. Freyan Independent Non- 2 1 4 3 Yes 1 -

Jamshed Desai Executive Director

* Appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f December 4, 2022, in place of Mr. Pradeep Mathur.

** Ashish Kumar Guha and Mr. Arvind Singhania ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company effective
September 14, 2022, and Mr. Pradeep Mathur, ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company effective
December 4, 2022.
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Notes:

(1) The directorships held by the Directors as
mentioned above (including the Company)
does not include alternate directorships and
directorships in foreign companies, companies
registered under Section 8 of the Act and Private
Limited Companies.

(2) None of the Directors of the Company hold
directorships in more than twenty (20) Companies
or more than ten (10) public companies whether
listed or not. Necessary disclosures regarding
directorship positions in other companies as on
March 31, 2023, have been made by the Directors.

(3) None of the Directors on the Board is a member
of more than ten (10) committees or Chairperson
of more than five (5) committees (as specified in
Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations in
all public limited companies, whether listed or not,
in which he or she is a director

(4) The independence of a Director is determined by
the criteria stipulated under Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, Section 149(6)
of the Act and rules made thereunder.

(5) In accordance with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
Memberships / Chairmanships of only Audit
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee/Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance
Committee of all public limited Companies
(including the Company) have been considered.

(6) Includes attendance, if any, through Video
Conferencing facilities, provided to the Directors
to facilitate participation in the meetings.

Mr. Niten Malhan, Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya,
Mr. Paramartha Saikia and Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai
were the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company as on March 31, 2023.

Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent

that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Act and the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations and the Board hereby confirms
that the Independent Non-Executive Directors fulfill
the conditions specified in these regulations and are
independent of the management.

A separate meeting of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors was held on May 29, 2023, without the
presence of the Executive Directors, the Non-
Independent Non-Executive Directors and members
of the management.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors in the said
meeting had, interalia:

i. reviewed the performance of Non-Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Board as a whole;

ii. reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of
the Company, taking into account the views of
the Executive Directors and the non-independent
Non-Executive Directors;

iii. assessed the quality, quantity, and timeliness of
flow of information between the management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

The Company does not have any pecuniary relationship
with any Non-Executive Director (including any
Independent Non-Executive Director) except for
payment of sitting fees to the Independent Non-
Executive Directors for attending the Board and
Committees’ meetings.

Familiarisation Programme for Independent
Directors

The Company follows an orientation and familiarisation
programmes through reports/internal policies/

The details of the familiarisation programme for the Independent Directors are available on the website

of the Company at https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/Familiarization_Programme_ for
Independent_Directors.pdf

The Board of Directors has identified the following skills / expertise / competencies fundamental for the effective

functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

Business

Understanding of business dynamics, across various geographical markets, industry verticals

and regulatory jurisdictions.

Leadership

Leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resulting in a practical understanding of

organisations, processes, strategic planning and risk management. Demonstrated strengths
in developing talent, succession planning and driving change and long-term growth.

Strategy and Planning

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in guiding and leading

management teams to make decisions in uncertain environments.

Governance

Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best interests of all stakeholders,

maintaining board and management ac-countability, building long-term effective stakeholder
engagements and driving corporate ethics and values.

Financial

Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance function of an enterprise,
resulting in proficiency in complex financial management, capital allocation and financial
reporting processes or experience in actively supervising a principle financial officer, principle
accounting officer, controller, public accountant, auditor or person performing similar function.

Sales & Marketing

Experience in developing strategies to grow sales and market share, build awareness and

equity and enhance enterprise reputation.

In terms of the requirement of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Board has identified the following core skills /
expertise /competencies of the Directors in the context of the Company’s business for effective functioning as

given below:

Strategy Sales &

Name of the Director Business Leadership and Governance Financial M .
H arketing

Planning
Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani v v v v v v
Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani v v v v
Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger v v v v v
Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya v v v v Ng
Mr. Paramartha Saikia v v v v
Mr. Niten Malhan v v v v v
Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai v v v v

The shareholding of Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2023, is as follows:

Name of the Director

Designation

No. of Shares Held
(face value of ¥ 10

Non-Executive Directors have been disclosed on the Presentations to enable them to understand their each)
website of the Company, https://www.lemontreehotels. roles and responsibilities, the nature of the industry Mr. Niten Malhan Vice Chairman and Lead Independent Non-Executive Director -
com/factsheet/Policies/Terms and Condition for in which the Company operates, the business model Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya Independent Non-Executive Director 6,95,490
Appointment of Independent Directors.pdf. of the Company, and it's strategic and operating plans. Mr. Paramartha Saikia Independent Non-Executive Director 1,36,800
The Code of Conduct for the Directors, the Code of Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai Independent Non-Executive Director -
None of the Independent Non-Executive Directors Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger Non-Executive Director -
serves in more than seven (7) listed companies nor by Insiders, the Code of Practices and Procedures Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani Non-Executive Director -
does any Independent Non-Executive Director who is for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
a Whole Time Director in any other company serve as 1nformation and various other policies are also shared
an Independent Non-Executive Director in more than With them, from time to time. Further, during the year,
three (3) listed companies. presentations were made from time to time at the
Board and Committees’ meetings, on regular intervals,
All the Independent Non-Executive Directors have covering the business and financial performance of
given the necessary declarations in terms of Section the Company, business outlook and budget, expansion
149(7) of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations Plans, succession plans etc.
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Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed
entity, wherever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems.

Reviewing with the management, performance of
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussing with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors.

Recommending to the Board of Directors the
appointment and removal of the external auditor,
fixation of audit fees and approval for payment for
any other services.

To review the functioning of the whistle
blower mechanism.

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer
(i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or discharging
that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate.

Oversee the vigil mechanism established by the
Company and the chairman of audit committee
shall directly hear grievances of victimisation of
employees and directors, who use vigil mechanism
to report genuine concerns in appropriate and
exceptional cases.

w. Mandatorily review the following

e management discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations;

e statement of significant related party
transactions (as defined by the audit committee),
submitted by management;

e management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

e internal audit reports relating to internal
control weaknesses;

e the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall
be subject to review by the audit committee; and

e statement of deviations;

e quarterly statement of deviation(s) including
report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of SEBI
Listing Regulations;

e annual statement of funds utilised for
purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Xx. Reviewing the utilisation of loans and/ or advances
from/investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crores or 10% of
the asset sise of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans / advances / investments
existing as on the date of coming into force of
this provision.

y. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity
and its shareholders.

z. Any other matter as may be prescribed, from time
to time, to be referred to the Audit Committee
in terms of the Companies Act 2013/ SEBI
(LODR) Regulations and the applicable rules,
regulations thereto.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance of
the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee constituted is in compliance with
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation
18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

During the Financial Year under review, the Audit
Committee met four (4) times on May 26, 2022,
August 2, 2022, November 10, 2022, and February
9, 2023 with the necessary quorum being present at
each meeting.

As on March 31, 2023, the Company does not have any c. Approving payment to statutory auditors for any
convertible instruments. other services rendered by the statutory auditors.
d. Reviewing, with the management, the annual
The mandatory Committees constituted by the Board financial stat_en‘_lents and auditor’s report therepn
of Directors of the Company are: befo_re submission to the Board for approval, with
particular reference to:
1. Audit Committee;
N . . ) e Matters required to be included in the Director’s
2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee; Responsibility Statement to be included in the
3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; Board’s report in terms of Clause (c) of Sub-
4. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee; and Section(3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act 2013;
5. Risk Management Committee. . . . .
e Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
The composition of all the mandatory Committees practices and reasons for the same;
meets the requirements of the Act and the SEBI e Major accounting entries involving estimates
(LODR) Regulations. based on the exercise of judgment
by management;
The dgtalls of the role a!nd cgmp05|tlon of the ¢ Significant adjustments made in the financial
Committees of the Board including the number of L e
. ) . . . statements arising out of audit findings;
meetings held during the Financial Year under review
and attendance there at, are provided below. e Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements;
During the Financial Year under review, a Sustainability « Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
Committee has also been constituted, the composition !
and role of the same are also provided below. e Qualifications in the draft audit report.
e. Reviewing the financial statements with respect
. to its unlisted Subsidiary(ies), in particular
Brief terms of reference: investments made by such Subsidiary(ies).
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee satisfy
the requirement of Section 177 of the Act read with f. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, financial statements before submission to the
2014 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations. board for approval.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its g. Reviewing, with the management, the statement
responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of uses/ application of funds raised through an
of the accounting, auditing and reporting practices issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue,
of the Company and its compliance with the legal etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes
and regulatory requirements. The Chairman of the other than those stated in the offer document/
Committee is financially literate and all other members prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the
of the Audit Committee have accounting or related monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
financial management expertise. proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to
The Audit Committee of the Company, inter alia, take up steps in this matter.
performs the following functions:
h. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s
a. Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting independence and performance, and effectiveness
process and the disclosure of its financial of audit process.
information to ensure that the financial statements
are correct, sufficient and credible. i. Approval of any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related
b. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, parties and omnibus approval for related party
reappointment, terms of appointment and, if transactions proposed to be entered into by
required, the replacement or removal of the the Company, subject to the conditions as may
statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees. be prescribed.
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Name of the No. of

Members Status Category Meetings
attended

Mr. Niten Chairman Independent Non- 2

Malhan* and Member Executive Director

Dr. Arindam Member Independent Non- 2

Kumar Executive Director

Bhattacharya

Mrs. Freyan Member Independent Non- 4

Jamshed Desai Executive Director

Mr. Ashish Member Independent Non- 2

Kumar Guha** Executive Director

Mr. Pradeep Chairman & Independent Non- 2

Mathur*** Member Executive Director

*Appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f December
4, 2022, in place of Mr. Pradeep Mathur.

**Mr, Ashish Kumar Guha, ceased to be an Independent Non-
Executive Director and member of the Audit Committee of the
Company effective September 14, 2022.

*** Mr. Pradeep Mathur, ceased to be an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and Chairman & Member of
the Audit Committee effective December 4, 2022.

Note: The Company Secretary of the Company acts as
the Secretary for the Audit Committee.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee satisfy the requirement
of Section 178 of the Act read with the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and
the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021. The Committee also acts
as Compensation Committee and is responsible for
administering the Employee Stock Option Plan of the
Company and determining eligibility of employees for
stock options.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the
Company, inter alia, performs the following functions:

a. Formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommending to the Board a
policy relating to the remuneration of the directors,
key managerial personnel and other employees.

For every appointment of an independent director,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board and on the basis
of such evaluation, prepare a description of the
role and capabilities required of an independent
director. The person recommended to the Board
for appointment as an independent director shall

have the capabilities identified in such description.
For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates,
the Committee may:

i. use the services of an external agencies,
if required;

ii. consider candidates from a wide range
of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

iii. consider the time commitments of
the candidates

b. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of
performance of Independent Directors and
the Board.

c. Devising a policy on diversity of the Board.

d. Identifying persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommending to the Board their
appointment and removal.

e. Extension or continuance of the terms of
appointment of the Independent Directors, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of
Independent Directors.

f. Identifying persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommend to the board of directors their
appointment and removal and carry out evaluation
of every director’s performance (including that of
independent directors).

g. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management

h. Performing such other activities as may be
delegated by the Board or specified/ provided
under the Companies Act 2013 or by the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations or by any other applicable law
or regulatory authority.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance of
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee constituted
is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations.

During the Financial under review, the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee met two (2) times on May
27, 2022, and February 10, 2023, with the necessary
quorum being present at each meeting:

No. of
uz:i::sthe Status Category Meetings
attended

Mr. Niten Malhan Chairman Independent Non- 1

Executive Director
Mr. Paramartha Member Independent Non- 2
Saikia Executive Director
Mr. Pradeep Member Independent Non- 1
Mathur* Executive Director
Mrs. Freyan Member Independent Non- 1
Jamshed Desai Executive Director
Dr. Arindam Member Independent Non- 2
Kumar Executive Director
Bhattacharya

*Mr. Pradeep Mathur, ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee effective December 4, 2022.

Note: The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the Secretary for the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration of Directors

Performance Evaluation Criteria for
Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of
the Act read with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee carried out
the annual performance evaluation of the Directors
individually including the Chairman and the Board
evaluated the overall effectiveness of the Board of
Directors including its Committees based on the ratings
given by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

The performance evaluation of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors was carried out by the
entire Board on the criteria and framework adopted
by Board (the concerned Director being evaluated
did not participate). On the basis of ranking filled in
the evaluation questionnaire and discussion of the
Board, the Directors have expressed their satisfaction
on the performance of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

Salary
. incIusii_ng Sitting Tenure Notice Total
Name of the Director” Category Perquéls;t; @ Ianaelfl:\sl; Upto Period (% In Lakhs)
(% In Lakhs)

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani* Executive/Chairman & 349.93 N.A. 31.03.2026 N.A. 349.93
Managing Director

Mr. Niten Malhan Vice Chairman and Lead Nil 1.50 05.11.2025 N.A. 1.50
Independent Non-
Executive Director

Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani Non-Executive Director Nil N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil

Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger Non-Executive Director Nil N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil

Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha** Independent Non- Nil 0.70 14.06.2022 N.A. 0.70
Executive Director

Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai Independent Non- Nil 1.85 14.06.2027 N.A. 1.85
Executive Director

Mr. Arvind Singhania** Independent Non- Nil 0.25 14.06.2022 N.A. 0.25
Executive Director

Mr. Paramartha Saikia Independent Non- Nil 1.90 14.06.2027 N.A. 1.90
Executive Director

Mr. Pradeep Mathur** Independent Non- Nil 0.90 04.12.2022 N.A. 0.90
Executive Director

Dr. Arindam Kumar Independent Non- Nil 1.25 10.04.2024 N.A. 1.25

Bhattacharya*** Executive Director

* Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani has been re-appointed as Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f April 1, 2023, in the Board Meeting
held on February 10, 2023, subject to the approval of the shareholders through postal ballot. The results of the postal ballot shall

be declared on or before June 15, 2023.

** Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha and Mr. Arvind Singhania ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company effective
September 14, 2022, and Mr. Pradeep Mathur, ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company effective

December 4, 2022.

*** Dr, Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya abstrained from taking sitting fees till December, 2022.

~ There are no severance fees payable to any of the Directors.

AN The Independent Non-Executive Directors were paid sitting fees of ¥ 25,000/- for attending each meeting of the Board and
%10,000/- for each committee meetings. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on February 10, 2023, on the recommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has increased the sitting fees to ¥ 75,000/-. for attending each meeting of the
Board and ¥ 50,000/- for each Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting and ¥ 10,000/- for all

other Committees of the Board attended by them.
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Criteria for making payments to Non-
Executive Directors including all pecuniary
relationship or transactions of Non-
Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors are not paid
any remuneration other than sitting fees for attending
the meetings of the Board and Committee meetings as
approved by the Board.

There has been no pecuniary relationship or transaction
of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company
during the Financial Year under review except sitting
fees paid to them as detailed above.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the
Board was constituted to oversee the CSR Policy and
recommend and monitor the amount of expenditure
to be incurred on the activities mentioned in Schedule
VII of the Act.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee include the following:

a. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by
the company as specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act 2013 and make any revisions
therein as and when decided by the Board.

b. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the activities referred to in (a).

c. To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy of the company from time to time.

d. To do such other acts, deeds and things as may
be required to comply with the applicable laws.

e. To perform such other activities as may be
delegated by the Board or specified/ provided
under the Companies Act 2013 or by the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations or statutorily prescribed under
any other law or by any other regulatory authority.

Composition and Attendance of the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
has been constituted with the following members
in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of
the Act.

During the Financial Year under review, one (1) meeting
of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has
been held on May 27, 2022, with the necessary quorum
being present at the meeting.

No. of
I\N/Iaemi::sthe Status Category Meetings
attended

Mr. Paramartha Chairman Independent Non- 1
Saikia & Member Executive Director
Mr. Patanjali Member Executive 1
Govind Keswani Chairman &

Managing Director
Mr. Aditya Member Non-Executive 1
Madhav Keswani Director
Mrs. Freyan Member Independent Non- -

Jamshed Desai Executive Director

Note: The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the Secretary for the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee.

The updated CSR Policy adopted by the Company is
uploaded on the website of the company at https://
www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/

Corporate_Social_Responsibility Policy.pdf.

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been
constituted in terms of Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 20 of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, for
redressal of investor complaints, shareholders related
issues, transfer/transmission of securities etc.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee include the following:

a. Monitoring the grievance and redressal of all
security holders’ grievances such as complaints
related to non-receipt of allotment/refund, review
of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of
shares, including non-receipt of share certificates,
non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of
declared dividends, non-receipt of annual reports,
etc. and assisting with quarterly reporting of
such complaints.

b. Allotting of equity shares, giving effect to all
transfer/ transmission of shares and debentures,
dematerialisation of shares and re-materialisation
of shares, splitting and issuing of duplicate/
consolidated share certificates, complying with all
the requirements related to shares, debentures
and other securities from time to time.

c. Reviewing statutory compliances pertaining to
share/security capital, processes, shareholders
and depositories (NSDL/CDSL).

d. Oversee the performance of the registrars and
transfer agents of our Company and to recommend
measures for overall improvement in the quality of
investor services.

e. Review of measures taken for effective exercise
of voting rights by shareholders

f.  Review of the adherence to the service standards
adopted by the company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent,

g. Review of the various measured and initiatives
taken by the Company for reducing the quantum
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt
of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Company.

h. Carry out any other function as is referred by
the Board from time to time or enforced by any
statutory notification/ amendment or modification
as may be applicable.

Composition, Meetings, and Attendance of
the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee constituted
is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 (5)
of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

During the Financial Year under review, one (1) meeting
of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been
held on May 27, 2022 with necessary quorum being
present at the meeting:

No. of

::Z::i::sthe Status Category Meetings

attended
Mrs. Freyan Chairperson Independent Non- -
Jamshed Desai & Member Executive Director
Mr. Paramartha Member Independent Non- 1
Saikia Executive Director
Mr. Patanjali Member Executive 1

Chairman &
Managing Director

Govind Keswani

Note: The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the Secretary for the Stakeholder’s
Relationship Committee.

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted
in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations
and the terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee inter alia include the following:

(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy
which shall include:

(@) A framework for identification of internal
and external risks specifically Faced by
the listed entity, in particular including
financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, ESG related risks), information,
cybersecurity risks or any other risk as may
be determined by the Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including
systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.

(c) Business continuity plan.

(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology,
processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business
of the Company;

(3) To monitor and oversee implementation of the
risk management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;

(4) To periodically review the risk management
policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and
evolving complexity;

(5) To keep the board of directors informed about
the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

(6) The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if
any) shall be subject to review by the Risk
Management Committee.

Composition, Meetings, and Attendance of
the Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee constituted is in
compliance with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations.
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During the Financial Year under review, three (3)
meetings of the Risk Management Committee have
been held on May 27, 2022, November 11, 2022, and
February 10, 2023, with the necessary quorum being
present at the meeting:

No. of
:aenn:‘:’::sthe Status Category Meetings
attended

Mrs. Freyan Chairperson Independent 1
Jamshed Desai* and Member Non-Executive

Director
Mr. Patanjali Member Executive 3
Govind Keswani Chairman

& Managing

Director
Dr. Arindam Member Independent 1
Kumar Non-Executive
Bhattacharya Director
Mr. Niten Malhan Member Independent 2

Non-Executive

Director
Mr. Pradeep Chairman & Independent 1
Mathur** Member Non-Executive

Director
Mr. Vikramjit Member Senior 3
Singh Management

(President)
Mr. Kapil Sharma Member Senior 3

Management

(Chief Financial

Officer)

* Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai has been inducted as Chairperson
and Member of the Committee w.e.f December 4, 2022.

** Mr. Pradeep Mathur ceased to be an Independent Director of
the Company and Chairman and Member of the Committee w.e.f.
December 4, 2022.

During the Financial Year under review, the
Sustainability Committee has been constituted by the
Board of Directors in their meeting held on February
10, 2023 with the following members and no meeting
has been held during the Financial Year under review.

Name of the

Members Status Category

Mrs. Freyan Member
Jamshed Desai

Mr. Patanjali Govind Member Executive Chairman &
Keswani Managing Director

Mr. Kapil Sharma Member Senior Management
(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Jagdish K Member Senior Management
Chawla (EVP - Projects and
Engineering)

Senior Management
(President)

Senior Management
(SVP - Sustainability &
ESG)

Independent Non-
Executive Director

Mr. Vikramjit Singh Member

Ms. Aradhana Lal Member

The terms of reference of the Sustainability Committee
inter alia include the following:

e Identify key performance indicators for Sustainability;
e Oversee implementation of the ESG Policy; and

e Provide necessary direction and guidance w.r.t the
ESG Policy.

Mr. Nikhil Sethi
AVP Legal & Group Company Secretary

The details of the investor complaints received and
resolved during the Financial Year under review are
as follows:

Number of Investor Complaints received so 0
far

Number of complaints resolved 0
Number of complaints not solved to the 0
satisfaction of shareholders

Number of pending complaints 0
Closing Balance 0

The date, time, and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below.

No special resolution was passed by the postal ballot
during the last three years. However, the Company has
send the Notice of Postal ballot dated April 28, 2023 to
the shareholders of the Company on May 12, 2023 for
passing of the following resolutions:

Sr. No. Resolutions Proposed

1 Approval for re-appointment of Mr. Patanjali Govind
Keswani, as Chairman and Managing Director, as a
special resolution

2 Approval of the limits for furnishing of corporate
guarantee for and on behalf of Iora Hotels Private
Limited, Related Party, as an ordinary resolution

3. Approval of the limits for furnishing of corporate
guarantee for and on behalf of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited, Related Party, as an ordinary resolution

The results of the postal ballot shall be declared on or
before June 15, 2023.

Information like Quarterly/Half Yearly/Annual
Financial Results and press releases on significant
developments in the Company that have been made
available from time to time have been submitted to the
stock exchanges on which the Companies shares are
listed to enable them to put these on their websites
and communicate to their members. The Quarterly/
Half Yearly/Annual Financial Results are published in
English and Hindi language newspapers normally in
the Financial Express and Jansatta. Moreover, the
Management Discussion and Analysis as well as the
Business Responsibility and Sustainiability Report
also forms part of this Board Report. The Company is
electronically filling all reports/information including
quarterly results, shareholding pattern, Corporate
Governance Report and so on, on the website of the
NSE at www.nseindia.com and on the website of the
BSE at www.bseindia.com

The Company also ensures that the details of its
business, financial information, investor presentations,
shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate
governance, policies, contact information of the
designated officials of the Company who are responsible
for assisting and handling investor grievances including
all other mandatory disclosures are promptly and
prominently displayed on the website of the Company
at www.lemontreehotels.com.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company
has in place a Code of Conduct for Prohibition of
Insider Trading under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the same is uploaded
on the website of the Company at https://www.
lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/Code_of

Conduct for Regulation Monitoring _and_ Reporting.

pdf.

A. Annual General Meeting:

The date of the Annual General Meeting for the
Financial Year under review is yet to be finalised by
the Board. The date/cut-off date for the purpose
of remote e-voting shall be communicated to
shareholders though Notice of Annual General
Meeting. The meeting shall be held through video
conferencing in compliance with the provisions of
the Act/ SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

B. Financial Year

The Financial Year of the Company starts from 1st
day of April and ends on the 31st day of March of
next year.

Financial Calendar 2023 (tentative)

First Quarter Results: First/Second week of
August, 2023

Second Quarter Results: First/Second week of
November, 2023

Third Quarter Results: First/Second week of
February, 2024

Audited Annual Results for the year ending on
March 31, 2024: Third/Fourth week of May, 2024

C. Dividend Payment Date

The Directors of the Company have not
recommended any dividend for the Financial Year
under review.

D. Name and Address of Stock Exchange
and Date of Listing

S. Name and address of the
No. Stock Exchange

1 National Stock Exchange April 9, 2018 LEMONTREE
of India Limited
C-1, Block G, Bandra
Kurla Com-plex Bandra
(East), Mumbai 400 051

2 BSE Limited
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai 400 001

Date Stock Code

April 9, 2018 541233

Annual listing fees for the FY24 have been paid by the
Company to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.

E. Stock Market Data & Stock Performance

The details of stock market data and stock
performance for the Financial Year under review
are as under:

Financial Special
Date Time Venue Resolution
Year
Passed
2021-22 14.09.2022 03.00 P.M Meeting was held through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means Yes
facility. (Deemed Venue - Regd. Office: Lemon Tree Hotels Limited, Asset
No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District,
New Delhi-110037)
2020-21 30.09.2021 03.00 P.M Meeting was held through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means No
facility. (Deemed Venue - Regd. Office: Lemon Tree Hotels Limited, Asset
No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District,
New Delhi-110037)
2019-20 29.09.2020 03.00 P.M Meeting was held through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means Yes
facility. (Deemed Venue - Regd. Office: Lemon Tree Hotels Limited, Asset
No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District,
New Delhi-110037)
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Market Price Data from April, 2022 to March, 2023

Month BSE NSE
n
° High (3) Low () Volume (Nos.) High (%) Low (¥) Volume (Nos.)
Apr-22 71.40 62.05 16687114 71.45 62.10 133048352
May-22 67.70 52.20 12584869 67.85 57.00 88452791
Jun-22 71.40 58.30 6677972 71.45 58.30 59689476
Jul-22 69.10 59.75 5663943 69.10 60.10 51716876
Aug-22 79.05 64.80 14959398 79.10 64.65 179322290
Sep-22 88.40 69.90 23551990 88.50 69.90 192968069
Oct-22 93.50 82.05 9034715 93.45 82.05 79648783
Nov-22 102.40 84.10 11961527 102.50 84.05 123818478
Dec-22 103.30 70.25 17074359 103.40 70.20 122027740
Jan-23 86.45 71.95 8083927 86.25 71.95 55276378
Feb-23 83.00 72.90 9778563 82.95 72.50 82926218
Mar-23 82.45 72.85 7082272 82.45 72.80 67352732
Performance in comparison to broad-based indices
LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED
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F.

Share Transfer Agent

All the work related to the shares held in
physical form as well as shares held in electronic
(dematerialised) form is being done at a single
point and for this purpose a SEBI registered
category I Registrar and Share Transfer Agent has
been appointed, whose details are given below.

KFin Technologies Ltd

(Formerly known as “Karvy Fintech Private
Limited”)

“Selenium Building, Tower B”, Plot NO. 31 & 32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Rangareddi, Hyderabad-500032,
Telangana

Toll free number - 1- 800-309-4001

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com

Website: www.kfintech.com

Distribution of Shareholding

G. Share Transfer System

To expedite the transfer of shares in physical form,
authority has been delegated to the Stakeholder’s
Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors
and all transfers shall be recorded by the
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee within
a period of 15 days from the date of receipt
subject to the documents being complete and
valid in all respects. Transfers of equity shares in
dematerialised form are done through depositories
with no involvement of the Company. Transfers of
equity shares in physical form are processed by
the Company’s R&T Agents, M/s Kfin Technologies
Ltd. The Company obtains a yearly certificate from
a Company Secretary in Practice in respect of the
share transfers as required under Regulation 40(9)
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and files a copy
of the said certificate to the stock exchanges on
which the Company’s shares are listed.

The shareholding distribution of equity shares as on March 31, 2023, is given hereunder:

Number of Equity Shares Held Sh:::::&::sf Sh:::::;lt::fsl S:::;:i;?: % Shareholding
1-5000 244604 98.44 67345180 8.50
5001-10000 2021 0.81 14608662 1.84
10001-20000 916 0.37 13034906 1.65
20001-30000 283 0.11 7114497 0.90
30001-40000 142 0.06 5024412 0.63
40001-50000 90 0.04 4109546 0.52
50001-100000 138 0.06 9858260 1.24
100001-ABOVE 281 0.11 671151001 84.71
TOTAL 248475 100.00 792246464 100.00
Category Wise Shareholding
Total no of
:lo. Description Equli‘t‘:ldsl;zr:: Percentage
March 31, 2023

1 Promoter & Promoter Group - Bodies Corporate 18,40,78,143 23.23
2  Promoter & Promoter Group - Individual 29,85,764 0.38
3 Directors and their relatives 5,45,776 0.07
4  Foreign Portfolio- Corp 19,37,89,025 24.46
5 Foreign Bodies Corporates 11,98,97,329 15.13
6 Mutual Funds 8,02,11,768 10.12
7 Resident Individuals 13,70,42,969 17.30
8 Bodies Corporates 5,14,47,891 6.49
9 Employees 47,19,763 0.60
10 Trusts 2,90,043 0.04
11 ESOP Trust 6,39,241 0.08
12 Non-Resident Indian Non-Repatriable 45,53,261 0.57
13 Clearing Members 2,04,419 0.03
14 Non-Resident Indians 38,05,797 0.48
15 HUF 28,32,376 0.36
16 NBFC 2,000 0.00

142

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Integrated Report 2022-23 143

syoday Aloiniels 1ybisut a1esodio)

Sjuswialels |epueuly


mailto:einward.ris%40kfintech.com?subject=
http://www.kfintech.com

Total no of

:-o. Description Equri‘te\!/Idsra\:rs: Percentage
March 31, 2023

17 Key Managerial Person 11,19,486 0.14
18 Qualified Institutional Buyer 7,11,385 0.09
19 Foreign National 1,500 0.00
20 Foreign Portfolio Investors 1 0.00
21 Alternative Investment Fund 33,68,527 0.43

Total 792,246,464 100.00

Dematerialisation of Shares

As on March 31, 2023, 99.72% of the total equity
shares were held in dematerialised form.

Outstanding Convertible Instruments

The Company doesn’t have any Outstanding
Convertible Instruments having any impact on
the equity.

Commodity Price Risk or Foreign
Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

The Company has not undertaken any forex or
hedging transactions during the Financial Year
under review.

Hotel Location

The hotel locations have been provided in the
corporate overview section of the Integrated
Report and are also available on the Company’s
website at www.lemontreehotels.com.

Address for Correspondence

Investors may address their queries to the
Company at the address mentioned hereinbelow:

Mr. Nikhil Sethi

AVP Legal & Group Company Secretary
Compliance Officer

Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District
New Delhi 110037, India

Tel: 491 11 4605 0122

Facsimile: +91 11 4605 0110

E-mail: sectdeptt@lemontreehotels.com
The securities of the Company were never

suspended from trading on the NSE and BSE
during the Financial Year under review.

P. List of All Credit Ratings Obtained by

the Entity Along with any Revisions
Thereto During the Relevant Financial
Year, for All Debt Instruments of Such
Entity or any Fixed Deposit Programme
or Any Scheme or Proposal of the Listed
Entity Involving Mobilisation of Funds,
Whether in India or Abroad

This is not applicable during the Financial Year
under review.

Related party transactions

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality
of Related Party Transactions and dealing with
Related Party Transactions and the same has
been disclosed on the Company’s website at the
following link: https://www.lemontreehotels.com/

factsheet/Policies/Related_Party Transaction
Policy.pdf.

All related party transactions including
transactions of a repetitive nature requiring
omnibus approval are placed before the Audit
Committee for approval.

The details of related party transactions entered
into by the Company pursuant to each omnibus
approval given, are reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There were no materially significant
related party transactions in the Company in
the year that have any potential conflict with the
interests of the Company.

Related party disclosures as required under the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations are given in the notes
to the Financial Statements.

Statutory compliances/penalties

There are no penalties or strictures imposed on
the Company by the stock exchanges on which
the Company’s shares are listed or by SEBI or any
other statutory authority on any matter related to
capital markets during the last three years.

Vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy

With a view to adopting the highest ethical
standards in the course of business, the Company
has a Whistle Blower Policy in place for reporting
instances of conduct which are not in conformity
with the policy. Directors, employees, vendors,
or any person having dealings with the Company
may report non-compliance to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, who reviews the report.
Confidentiality is maintained of such reporting,
and it is ensured that any whistle blower is not
subjected to any discrimination.

No person was denied access to the Audit
Committee. The said policy is also uploaded on
the website of the Company at https://www.
lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Code_of
Conduct_and_Vigil_Mechanism.pdf

The Company is regularly complying with the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations as stipulated therein.
Information, certificates and returns as required
under the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations
are sent to the stock exchanges on which
the Company’s shares are listed within the
prescribed time.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The status of compliance with the non-mandatory
requirements is as under:

The Chairman of the Company is an Executive
Chairman and hence the provisions for Non-
Executive Chairman are not applicable as on
date. All other requirements of the Board
during the Financial Year under review have
been complied with.

Quarterly and Half Yearly financial results
are furnished to the stock exchanges on
which the Company’s shares are listed,
published in a prescribed newspaper and also
uploaded on the website of the Company at
https://investors.lemontreehotels.com/#. The
same are not separately sent to each of the
shareholders. Significant events are posted
on the Company’s website from time to time.

There are no modified opinion(s) on the
Financial Statements for the Financial Year
under review.

The Internal Auditor reports to the
Audit Committee.

This is not applicable as the Company does not
trade in commodity price risk and commodity
hedging activities.

The Board has formulated a policy for determining
material subsidiaries pursuant to the provisions
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations which is available
on the website of the Company at https://
www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/
Determination_of Material Subsidiary Policy.pdf.

Three (3) of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company are also on the Board
of material subsidiary viz. Fleur Hotels Private
Limited, one (1) of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company are also on the Board of
material subsidiaries viz. Berggruen Hotels Private
Limited, Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited and Iora
Hotels Private Limited.

The Company has not raised funds through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
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placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A)
during the FY23.

The Company has obtained a certificate from a
practicing company secretary that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority which forms part of the Corporate
Governance Report attached to this Board Report
as ‘Annexure - 5.

The total fees paid to M/s Deloitte Haskins &
Sells LLP, Statutory Auditor, by the Company and
its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis for the
Financial Year under review is ¥ 1.36 Crore.

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023,
the Company has not received any complaint in
relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013

Number of Complaints filed during the financial 0
year under review
Number of complaints disposed of during the 0

financial year under review

Number of complaints pending as on the end 0
of financial year

The Company has registered itself for SEBI
Complaints Redress System (SCORES), a
centralised web-based complaints redress system
with 24 x 7 access. It allows online lodging of
complaints at anytime from anywhere.

An automated email acknowledging the receipt
of the complaint and allotting a unique complaint
registration number is generated for future
reference and tracking.

The Company has in accordance with the
procedure laid down in Schedule IV of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations opened a dematerialisation
account named ‘Lemon Tree Hotels Ltd. Unclaimed
Suspense Demat Account’. However, no shares
have been transferred till March 31, 2023.

The reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is
conducted by the Practicing Company Secretary
to reconcile the total admitted capital with
National Securities Depository Limited and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited
("Depositories”) and the total issued and listed
capital. The audit confirms that the total issued /
paid up capital is in agreement with the aggregate
of the total number of shares in physical form and
the total number of shares in dematerialised form
(held with the Depositories) and that requests
for dematerialisation of shares are processed
by the R & T Agent within the stipulated period
of twenty one (21) days and uploaded with the
concerned Depositories.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) in preparation of the annual
accounts for the FY23.

During the year, the Board has accepted all
recommendations received from all its committees.

The Company has complied with the applicable
provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations
including Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Company submits a quarterly compliance
report on corporate governance signed by the
Compliance Officer to the stock exchanges on

which the Company’s shares are listed within
the prescribed timelines from the close of every
quarter. Such quarterly compliance report on
corporate governance is also posted on the
website of the Company at https://investors.
lemontreehotels.com/#.

A certificate from M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary confirming
compliance with the conditions of the corporate
governance as stipulated under the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, is forming part of this Board Report.

To comply with Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, the Chairman & Managing
Director and the Chief Financial Officer have
certified that the financial statements present a
true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards.

The Board of Directors of the Company has
adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors
and Senior Management Personnel. The Code
of Conduct is applicable to Executive and
Non-Executive Directors as well as Senior
Management Personnel. As per the SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, the duties of Independent
Non-Executive Directors have been suitably
incorporated in the said Code as laid down in
the Act.

A copy of the Code of Conduct is available on the
Company’s website https://www.lemontreehotels.
com/factsheet/Code_of Conduct_for_ Directors
Senior_Management.pdf

A declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing
Director is given below:

I hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from all the members
of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, an
affirmation that they have complied with the Code
of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management
Personnel in respect of the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Date: May 30, 2023 Chairman & Managing Director
Place: New Delhi

DIN:00002974
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District
New Delhi - 110037

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited having CIN: L74899DL1992PLC049022 and having registered office at Asset No.
6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi -110037 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before
me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any court or any other Statutory Authority:

z’;. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani 00002974 07/10/2002
2. Mr. Willem Albertus Hazeleger 07902239 09/08/2017
3. Mr. Niten Malhan 00614624 06/11/2020
4. *Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha 00004364 15/06/2017
5. *Mr. Arvind Singhania 00934017 15/06/2017
6. Mr. Paramartha Saikia 07145770 15/06/2017
7. Mrs. Freyan Jamshed Desai 00965073 15/06/2017
8. **Mr. Pradeep Mathur 05198770 05/12/2017
9. Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya 01570746 11/04/2019
10. Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani 07208901 17/06/2015

* Ceased to be Independent Director w.e.f. September 14, 2022
** Ceased to be Independent Director w.e.f. December 04, 2022

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Membership No.: F8687

CP No.:7347

Place: Delhi Peer Review No. 1724/2022
Date: May 30, 2023 UDIN: FO08687E000372688

Corporate Governance Certificate

To
The Members
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
(“the Company”), for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulations 17
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900
Peer Review Certificate No: 1352/2021

Partner
May 30, 2023 CP No.: 18465; M. No.: F6952
New Delhi UDIN: FO06952E000431431
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Certification by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

This is to certify that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (the ‘Company’) and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading:

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting in the
Company and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee deficiencies
in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee
(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

For Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Place: New Delhi Chief Financial officer

Date: May 30, 2023

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00002974

ANNEXURE-6

Remuneration to Directors and Employees

[Pursuant to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014
:';. Description Directors Employees
a. Name of the employee Mr. Patanjali Ms. Harleen Mr. Vikramjit Mr. Jagdish K Mr. Kapil Sharma
Govind Keswani Mehta Singh Chawla (5)
(1) (2) (3) (4)
b. Designation of the Chairman & Sr. Vice President President Executive Vice Executive Vice
employee Managing Director - Sales President-Projects President -
& Finance &
Engineering Chief Financial
Officer
c. *Remuneration 351.05 138.67 127.83 113.05 91.85

received (% in Lakhs)

d. Nature of employment,
whether contractual or
not

Non-contractual Non-contractual Non-contractual Non-contractual Non-contractual

e. Qualifications and B. Tech in Master’s in Graduate from  Diploma Degree Chartered
experience of the Electrical Business Sri Ram College in Electrical Accountant. He
employee Engineering from  Administration of Commerce and Engineering from has a experience

IIT Delhi and from Symbiosis a post graduate Pusa Polytechnic, of over 25 years
PGDBM from IIM Institute of in Hospitality Pusa, New Delhi
Calcutta. He has Management Management and and has a total
a experience of Studies, Pune. Administration experience of

over 35 years She also from the Taj over 42 years
has a Hotel Group of Hotels in the field of
Management and has an engineering,
Degree from experience of  construction and
IHM Gwalior. over 25 years operations
Experience over
20 years

f. Date of commencement 01.09.2002 19.08.2019 15.05.2014 01.11.2002 01.12.2004
of employment with
company

g. The age of such 64 Years 48 years 48 years 66 years 54 years
employee

h. The last employment Senior Partner  Hyatt Hotels and He was an Taj Group of  Head-Finance and
held by such employee A.T. Kearney Inc.,, Resorts, where  entrepreneur in Hotels Accounts, Leroy
before joining the India her last role was Assam where he Somer & Controls
Company as Vice President ran his own hotel India Private

—-Sales Operations Limited
India

i. The percentage of 0.04 Nil 0.05 0.08 0.14
equity shares held by
the employee in the
Company within the
meaning of Clause(iii)
of sub-rule (2) above

j. Whether any such Mr. Aditya Madhav N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

employee is a relative
of any director or
manager of the
Company and if so, the
name of such director
or manager

Keswani, Director
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Note(s): Gross remuneration includes basic salary, allowances, taxable value of perquisites and the Company’s contribution to
Provident Fund, but excludes provision for retiring gratuity and leave benefits.
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Remuneration to Employees
[Pursuant to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014
Sr. Description Employees
No. P ploy
a. Name of the employee Mr. Davander Ms. Ritu Ranjan Mr. Gaurav Goyal Mr. Devinder Ms. Sareena
Tomar (7) (8) Kumar Kochhar
(6) (9) (10)
b. Designation of the Executive Vice  Sr. Vice President General Manager- Assistant Vice  Sr. Vice President
employee President- - Chief Design Sales President-RMD Housekeeping
Corporate Affairs Officer
c. Remuneration received* 85.94 60.07 55.08 52.27 46.99
(% in Lakhs)
d. Nature of employment, Non-contractual Non-contractual Non-contractual Non-contractual Non-contractual
whether contractual or
not
e. Qualifications and M.A & LLB from  B.A (Honors) in B.Sc. in Hotel Post Graduate B.Sc (Home
experience of the Delhi University  Philosophy from Management with Diploma in Hotel Science) and
employee and has a total Delhi University in over 20 years of Accommodation Diploma in Hotel
experience of the year 1987 and experience and Management Management with
over 38 years. having 20 years with over over 33 years
of experience 23 years of of experience in
experience Hospitality
f. Date of commencement 25.09.2002 01.04.2014 09.05.2016 01.07.2010 15.07.2006
of employment with
company
g. The age of such 62 years 57 years 42 years 44 Years 58 years
employee
h. The last employment Area Security Self employed He has previously He has previously Corporate
held by such employee Manager-Taj worked with worked with ITC Executive
before joining the Group of Hotels SPREE Hotels &  Group of Hotels Housekeeper
Company Resorts Pvt. Ltd. as Revenue with VLCC Health
as Vice President Manager, Care.
Reservation
Manager and Duty
Manager.
i. The percentage of 0.00 0.05 0.01 0.01 0.03
equity shares held by
the employee in the
Company within the
meaning of Clause(iii) of
sub-rule (2) above
j.  Whether any such N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

employee is a relative of
any director or manager
of the Company and if
so, the name of such
director or manager

Note(s): Gross remuneration includes basic salary, allowances, taxable value of perquisites and the Company’s contribution to
Provident Fund, but excludes provision for retiring gratuity and leave benefits for which separate figures are not available.

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 30, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Patanjali Govind Keswani
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00002974

ANNEXURE-7

Details pertaining to remuneration as required u/s 197(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies

(Appointment and remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014

1.

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 30, 2023

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of
the employees of the Company for the financial year, the percentage increase in
remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:-

Ratio of remuneration
of each Director to the Percentage increase in

Name Designation median remuneration of remuneration*
employees

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani  Chairman and Managing Director 275 112.86

Mr. Kapil Sharma Chief Financial Officer N.A. 2.23

Mr. Nikhil Sethi AVP Legal & Group Company N.A. 27.53

Secretary

* Due to Covid pandemic which has highly impacted the performance of the hotels, there has been salary cuts ranging from
50% to 66% to managerial employees and 100% to Chairman & Managing Director during a major part of the FY22, accordingly
the percentage increase in remuneration is not comparable.

No other Directors were paid remuneration during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial
year.

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the FY23 is 1%.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2023, is 771 across all
the locations globally.

Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

This clause is not comparable/applicable during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, as due to the
Covid pandemic which has highly impacted the performance of the hotels, the Company has given salary
cuts ranging from 50% to 66% to employees and 100% to Chairman & Managing Director during a major
part of the FY22.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, is as per
the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Patanjali Govind Keswani
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00002974
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ANNEXURE-8

Secretarial Audit Report

For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

(CIN: L74899DL1992PLC049022)

Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District,
New Delhi-110037

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Lemon Tree
Hotels Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed, provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial statements of
the Company.

d) Wherever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliances
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and
standards is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which

the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2023
(“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the Audit Period according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(*SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings, wherever applicable;

(v) The following Regulations prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(*SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 {Not applicable during the
audit period};

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
{Not applicable during the audit period};

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
{Not applicable during the audit period}; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards on
Meetings of the Board of Directors and on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India with which the Company has
generally complied with.

We report that the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Standards and Guidelines, to the extent applicable,
as mentioned above, during the Audit Period.

vi) The Company is engaged in the Hotel Business and
is running hotels at various locations PAN India. As
informed by the management, the Legal Metrology
Act, 2009 & rules made thereunder and Food
Safety and Standards Act, 2006 & rules made
thereunder are the laws specifically applicable to
the Company. On the basis of recording in the
minutes of Board of Directors, our check on test
basis and management representation, we are
of the view that the Company has ensured the
compliance of laws specifically applicable on it.

We further report that the Board of Directors of
the Company is duly constituted with proper balance

of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the
audit period were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance except
for those meetings which were held at shorter notice
in compliance of the provisions and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent
and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that systems and processes
in the Company are satisfactory, which can further
be strengthened commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that pursuant to the Orders
dated 12t October, 2022, 14t November, 2022 and
25 November, 2022 ("Orders") of the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench, Court- III
("Hon'ble NCLT"), shareholders and creditors approved
the Scheme of Amalgamation between Valerian
Management Services Private Limited, Grey Fox
Project Management Company Private Limited, PSK
Resorts & Hotels Private Limited, Dandelion Hotels
Private Limited and Lemon Tree Hotels Limited at their
respective meetings held on January 19, 2023. The
scheme is pending before Hon'ble National Company
Law Tribunal ("Hon'ble NCLT") and other statutory
authorities for approval.

For
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900
Peer Review Certificate No.:1352/2021

Partner
CP No.: 18465; M No.: F6952
UDIN: FO06952E000431541

May 30, 2023
New Delhi
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ANNEXURE-9

Secretarial Audit Report of Material Subsidiary Companies

FORM NO. MR.3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended 315t March, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Fleur Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912

Address: Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District,
New Delhi- 110037

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Fleur Hotels
Private Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’)
which is an unlisted subsidiary of Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial statements of
the Company.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained
the management representation about the
compliances of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management.

Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records as maintained and provided to us by
the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2023 (*Audit Period’)
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the Audit Period according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings, where applicable;

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard
on Meetings of the Board of Directors and on

General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, which is generally
complied with.

We report that the Company has generally
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines, to the extent
applicable, as mentioned above, during the
Audit Period.

(iv) The Company is engaged in the Hotel Business
and operating various Hotels. As informed by the
management, the Food Safety and Standard Act,
2006 and Rules made thereunder are specifically
applicable on the Company and filed at Hotel level.
On the basis of management representation,
recording in the minutes of Board of Directors and
our check on test basis, we are of the view that the
Company has generally ensured the compliance of
laws specifically applicable on it.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the
Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors that took place during the audit period
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all its directors to
schedule the Board and Committee Meetings. Agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance
of the meetings other than held at shorter notice and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors
or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that members of the Company at
their extra-ordinary general meeting held on August
02, 2022 passed following ordinary resolution(s)-

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 &
152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules framed there under, for appointment of
Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani (DIN No. 07208901) as
a Director of the Company, who was appointed as
an Additional Director, in terms of the provisions
of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, whose
period of office shall be liable to retire by rotation.

We further report that members of the Company at
their extra-ordinary general meeting held on December
21, 2022 passed following special resolution(s)-

- Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with applicable rules and regulation
and the provisions of the Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999, the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019,
to extend the term of conversion of 53,76,340,
0.01% cumulative compulsorily convertible
preference shares, (the “"CCPS”) issued to APG
Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V for an aggregate
amount of ¥ 174,99,98,670 (Indian Rupees One
Hundred Seventy Four Crore Ninety Nine Lakh
Ninety Eight Thousand Six Hundred And Seventy
Only), which were earlier convertible on December
21, 2022 (i.e. on the expiry of 30 months from the
date of allotment i.e. June 22, 2020) to be now
converted on or before June 30, 2023.

For and on behalf of
(Company Secretaries in Practice)

ICSI Unique Code - S2013DE203700
Peer Review Certificate No. — 882/2020

Place: Ghaziabad FCS No. - 9553 COP No. - 11671
Date: May 29, 2023 UDIN - FO09553E000371101
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FORM NO. MR.3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Berggruen Hotels Private Limited

(CIN: U55101MH2006PTC164475)

Lemon Tree Premier, Mumbai,

Opp. Mittal Industrial Estate

Andheri Kurla Road, Mumbai-400059 (M.H.)

Sir,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Berggruen
Hotels Private Limited (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing us opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

¢) We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliances
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Based on our verification of the Berggruen Hotels
Private Limited’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March
31, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

(iii) Other laws as applicable specifically to
the Company:

e The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and rules
made thereunder;

e Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and rules
made thereunder;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

During the period under review the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
There were no changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance (except in
cases where the meeting is held on shorter notice)
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous
consent and therefore no dissenting member's views
were required to be captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period no
specific events/actions took place having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards etc.

For
Company Secretaries

Partner

M. No.: F8687 / C P No.: 7347
Peer Review No. 1724/2022
UDIN: FO08687E000372644

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 26, 2023
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FORM NO. MR.3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
(CIN: U55204DL2007PTC166050)

Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District
New Delhi - 110037

Sir,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Hyacinth
Hotels Private Limited (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial statements of
the Company.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliances
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Based on our verification of the Hyacinth Hotels
Private Limited’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March
31, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder

(iii) Other laws as applicable specifically to
the Company:

e The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and rules
made thereunder

e Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and rules
made thereunder

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs on the Board and
General Meetings of the Company.

During the period under review the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The Company was not required
to appoint Executive Director in accordance with
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and there were no
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
during the audit period.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance (except in
cases where the meeting is held on shorter notice)
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous
consent and therefore no dissenting member's views
were required to be captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the
Company has:

e taken approval u/s 186 for inter corporate loans,
guarantees, securities and investments vide special
resolution passed in the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on June 06, 2022.

e taken approval u/s 185 for granting of unsecured
loan to IORA Hotels Private Limited vide special
resolution passed in the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on July 13, 2022.

o taken approval u/s 186 for granting loan, guarantee
or providing security or investing in securities of
other body corporates vide special resolution passed
in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on July
14, 2022.

We further Report that except for what is stated above
the Company has not undertaken any specific events
/ actions having a major bearing on the Company's
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards.

For
Company Secretaries

Partner

M. No.: F8687 / C P No.: 7347
Peer Review No. 1724/2022
UDIN: FO08687E000372655

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 29, 2023
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FORM NO. MR.3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Iora Hotels Private Limited

(CIN: U55101DL2009PTC192981)

Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District
New Delhi-110037

Sir,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Iora Hotels
Private Limited (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents
of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial statements of
the Company.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliances
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Based on our verification of the Iora Hotels Private
Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March
31, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs on the Board and
General Meetings of the Company.

During the period under review the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Act,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance (except in
cases where the meeting is held on shorter notice)
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous
consent and therefore no dissenting member's views
were required to be captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the
Company has:

e taken approval u/s 180 (1) (c) for borrowing more
than paid up capital and free reserves of the Company
vide special resolution passed in the Extra-ordinary
General Meeting held on June 06, 2022.

e taken approval u/s 180 (1) (a) for mortgaging,
hypothecating and charging its assets of the
Company for securing financial facilities vide special
resolution passed in the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on August 30, 2022.

We further Report that except for what is stated above
the Company has not undertaken any specific events
/ actions having a major bearing on the Company's
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards.

For
Company Secretaries

Partner

M. No.: F8687 / C P No.: 7347
Peer Review No. 1724/2022
UDIN: FO08687E000372677

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 29, 2023
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BUSIHESS ResponSIblllty and ANNEXURE-10 17 Markets served by the entity:
Sustainability Report (BRSR)

Locations Number
National (No. of States) 20
Section A: General Disclosures International (No. of Countries) 0
I. Details of the Listed Entity
1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity L74899DL1992PLC049022 0%
2 Name of the Listed Entity Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
3 Year of incorporation 1992
4 Registered office address Asset No. 6 Aerocity Hospitality District
New Delhi 110037 India Lemon Tree caters to a diverse clientele, including business and leisure travellers, families, tourists, event
5 Corporate address Asset No. 6 Aerocity Hospitality District attendees, wedding guests, food and beverage patrons and long-stay guests. Our hotels are strategically
New Delhi 110037 India located with high-quality amenities, efficient services and a focus on comfort and convenience. Whether
6 E-mail sectdeptt@lemontreehotels.com it is for business or leisure, we ensure our guests have a memorable experience during their stay with us.
7 Telephone +911146050101
8 Website www.lemontreehotels.com IV. Employees
9 Financial year for which reporting is being done 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 18 Details as at the end of Financial Year:
10 Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
listed Limited
11 Paid-up Capital 37,92,24,64,640 Employees and workers
12 Nam_e and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be contacted in case of any ﬁo Particulars Total (A) Male Female
queries on the BRSR report No. (B) % (B / A) No. (C) % (C / A)
Name: Aradhana Lal Employees
Telephone: +911146050101 1 Permanent (D) 2,344 2,094 89% 250 11%
E-mail: svp_sustainability@lemontreehotels.com 2 Other than Permanent (E) 781 696 89% 85 11%
13 Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for 3 Total employees (D + E) 3,125 2,790 899, 335 11%
the enFity) orona qonsolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities which form a part of its Workers
consolidated financial statements, taken together).
Consolidated, except paid up share capital 4 Permanent (F) . . . . .
5 Other than Permanent (G) - - - - -
6 Total workers (F + G) - - - - -

I1I. Products/Services

14 Details of Business Activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover): Note: The total employees is excluding the apprentices (100)
S- Description of Main Activit Description of Business Activit % of Turnover
No. P y P y of the entity
1 Operating Hotels Hotel service including accor_nmodation/room_s, dining, bar, 99.59% S.  particulars Total (A) Male Female
banquets, conference, meeting rooms, spa, fitness center, No. No. (B) % (B/ A) No. (C) % (C/ A)
swimming pool, etc. Differently Abled Employees
d . Id by th B ing f % of th i, Permanent (D) 81 76 94% 5 6%
15 Products/Services so y the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover) 2 Other than Permanent (E) 140 133 95% 2 S0,
s 9 of total 3 Total employees (D + E) 221 209 959% 12 5%
N.o. Product/Service NIC Code Turqover Differently Abled Workers
contribute
1 Hotel service including accommodation/rooms, dining, bar, banquets, conference, 55101 100% 4 Permanent (F) . . . N N
5  Other than Permanent (G) - - - - -

meeting rooms, spa, fitness center, swimming pool, etc.

6 Total workers (F + G) - - - - -

III. Operations

19 Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women
16 Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity (owned) are situated:

No. and percentage of Females

Total (A)
f Number of Number of No. (B) % (B / A)
Location lant £i Total -
plants offices Board of Directors 7 1 14%
National 40 1 41 Key Management Personnel 2 0 0%
International 0 0 0

164 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 165
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20 Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers

(Disclose trends for the past 3 years)

FY23 (Turnover rate in
current FY)

FY22 (Turnover rate in
previous FY)

FY21 (Turnover rate in the
year prior to the previous FY)

Male Female

Total Male Female Total Male

Female Total

Permanent Employees 46%

53% 54% 7% 61% 49%

8% 57%

Permanent Workers -

VI. CSR Details

22 (i). Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013

Yes. It is applicable to Lemon Tree Hotels Ltd. and its two subsidiary companies.

(ii). Turnover (in %)
Turnover of Lemon Tree Hotels (consolidated) for is ¥8,75,79,03,000

(iii). Net worth (in%)

Net worth of Lemon Tree Hotels (consolidated) is ¥14,13,82,22,000

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)
21 Names of holding/subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances
Does the 23 Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines
entity on Responsible Business Conduct
indicated at
% of column A, - - - - -
S. Name of the holding / subsidiary / associate Indicate whether holding/ Subsidiary/ hs;:zrss F;i':';:]psai:‘i:; Grievance Redressal FY23 Current Financial Year FY22 Previous Financial Year
No companies / joint ventures Associate/ Joint Venture list z R ibilit Mechanism in Place Number of Number of
Iste esponsibility Stakeholder group from (Yes/No) (If Yes Number of complaints Number of complaints
entity initiatives whom complaint is i b complaints pending complaints pending
of the listed ived then provide web- - ; - Remarks - - Remarks
> receive link for grievance filed during resolution filed during resolution
entity? grie the year at close of the year at close of
(Yes/No) redress policy) the year the year
1 Fleur Hotels Private Limited Subsidiary 58.91% Yes Communities Yes, we have 0 0 _ 0 0 _
2 Canary Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% Yes Investors (other than grievance redressal 0 0 _ 0 0 _
3 Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% Yes shareholders) for the zlakelholdetr
roup. relevan
4  Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% Yes Shareholders goliciF:as of the 0 0 - 0 0 -
5 Manakin Resorts Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% Yes Employees and workers Company are 0 0 - 0 0 -
6  PSK Resorts and Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No Customers ﬁ‘t’f"a?}_e at N 0 0 - 2 0 -
s://investors.
7 Dandelion Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No Value Chain Partners Ien?ontreehotels. 0 0 - 0 0 -
8 Grey Fox Project Management Company Private  Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No Other (please specify) com/# 0 0 - 0 0 -
Limited
9 Valerian Management Services Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
10 Carnation Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% Yes*
11 Lemon Tree Hotel Company Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
12 Red Fox Hotel Company Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
13 Hamstede Living Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
14 Nettle Hotels Private Limited (formerly known as Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
Poplar Homestead Holdings Private Limited)
15 Arum Hotels Private Limited (formerly known as  Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
Jessamine Stays Private Limited)
16 Madder Stays Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
17 Totally Foxed Solutions Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company 100% No
18 Celsia Hotels Private Limited Subsidiary 58.91% Yes
19 Iora Hotels Private Limited Subsidiary 58.91% Yes
20 Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited Subsidiary 58.91% Yes
21 Berggruen Hotels Private Limited Subsidiary 58.91% Yes
22 Haycinth Hotels Private Limited Subsidiary 58.91% Yes
23 Bandhav Resorts Private Limited Subsidiary 58.91% Yes
24 Ophrys Hotels Private Limited Subsidiary 58.91% No
25 Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited Associate 36.56% No
26 Pelican Facilities Management Private Limited Associate 36.56%** No
27 Glendale Marketing Services Private Limited Associate 36.56%** No
* All third party hotels operated by Carnation Hotels are participating in Lemon Tree Hotels' business responsibility initiatives
** These companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited
166 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited Integrated Report 2022-23 167
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https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/6_LTH_Stakeholder_Relations_Policy_October_2021.pdf?_ga=2.48345510.1279118338.1684500424-1289565203.1681825427
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/LTH_Environmental_Policy_May_2022.pdf?_ga=2.44201252.1279118338.1684500424-1289565203.1681825427
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/LTH_Environmental_Policy_May_2022.pdf?_ga=2.44201252.1279118338.1684500424-1289565203.1681825427
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/Policy_on_Board_Diversity.pdf?_gl=1*1asr6sb*_gcl_au*NjkzOTYwMTYzLjE2OTAzNjI2Njc.&_ga=2.52267561.188498447.1690362668-952802459.1690362667
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/Policy_on_Board_Diversity.pdf?_gl=1*1asr6sb*_gcl_au*NjkzOTYwMTYzLjE2OTAzNjI2Njc.&_ga=2.52267561.188498447.1690362668-952802459.1690362667
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/LTH_Climate_Change_Policy_October_2021.pdf?_ga=2.19134136.1279118338.1684500424-1289565203.1681825427
https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/LTH_Climate_Change_Policy_October_2021.pdf?_ga=2.19134136.1279118338.1684500424-1289565203.1681825427
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Governance, leadership and oversight

7  Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related challenges,
targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility regarding the placement of this disclosure)

This statement is the same as the statement in the Corporate Overview in the FY23 <IR> report

8 Details of the highest authority responsible for implementation and oversight of the Business Responsibility
policy (ies).
Name of highest authority

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani

Designation Chairman and Managing DirectE e
DIN DIN: 00002974 R
Category Executive Director

9 Does the entity
have a specified
Committee of the
Board/ Director
responsible for
decision making
on sustainability
related issues?
(Yes / No). If yes,
provide details

Yes or No Yes

(If Yes) Qualitatitve Our CSR and Sustainability Committees at the board Ie\EareEponsible for
Response sustainability related issues. There is also an ESG Task Force in the management team
that works closely on all future Sustainability and ESG initiatives

10 Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:
Indicate whether review was undertaken by Director /
Committee of the Board/ Any other Committee
P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Performance against above policies and follow up action All the policies are reviewed periodically or on need basis by
the ESG Taskforce and amended as required

Subject for Review

Compliance with statutory requirements of relevance to the We comply with the extant regulations and principles, as are
principles, and, rectification of any non-compliances applicable.

Frequency (Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/ Any other -

Subject for Review please specify)

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Performance against above policies and follow up action Yearly
Compliance with statutory requirements of relevance to the Quarterly

principles, and, rectification of any non-compliances

11 Has the entity carried out independent assessment/ evaluation of the working of its
policies by an external agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide nhame of the agency.

Yes or No Yes
(If Yes), Name of agency

IGBC audit of two hotels Lemon Tree Hotel, Electronics City, Bengaluru, Lemon Tree
Premier, Ulsoor Lake, Bengaluru (Environment policy and waste management policy).
Internal audits of all hotels done half yearly

12 If answer to question (1) above is "No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy,
reasons to be stated:

Questions PL P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

The entity does not consider the Principles material to its business (Yes/No)

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a position to formulate and
implement the policies on specified principles (Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial or/human and technical resources NA
available for the task (Yes/No)

It is planned to be done in the next financial year (Yes/No)

Any other reason (please specify)

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a
manner that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

16 PEACE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

Essential Indicators

1 Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during
the financial year:

Total number %age of persons in
Segment of training and Topics / principles covered under the training and respective category
9 awareness its impact covered by the awareness
programmes held programmes
Board of Directors 4 Business strategy, digital transformation, risk 100%
management & compliance
Key Managerial 4 Business strategy, digital transformation, risk 100%
Personnel management & compliance
Employees other than 5 Induction of new joiners, sensitisation session, Induction - 100%
BoD and KMPs functional & behavioural training, environment, ESG - 45%
safety & governance and health & fire safety 101 - 55%
Sensitisation - 80%
Security - 80%
Workers - - -

Note: All training data above is the sum of employees trained in different programmes and in different months. It includes duplication
of people and is not a unique data set. Eg. If Rajat attends the induction, ESG, Front Office 101 and Security in the same year, he
is counted four times

2 Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement
amount paid in proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/
law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following
format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as
specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Obligations)
Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity’s website):

Monetary

Name of the
regulatory /

enforcement Amount (In ) Brief of the

Has an appeal

NGRBC Principle been preferred?

i (ves/No)
institutions
Penalty/ Fine - Nil Nil Nil NA
Settlement - Nil Nil Nil NA
Compounding fee - Nil Nil Nil NA

Non-Monetary

Name of the

regulatory/ Has an appeal

NGRBC Principle enforc_ement Brief of the been preferred?
agencies/ Case (Yes/No)
judicial
institutions

Imprisonment - Nil Nil NA
Punishment - Nil Nil NA

3 Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision
preferred in cases where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

Case Details Name of the regulatory/ enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions
NA NA
NA NA
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4 Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details
in brief and if available, provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes. We have a strong commitment to upholding the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity
in all our operations. We adopt a zero-tolerance stance towards bribery and corruption, ensuring that we
conduct ourselves professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business dealings and relationships.
This policy applies to all individuals associated with Lemon Tree, including directors, employees, officers,
contractors, consultants, trainees, seconded staff, casual workers, volunteers, interns, agents, or any other
person connected to our organisation.

Anti Bribery and Anti Corruption Policy https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/7_LTH_Anti_
bribery_and_Anti_corruption_Policy_October_2021.pdf

5 Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action
was taken by any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

FY23 FY22
Directors 0 0
KMPs 0 0
Employees 0 0
Workers 0 0
6 Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:
FY23 FY22
Number Remark Number Remark
Number of complaints received in relation to issues of 0 - 0 -
Conflict of Interest of the Directors
Number of complaints received in relation to issues of 0 - 0 -

Conflict of Interest of the KMPs

7 Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to
fines / penalties / action taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial
institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest

NA

Leadership Indicators

1 Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles
during the financial year:

%age of value chain partners covered

Total number of awareness Topics / principles covered under (by value of business done with

programmes held the training such partners) under the awareness
programmes
0 NA NA

2 Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests
involving members of the Board? (Yes/No) If Yes, provide details of the same.

Yes, we implement a rigorous process for handling all related party transactions. We diligently seek approval
from the Audit Committee. In cases where our members of the Board have an interest or a conflict of
interest, the concerned director abstains from participating in the discussion during the Board Meeting.

PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is
sustainable and safe

R0 GOOD HEALTH GENDER GLEAN WATER AFFORDABLEAND DEGENT WORK AND 9 INDUSTRY, INNOVATION 1 0 REDUCED
HUNGER AND WELL-BEING EQUALITY AND SANITATION GLEAN ENERGY ECONOMIC GROWTH ANDINFRASTRUCTURE INEQUALITIES

1 VN
|l af | 2] <
i <

11 SUSTAINABLE CITIES 12 RESPONSIBLE CLIMATE 1 LIFE BELOW 13 16 PEACE, JUSTICE
AND COMMUNITIES CONSUMPTION ACTION ONLAND AND STRONG
AAND PRODUCTION INSTITUTIONS

Ale | x

Essential Indicators

1 Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific
technologies to improve the environmental and social impacts of product and
processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

FY23 FY22 Details of improvements in environmental and social impacts
R&D 1.83% 4.93% CAPEX on ESG items include solar rooftop installation, heat pumps, water
meters, etc.
Capex 100% 100% Total CAPEX for 40 operating hotels. Does not include the 2 under

construction hotels in Mumbai and Shimla

2 Details on Sustainable Sourcing

a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing?
Yes

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?
We have established a robust procedure for sustainable sourcing. We actively promote our Supplier
Code of Conduct and encourage all our suppliers to accept and adhere to its terms and conditions.
We place a strong emphasis on suppliers and vendors adopting sound labour practices and treating
their workers fairly in accordance with local laws. Currently, we have not calculated the percentage
of inputs sourced sustainably, but we remain committed to continually improving our sustainable
sourcing efforts.

3 Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing,
recycling and disposing at the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b)
E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

As a hospitality service provider, we do not engage in the manufacturing or selling of products. Nevertheless,
we have implemented comprehensive waste management policies and practices for our own operations.
For more details, please refer to Principle 6, Essential Indicator, Question 9.

4 Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s
activities (Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the
Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards?
If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

NA

Leadership Indicators

1 Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its
products (for manufacturing industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If
yes, provide details.

No, LCA has not been conducted for any of the services.

2 If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising
from production or disposal of your products / services, as identified in the Life
Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly describe
the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same

NA
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https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/7_LTH_Anti_bribery_and_Anti_corruption_Policy_October_2021.pdf?_ga=2.153236216.1319944699.1684157956-1289565203.1681825427

3 Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in
production (for manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

NA

4 Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in
metric tonnes) reused, recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format:

FY23 FY22
In metric tonnes Re-Used Recycled Dis?)ifszlz Re-Used Recycled Disf)zfseelz
Plastics (including packaging) 0 0 0 0 0 0
E-waste 0 0 0 0 0 0
Hazardous waste 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other waste 0 0 0 0 0 0

5 Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold)
for each product category.

NA

PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees,
including those in their value chains

GOOD HEALTH

QUALITY GENDER

DECENT WORK AND REDUCED
EDUCATION EQUALITY 8 1 0

1 N 11 ‘SUSTAINABLE CITIES 16 PEACE, JUSTICE
POVERTY AND WELL-BEING ECONOMIC GROWTH INEQUALITIES AND COMMUNITIES AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

AT v

V'S
i | =

M| &

Essential Indicators

abde | X

1 a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

% of employees covered by

Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity benefits Day care facilities

Category To(t:)' Number % (B/ Number % (C/ Number % (D/ Number % (E/ Number % (F/

(B) A) (©) A) (D) A) (E) A) (F) A)

Permanent employees
Male 2,071 2,071  100% 2,071  100% 0 0% 0 0% 2,071  100%
Female 719 719 100% 719 100% 719 100% 0 0% 719 100%
Total 2,790 2,790 100% 2,790 100% 719 26% 0 0% 2,790 100%
Other than Permanent employees

Male - - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - - -

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

% of workers covered by

Total Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity Benefits Day Care facilities
ota

2 Details of retirement benefits
FY23 FY22
No. of No. of

Benefits employees No. of workers dzsg:i?::ldvsir:: employees No. of workers dzsg:i‘i::z:ldu?i::

covered as covered as a % the authorit covered as covered as a % the authorit

a % of total of total workers (Y/N/N A‘), a % of total of total workers (Y/N/N A‘),

employees o employees o
PF 100% - Yes 100% - Yes
Gratuity 75% - Yes 70% - Yes
ESI 67% - Yes 68% - Yes
Others - please - - - - - -
specify
3 Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167 If not, whether any steps are being taken
by the entity in this regard.

We take pride in designing all our hotels with universal access in mind. Our goal is to create barrier-free
environments that cater to guests of all abilities, mobility levels and ages. By providing accessible public
bathrooms and restaurants, we ensure that guests with disabilities feel welcome and included in our
local community.

For our specially-abled guests, we offer well-designed rooms equipped with various features for their
comfort and convenience. Starting from the entrance ramp that provides easy access to the lobby, our
hotels are designed to be hassle-free for physically challenged guests. The lobby area seamlessly connects
to elevators, specially designed public toilets and the coffee shop.

Our specially-abled rooms are thoughtfully equipped with features such as user-friendly elevators, close
proximity to elevators (often on the first floor), wider main doors (1,000 mm) for wheelchair passage, a lower
"magic eye" on the main door, lower luggage rack/table (below 450 mm), writing table at least 750 mm in
height, bed height at 500 mm, no mini bar adjacent to the bed, key card fixture at a lower height, cordless
phone, lower-fixed mirrors, audio-visual fire alarms, and direct emergency call bells at the Front Desk.

In the bathrooms, we ensure wash basins with adjustable heights, WC at 475 mm, shower seats at 475
mm width, knob-type shower mixer handles, hand showers without buckets or spouts, and stainless
steel support railings for ease of movement. Additionally, we provide convex mirrors at lower levels and
handicapped toilets in public areas with similar facilities.

Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities Act, 2016? If so, provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes, https://www.lemontreehotels.com/factsheet/Policies/LTH_Human_Rights_Policy_October_2021.pdf

We are deeply committed to promoting diversity and gender equality within our organisation, recognising
the value it brings in tapping into often overlooked talent pools. As an equal-opportunity employer, we
prioritise building a diverse, safe, and inclusive work environment. Embracing individual differences and
empowering every employee to reach their full potential is central to fostering innovation, employee
satisfaction, and unique ideas.

Our efforts towards inclusivity are focused on creating a workplace where everyone, regardless of their
background, can work collaboratively towards shared goals. We understand that equitable employment
generation is essential for driving sustainable socio-economic development in our nation. To promote
diversity and inclusion, we actively hire Opportunity Deprived Indians (ODIs), encompassing Employees
with Disability (EwD) and those from Economically and Socially Marginalised backgrounds (EcoSoc).

We began our journey of hiring employees with special needs in 2007. Over the years, we have been strongly
committed towards hiring individuals with special needs and creating an accessible and growth-oriented
work environment for them. This includes individuals with:

1. Physical disabilities: Speech and Hearing Impaired (SHI), Orthopedically Handicapped (OH), Acid
Survivors, Low Vision and

Category (A) Number % (B/ Number % (C/ Number % (D/ Number % (E/ Number % (F/

(B) A) <) A) (D) A) (E) A) (F) A)
Permanent workers

Male - - - - - - - - - - -

Female - - - - - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - - - - - - -

Other than Permanent Workers

Male - - - - - - - - - - -

Female - - - - - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - - - - - - -
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2. Intellectual and Developmental Disability (IDD): Down Syndrome, Slow Learner, Mild MR, IDD and Autism

Across all our hotels, we have a significant presence of SHIs, followed by OH. Through our strategic
partnerships with NGOs that focus on training of individuals with Intellectual and Developmental needs,
we plan to continuously enhance and expand our traineeship model.

We have focused on hiring people who belong to socially and economically weaker sections of society since
2016. This includes individuals who fall below the poverty line, widowed or destitute women, orphans/
abandoned girls, transgender persons and those from select states that rank low on education and
employment opportunities. By generating employment for these people, we effectively contribute towards
poverty alleviation and social justice.

5 Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took
parental leave.

8 Details of training given to employees and workers:

FY23 FY22
On Health and safety On Skill On Health and safety On Skill
Total (A) measures upgradation Total (D) measures upgradation
No. (B) % (B / A) No. (C) % (C/ A) No. (E) % (E/D) No. (F) % (F/D)
Employees
Male 2,042 884 43 1,158 57 5,375 XXX XXX 5,375 80+
Female 405 188 46 217 54 724 XXX XXX 724 80+
Total 2,447 1072 44 1,375 56 6,099 XXX XXX 6,099 80+
Worker
Male - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - -

Permanent employees Permanent workers

Note: All training data above is the sum of employees trained in different programmes and in different months. It includes duplication
of people and is not a unique data set. Eg. If Rajat attends the induction, ESG, Front Office 101 and Security in the same year, he

is counted four times.
In FY22, we were not conducting ESG specific training.

9 Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

Gender Return to work Retention rate Return to work Retention rate
rate rate

Male 0% 0% - -

Female 50% 50% - -

Total - - - -

6 Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following
categories of employees and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No
Permanent Workers - -

(If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Other than Permanent Worker - -
Permanent Employees Yes
Other than Permanent Employees Yes

We have implemented a stringent Sexual Harassment Policy, overseen
by the Ombudsman, to ensure a safe and respectful workplace for

all. Each of our hotels and the Corporate Office has a dedicated POSH
committee in place at every location. Additionally, we have well-defined
policies for Vigilance/Whistleblower, Prevention of Corrupt Practices and
a comprehensive Code of Conduct. Upholding the utmost priority, we
maintain anonymity for individuals raising complaints, ensuring their
protection and confidentiality throughout the process.

7 Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the
listed entity:

FY23 FY22
Total (A) No. (B) % (B / A) Total (C) No. (D) % (D / C)
Employees
Male 2,790 1,341 48% 2,427 89 4%
Female 335 132 39% 253 7 3%
Total 3,125 1,473 47% 2,680 96 4%
Worker
Male - - - - - -
Female - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -

Note: In FY23, half- yearly performance appraisals were conducted as above

10 Health and safety management system:

a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity?

(Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage such system?

Yes. We have an occupational health and management system in place that encompasses all our

employees and hotels.

b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-

routine basis by the entity?

We have an Incident Tracking System that we use to identify work-related hazards and assess risks
on both routine and non-routine bases. This system is implemented by our company to ensure the

safety and security of our operations and employees.

c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove themselves

FY23 FY22
No. of No. of
o empia Workers in empia® Workers in
ategor i i
gory / workers in respective % (B / A) / workers in respective % (D / C)
respective category, who respective category, who
category (A) are Rart of category (C) are Rart of
association(s) association(s)
or Union (B) or Union (D)
Total Permanent 3,125 76 2 2,680 88 3
Employees
Male 2,790 74 3 2,427 82 3
Female 335 2 1 253 6 2
Total Permanent - - - - - -
Workers
Male - - - - - -
Female - - - - - -

Note: The total employees is excluding the apprentices (100)

from such risks. (Y/N)

We have an Incident Tracking System in place for our employees and workers to report any work-related
hazards promptly. This system enables us to take precautionary actions to avoid potential risks.

Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare
services? (Yes/ No)

Yes, we provide health/personal accident and life insurance coverage for all our employees. We have
established grievance committees, including the Ombudsman, to address any concerns or issues
that may arise. We conduct health camps and workshops at the hotel level, creating awareness and
supporting our employees' overall well-being to promote a healthy work-life balance. Our hotel designs
also incorporate health and safety measures, benefiting both guests and employees. These measures
include fire safety equipment and evacuation procedures, daylighting to enhance natural lighting and
sandwich walls to minimise the building's heat envelope, ensuring a safe and comfortable environment
for all.

178

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Integrated Report 2022-23 179

syoday Aloiniels 1ybisut a1esodio)

Sjuswialels |epueuly



11 Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

4 Does the entity provide transition assistance programmes to facilitate continued
employability and the management of career endings resulting from retirement or
termination of employment?

Yes. We re-employ recommended employees who have superannuated and who wish to continue working
with us on a merit basis.

5 Details on assessment of value chain partners

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were

Safety Incident/Number Category FY23 FY22
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) (per one million-person hours Employees NA NA
worked) Workers - -
Total recordable work-related injuries Employees 15 NA
Workers - -
No. of fatalities Employees 0 0
Workers - -
High consequence work-related injury or ill-health (excluding fatalities) Employees 2 NA
Workers - -

12 Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

We have implemented various measures to ensure a safe and healthy workplace. For a detailed insight
into our safety practices, please refer to Principle 3, Essential Indicator, Question 10.

13 Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY23 FY22
Filed during the Pending resolution Filed during the Pending resolution
Remarks Remarks
year at the end of year year at the end of year
0 0 - 0 0 -
0 0 - 0 0 -

14 Assessments for the year:

%o of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Health and safety practices 100%
Working Conditions 100%

15 Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related
incidents (if any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of
health & safety practices and working conditions.

We ensure that all employees are regualrly trained on safety/security protocol across all units.

Leadership Indicators

1 Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event
of death of (A) Employees (Y/N) (B) Workers (Y/N).

Employees Yes
Workers -

assessed
Health and safety practices None
Working Conditions None

6 Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant
risks / concerns arising from assessments of health and safety practices and
working conditions of value chain partners.

NA

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its
stakeholders

1 NO GENDER " ‘SUSTAINABLE CITIES 16 PEACE, JUSTICE
POVERTY EQUALITY AND COMMUNITIES ANDSTRONG
INSTITUTIONS

]| & || ¥

Essential Indicators

1 Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

Engaging with our stakeholders is vital as it enables us to comprehend and align with their expectations,
ultimately leading to better satisfaction. Their diverse needs serve as valuable inputs that shape our goals
and strategic decisions. We have identified twelve (12) distinct stakeholder groups, and we maintain clear

commitments to each of them, ensuring we address their specific requirements effectively.

Stakeholder

Why we need to engage

How we engage

2 Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have
been deducted and deposited by the value chain partners.

Lemon Tree makes sure that all the relevant clauses dealing with statutory compliance are validated and
honoured by both sides.

3 Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence
work-related injury / ill-health / fatalities (as reported in Q11 of Essential
Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated and placed in suitable
employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

No. of employees/workers that
are rehabilitated and placed in

Total no. of affected employees/ suitable employment or whose

Category
Employees Our employees create guest experiences and We regularly engage with our employees through
ensure that their expectations are met and even internal town halls and other mechanisms.
exceeded. We rely on the service delivery of our  Frequent team-building exercises foster harmony
employees to enhance our brand image through  and bring synergy to our team. We also rely on
exceptional service. forums including new employee “fresh-eyes”
discussions and weekly engagement chats
between hotel managers and employees on a
one-on-one basis to assess their needs.
Customers Our customers are key stakeholders who We invite direct feedback from our customers

experience our service delivery. Our revenues are
directly linked with the trust and relationships
that we nurture with our customers. Their
feedback is critical to our financial success. Our
brand standards too evolve based on this ongoing
feedback.

prior to departure from our hotels. We also track
their comments on our services after they have
left our premises i.e. through Online Relationship
Management (ORM) platforms. We monitor our
social media engagement to understand the

live feedback of our customers. We update our
customers about hotel launches, new services,
and/or periodic offers, through our loyalty
programme via emailers, newsletters, etc.

Regulatory Bodies
and Government

Ongoing engagement with regulatory bodies and
the federal/state/local governments. We seek
their support in complying with applicable laws
and regulations.

They issue operating licenses and permits, which
are critical for us to conduct our business.

Investors and
Shareholders

Our investors and shareholders are interested in
the success and sustainability of our business.

They have provided the foundation, by providing
capital, for our business to grow. The motivation

Our quarterly presentations and annual meetings
serve as an opportunity to engage with investors
and shareholders regarding our performance and
get their feedback. We also invite their feedback

worker famil b h b | d ] - ¢
amily me’_‘: sl"s a"? een ‘: ace to meet/exceed the expectations of our investors on our annual disclosures.
In suitab’e employmen inspires us to continuously improve and, in
FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 that process, also deliver better value to other
Employees 2 NA 2 NA stakeholders.
Workers - - - -
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Stakeholder Frequency of

Why we need to engage How we engage Whether Channels of communication

Category N e N engagement
- - Stakeholder identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper, (Annually/ Half _Purpo§e and scope of engagement
Owners and Owners/partners who own managed hotels (run Our business development team and marketing Group Vulnerable & Pampbhlets, Advertisement, yearly/ Quarterly including key topics and concerns
Partners by Lemon Tree Hotels) are also responsible for team engages with owners and partners to Marginalised Community Meetings, Notice / others - please '2ised during such engagement
maintaining our brand standards. This asset- ensure they have the necessary tools and support Group (Yes/No) Board, Website, Other) specify)
light growth model is crlFlcaI to our bl..lsmess to uphold and enhance.our b!'and s reputatlpn. Customers No « Direct feedback from our « Daily « Health, Safety and Well-Being
success as it ensures quick geographic spread We also have regular discussions through bilateral customers (Guest Satisfaction )
and penetration, and offers our customers a wide meetings with owners and partners. Tracking System (GSTS))  Need based e Data Privacy
choice across the country. hi@lemontreehotels.com) ¢ Diversity and Inclusion
Suppliers and Engaging regularly with our suppliers and We engage with them frequently through informal « Online Relationship e Ethics and transparency
Vendors vendors is critical for our business, to ensure that interactions and periodical reviews. We discuss Management (ORM) platforms « Climate Change
the products and services they deliver to us meet product quality, product specifications, timely including Trip Advisor
our brand standards. supply, pricing and payment terms along with makemytrip.com boc;king com
ethical and responsible sourcing. Social d'. ! t.
L]
Contractors We are also supported by an outsourced We engage with them frequently through informal OCI? media engagemen
workforce in providing quality services to our interactions, meetings and periodical reviews to e Emailers and newsletters
customers. This makes it critical for us to engage discuss matters pertaining to the well-being and Regulatory No e One-on-one meetings e Quarterly e Regulatory compliance
with our contractors who ensure the availability of engagement levels of our outsourced workforce. Bodies and o Government portals and emails
trained staff who can deliver on our standards. Government
Online Travel Online Travel Agencies support us in customer We maintain an open dialogue and conduct Investors and  No ¢ Quarterly presentations e Quarterly e Economic Performance
Agencies/Portals acquisition anng with provi_d[ng us in;ightg int_o frequent meetings to stay connected with them. Shareholders o Annual meetings e Need based « Diversity and Inclusion
customer behavior and decision-making criteria. )
Reviewing customer feedback on their platforms e Feedback on annual disclosures e Energy Management
is an important aspect of our business. e Water Management
NGOs NGOs help us deliver on our commitment Our annual reports help our NGO partners assess ¢ Waste Management
to being an equal opportunity employer by our priorities and we engage with them regarding e Climate Change
supporting us in selecting and training candidates further opportunities for collaboration through « Customer Satisfaction
with disability and candidates from economically/ regular meetings and specific engagement ]
socially marginalised backgrounds (together events. e Ethics and Transparency
called Opportunity Deprived Indians (ODIs)). Owners and No e Regular engagement e Need based e Economic Performance
Moving forward, they will play a pivotal role in Partners i i i
supporting the design and implementation of our o Bilateral meetings e Quarterly . Regulatory Compliance
CSR initiatives. e Annually e Ethics and Transparency
Local Communities ~ We engage with local communities to understand We engage with them through our NGO partners * Diversity and Inclusion
their needs which helps us deliver greater impact and/or local hotel teams. e Energy Management
through curated social welfare programmes. o Water Management
Industry Associations Industry associations serve as a platform for us ~ We engage in multilateral meetings and events « Biodiversity Protection
to understand business trends and opportunities through industry associations and utilise these « Waste Management
and collaborate with our peers in the travel and platforms to communicate our initiatives and ) 9
tourism industry. learn about the initiatives of others. e Climate Change
Media We leverage our relationship with media for brand We engage with media agencies and personnel Suppliers and  No e Informal interactions e Annually e Sustainable Supply Chain
building, engagement with local communities on  regularly through press releases, press notes, Vendors e Periodic reviews e Need based e Commitment to Human Rights
different initiatives as well as release press notes and briefings. The intent is to publicise our new « Annual supplier audits o Customer Satisfaction
on hotel launches, special promotions, and offers. hotel openings and initiatives. We curate news - - - -
briefs exclusively for our media partners to keep Contractors No e Informal interactions e Annually e Sustainable Supply Chain
them apprised of relevant updates about our e Periodic reviews ¢ Need based e Commitment to Human Rights
operations. e Annual supplier audits e Customer Satisfaction
Online Travel No e Online access to feedback from e Daily e Customer Satisfaction
2 List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of pgencies/ travellers/guests « Need based e Ethics and Transparency
engagement with each stakeholder group. * One-on-one meetings with the
management of OTA
Whether Channels of communication :;e‘:‘“‘::‘e’n"tf NGOs Yes * Regular meetings * Annually e Diversity and Inclusion
Stakeholder identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper, (Agngall / Half  Purpose and scope of engagement e Specific engagement events e Need based e Local Community Development
Grou Vulnerable & Pamphlets, Advertisement, early/ ({uarterl including key topics and concerns ]
P Marginalised Community Meetings, Notice ‘/’ oth:rs a pIeasZ raised during such engagement * Annual reports e Climate Change
Group (Yes/No) Board, Website, Other) specify) Local Yes, some ¢ Engagement through NGO e Quarterly e Diversity and Inclusion
Employees Yes, employees e Town halls meetings * Weekly * Health, Safety and Well-Being Communities  sections partners * Annually ¢ Skilling/training (Talent
who are e Team-building exercises e Monthly e Talent Management and Management)
Opportunity ¢ Fresh-eyes discussion e Quarterly Retention e Local Community Development
Deprived e Weekly engagement chats e Annually e Diversity and Inclusion .
Indians e Ethics and Transparency * Climate Change
includin e Energy management Industry No e Multilateral meetings e Annually e Ethics and Transparency
( g gy g
Employees with e Water Management Associations ¢ Need based e Regulatory Compliance
Disability and e Waste Management
Employees from e Climate Change * Energy Management
Economically/ e Water Management
ocially e Diversity and Inclusion
Sociall Di it d Inclusi
marginalised e Skilling/training (Talent
segments Management)
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Frequency of

Whether Channels of communication engagement

identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper, gag Purpose and scope of engagement
Stakeholder H (Annually/ Half . . .

Vulnerable & Pamphlets, Advertisement, including key topics and concerns
Group PR . . . yearly/ Quarterly - -

Marginalised Community Meetings, Notice raised during such engagement

Group (Yes/No) Board, Website, Other) / others = please

4 4 specify)
Media No e Press releases e Quarterly e Footprint Growth
e Press notes and briefings e Annually e Customer Satisfaction
¢ Need based e Regulatory Compliance

e Energy Management
Water Management
Diversity and Inclusion

Leadership Indicators

3 Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the
concerns of vulnerable/ marginalised stakeholder groups.

VULNERABLE GROUP CONCERNS ACTION TAKEN

ODI Employees e Integration in the team e All our hotel teams are regularly sensitised about disability and
« Training in a manner that inclusion/diversity. All employees learn Indian Sign Language
they can understand/receive at Lemon Tree and their knowledge of the language is tested as
the training content well

Supervision and guidance i * Training for Employees With Disability (EWD) is conducted in a

the early stages manner that is suitable for that disability i.e. deaf colleagues
are trained in an integrated session where there is a 'speaking’
trainer and an ISL interpreter who translates alongside;
low vision colleagues are given content that is inclusive and
accessible; employees with intellectual/developmental disability
or autism are not taught in a classroom and are trained
through a 6 month+ internship

1 Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on * All supervisors and managers are trained to guide new EWD
economic, environmental, and social topics or if consultation is delegated, how is tea"lhmembetrﬁ ad tt)o be patient with them for the first 6
feedback from such consultations provided to the Board. months+ on the jo

. . . L NGOs (in the disability e Absence of an inclusive e Our hotels share extensive best practices with other companies
We have set up various committees on economic and ESG governance and performance monitoring. sector) culture in society and the in hospitality, restaurants, airlines, retail, BFSI, manufacturing,
These committees are Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Share Allotment Committee, Audit corporate sector IT/ITES, and more. These sessions take place in-person
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Risk « Companies who are willing to ?g:j V'rtua)’"\’s)’v'th'” India gng ?tt’roel’d Ej'”'pgrsl?’{‘ '”I Fh'ihUKUK
. hire Persons With Disabilit asgow), singapore, an witzerland and virtual In the ’
Management Committee. (PWD) Y Japan, Europe, Israel, and more)
. . . . . . . . o Possibilty of sustainable e We are an active employer of PWD and act as a strategic
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Finance Committee, Share Allotment Committee, Audit employment solutions partner to NGOs working in the disability space. This is done
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Sustainability Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility across its 88 hotels in India located in 56 destinations. The
Committee, General Management Committee and Risk Management Committee are constituted by the inclusion initiative was started in 2007 and has continued
Board. As per their respective terms of reference, the various Committees (statutory as well as internal) th';gr%‘fzutngsat?ey::gsea(sgjf'te the pandemic) making it a
meet periodically to review the performance of the Company across various areas. A quarterly performance - . . . :
. . . . . Communities (segment e Absence of an inclusive Similar to the above plus
update and review is conducted by each committee (on the respecitve area) and consolidated reports/ of PWD) culture in society and the ) , )
follow throughs are presented to the Board in the quarterly meeting. Also, the Company conducts the * The Chairman & Managing Director of Lemon Tree was the
Y g p - _ quarterly m g. / pany corporate sector founding Chairperson of Skill Council for Persons with Disability
stakeholder engagement exercise on ESG topics, from time to time. e Skilling and training to make ~ (SCPWD) and served 2 terms over 5 years. SCPWD is a part of
PWD candidates employable the National Skill Development Council (NSDC) and focussed
. . . . . o Companies who are willing to on making training inclusive and implementable for PWD with

2 Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and ) hive Eersons With Disab”igy different types of disability including deaf, visually impaired,
management of environmental, and social topics (Yes / No). If so, provide details (PWD) othropaedically handicapped, Down Syndrome, autism, etc.
of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on these topics were  Lemon Tree has engaged regularly with the Minsitry of Social
incorporated into policies and activities of the entity. Justice (MSJE) with the Department of PWD (DePWD) w.r.t.
Yes skilling methodology, making companies inclusive and more.
The outcomes of the materiality assessment/stakeholder engagement exercise help the company identify PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights
material topics in the area of sustainabilty/ESG. Based on key material topics, the company's policy setting 1 wm ol K o s
and strategic approach are developed and implemented. Where required, goals are defined along with <;’ el
monitoring mechanisms and responsibility (for results) is assigned to members of the leadership team. “' = z:

As illustrations: . .
Essential Indicators
¢ Energy management: We endeavour to monitor and reduce our energy consumption on an ongoing 1 Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues
basis. We have implemented several initiatives including the use of renewable energy (RE) as well as and policy(ies) of the entity, in the following format:
adopting energy efficient systems across op